
Red Oak Community School District 
604 S Broadway 

Red Oak, Iowa 51566 

712.623.6600 
www.redoakschooldistrict.com 

Regular Board of Directors Meeting 

Meeting Location: Red Oak Jr./Sr. Virtual Learning Center OR 

VIA Internet and phone -visit website for information 

Go To Meeting Link: https://meet.goto.com/965160533 

Wednesday, May 17, 2023 – 5:30 pm 

- Agenda –

1.0 Call to Order – Board of Directors President Bret Blackman 

2.0 Roll Call – Assistant Board of Directors Secretary Heidi Harris 

3.0 Approval of the Agenda – President Bret Blackman 

4.0 Communications 

4.1 Good News from Red Oak Schools 

4.2 Visitors and Presentations 

4.2.1 Chad Bartlett from Green Hills AEA to Provide an Overview of the Rising

Hope Academy 

5.0 Consent Agenda 

5.1 Review and Approval of Minutes from April 5 and 19 and May 9, 2023 

5.2 Review and Approval of Monthly Business Reports 

5.3 Personnel Consideration 

5.3.1 Hiring of Zachary Eberle as 6-12 Instrumental Music Teacher at Jr-Sr High 

School for the 2023-2024 school year 

5.3.2 Hiring of Denise Stull as English Language Arts Teacher and Junior High Fall 

Play Director at Jr-Sr High School for the 2023-2024 school year 

5.3.3 Hiring of Nolan Blackman as Season IT Support for the Summer of 2023 

5.3.4 Hiring of Shaely Nowls as High School Assistant Bowling Coach for the 2023-

2024 school year (pending authorization) 

5.3.5 Hiring of Alec Ruskell as Varsity Assistant Wrestling Coach for the 2023-2024 

school year 

5.3.6 Hiring of Janelle Erickson as Junior High Volleyball Coach for the 2023-2024 

school year (pending authorization) 

5.3.7 Hiring of Sierra Wilkinson as Junior High Volleyball Coach for the 2023-2024 

school year (pending authorization) 

5.3.8 Hiring of Tristan Johnson as Varsity Head Girls Basketball Coach for the 

2023-2024 school year 

5.3.9 Hiring of Carter Bruce as Varsity Assistant Girls Basketball Coach for the 

2023-2024 school year 

http://www.redoakschooldistrict.com/
https://meet.goto.com/965160533


5.3.10 Hiring of Dillon Wiser as Varsity Assistant Football Coach for the 2023-2024 

school year 

5.4 Sharing Agreements 

5.4.1 Renewal of Social Worker sharing agreement with Green Hills Area Education 

Agency for the 2023-2024 school year 

5.4.2 Memorandum of Understanding with iJAG for the 2023-2024 school year 

5.4.3 Renewal of Head Start Program Agreement with West Central Community

Action for the 2023-2024 school year 

5.4.4 Chief Information Security Officer (vCISO) Sharing Agreement with Green 

Hills Area Education Agency for the 2023-2024 school year 

6.0 General Business for the Board of Directors 

6.1 Old Business 

6.2 New Business 

6.2.1 Discussion/Approval of 1st Reading of Board Policies 700-705 

6.2.2 Discussion/Approval of 1st Reading of Board Policy 905.1

6.2.3 Discussion/Approval of Class of 2023 List of Graduates

6.2.4 Discussion/Approval of Life Insurance, AD&D, Long-Term Disability, and

Dental Insurance Policy Rates with Lincoln Financial for the 2023-2024 and 

2024-2025 school years 

6.2.5 Discussion/Approval of Renewal of Letter of Engagement with Mercer Health

and Benefits LLC for the 2023-2024 school year 

6.2.6 Discussion/Approval of Renewing Specialty Underwriters (SU) Insurance for

the 2023-2024 school year ($109,661) 

6.2.7 Discussion/Approval of Increasing the 2022-2023 Daily Substitute Teacher Pay

Rate from $130.00 to $140.00 

6.2.8 Discussion/Approval of Increasing the 2023-2024 Substitute Support Staff

(i.e., Paraprofessionals, Secretaries, and Bus Drivers) by $2.00 per hour

6.2.9 Discussion/Approval of Restriping the Parking Lots at Inman Elementary and

Red Oak Jr-Sr High School ($8,800) 

6.2.10 Discussion/Approval of Purchasing MyView Elementary (K-6) Literacy

Curriculum ($206,445.55) 

6.2.11 Discussion/Approval of Partnering with Green Hills AEA in Hosting the

Rising Hope Academy for the 2023-2024 school year 

 7.0 Reports

7.1 Administrative 

7.2 Future Conferences, Workshops, Seminars 

7.3 Other Announcements 

7.4 Board Member Requested Item(s) for next meeting agenda 

7.5 Closed Session - Superintendent Performance Evaluation Pursuant to Iowa Code 

Section 21.5(1)(i) 

8.0 Next Board of Directors Meeting: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 – 5:30 pm 

Red Oak Virtual Learning Center 

Red Oak Jr./Sr. High   

9.0 Adjournment 



Red Oak Community School District 
Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Meeting Location:  Virtual Classroom/ Phone/Internet 
Red Oak Junior Senior High School Campus  

4/5/2023 

The special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Red Oak Community School District was 
called to order by President Bret Blackman at 5:30 p.m. at the Red Oak Junior Senior High 
School Virtual Classroom. 
Present 
Directors: Roger Carlson, Bret Blackman, Kathy Walker, and Jackie DeVries. 
Superintendent Ron Lorenz, Business Manager Deb Drey, Accounting Clerk Heidi Harris 
Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Director Walker, seconded by Director Carlson to approve the agenda with the order 
of agenda items at the discretion of the meeting chair.  Motion carried unanimously. 
Consent Revised Agenda 
Motion by Director Carlson, seconded by Director Walker to approve the revised consent agenda 
as presented including personnel considerations.  Motion carried unanimously. 
Red Oak Education Association Master Contract 
Motion by Director Carlson, seconded by Director Walker to approve the 2023 – 2024 Red Oak 
Education Association Master Contract.  Motion carried unanimously.  
2023-2024 Wage Increase for Non-Bargained Personnel 
Motion by Director DeVries, second by Director Walker to approve the proposed 2023-2024 
wage increases for remaining non-bargained personnel (Administrators, Directors, and Support 
Staff).  Motion carried unanimously. 
2023-2024 School Business Official Position 
Motion by Director Carlson, seconded by Director DeVries to approve Heidi Harris as the 
School Business Official/Board Secretary/Treasurer for the 2023-2024 school year.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
Adjournment 
Motion by Director Walker, seconded by Director DeVries to adjourn the meeting at 5:37 p.m.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
Next Board of Directors Meeting  
Wednesday, April 19, 2023 – 5:30 p.m.  
Virtual Classroom/Phone/Internet 
Red Oak Junior Senior High School Campus 

Board of Directors Work Session 
2023-2024 Health Insurance Plans 
Susan Matlage-Simms and Dawn Barr of Mercer presented a general overview of the insurance 
plans offered for the 2023-2024 school year. 



Red Oak Community School District  
Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Meeting Location:  Virtual Classroom/ Phone/Internet 
Red Oak Junior Senior High School Campus  

4/19/2023 

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Red Oak Community School District was 
called to order by President Bret Blackman at 5:30 p.m. at the Red Oak Junior Senior High 
School Virtual Classroom. 
Present 
Directors: Bret Blackman, Roger Carlson, Jackie DeVries, and Kathy Walker 
Superintendent Ron Lorenz, Business Manager Deb Drey, Asst Board Secretary Heidi Harris 
Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Director Walker, second by Director Carlson to approve the agenda with the order of 
agenda items at the discretion of the meeting chair.  Motion carried unanimously. 
Good News from Red Oak Schools 
Two Red Oak High School students were selected as Outstanding Performers at the Iowa High 
School Speech Association Individual Speech Competition.  Congratulations to Josie Rengsdorf 
and Lauren Dean for being selected as two of the state’s best individual speech performers.  
The Kiwanis Club presented the entire 3rd grade with bicycle helmets for the 25th year. 
ISASP testing has been completed at Inman Elementary and the Jr/Sr High School. 
The FFA program and FFA Alumni, along with their supporters held their cattle show on April 8 
with a record-number breaking number of cattle entered. 
Visitors and Presentations 
Dr. Jason Plourde, Jeremy Stukenholtz, and John Gambs presented on behalf of the Green Hills 
AEA highlighting the services, supports, and members of our AEA region’s staff.  They 
presented a short video profiling the AEA staff that currently work with our staff and the 
partnership opportunities they have to offer our district. 
Consent Agenda 
Motion by Director Carlson, seconded by Director DeVries to approve the consent agenda items 
including meeting minutes, personnel considerations, monthly business reports, and operational 
sharing agreements.  Motion carried unanimously. 
FY24 Certified Budget Public Hearing 
President Blackman opened the FY24 Certified Budget Public Hearing at 5:35 p.m.  Heidi Harris 
presented information on the FY24 proposed budget.  There were no public comments.  
President Blackman closed the public hearing at 5.41 p.m. 
FY23 Budget Amendment Public Hearing 
President Blackman opened the FY23 Budget Amendment Public Hearing at 5:41 p.m.  
Superintendent Lorenz requested increasing the current FY23 budget by $800,000 due to 
increased costs in instruction, support services, and other expenditures.  This amendment will 
have no impact on tax rates or other general fund expenditures.  There were no public comments.  
President Blackman closed the public hearing at 5.42 p.m. 



Red Oak Community School District  
Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Meeting Location:  Virtual Classroom/ Phone/Internet 
Red Oak Junior Senior High School Campus  

May 9, 2023 

The special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Red Oak Community School District was 
called to order by President Bret Blackman at 5:30 p.m. at the Red Oak Junior Senior High 
School Virtual Classroom. 
Present 
Directors: Bret Blackman, Roger Carlson, Jackie DeVries, Bryce Johnson, Kathy Walker 
Superintendent Ron Lorenz, Business Manager Deb Drey 
Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Director Walker, second by Director DeVries to approve the agenda with the order of 
agenda items at the discretion of the meeting chair.  Motion carried unanimously. 
Consent Agenda 
Motion by Director Carlson, second by Director Johnson to approve the consent agenda 
including personnel considerations and an out-of-state field trip.  Motion carried 4-0 with 
Director DeVries abstaining. 
Rising Hope Academy Hosting Discussion 
Superintendent Lorenz informed the Board of Directors of a possible partnership with Green 
Hills Area Education Association to host the Rising Hope Academy.  Rising Hope Academy 
provides education for area youth with challenging behaviors and mental health concerns.  The 
partnership will be placed on the next board agenda as an action item. 
Public Hearing on the IES Partial Reroof Project 
President Blackman opened the public hearing regarding the plans, specifications, form of 
contract, and estimated cost of the Inman Elementary School partial reroofing project at 5:39 
p.m. Superintendent Lorenz and Daric O’Neal of Alley, Poyner, Macchietto Architecture
presented information and answered board members’ questions regarding the IES partial reroof
project.  There were no public comments.  President Blackman closed the public hearing at 5:44
p.m.
IES Partial Reroof Plans & Specifications
Motion by Director Johnson, second by Director DeVries to approve the Inman Elementary
School partial reroof plans and specifications as presented.  Motion carried unanimously.
IES Partial Reroof Form of Contract
Motion by Director Carlson, second by Director DeVries to approve the Inman Elementary
School partial reroof form of contract as presented.  Motion carried unanimously.
IES Partial Reroof Estimated Cost
Motion by Director Johnson, second by Director Carlson to approve the estimated cost of
$275,000 for the Inman Elementary School partial reroof. Motion carried unanimously.



Continuation of May 9, 2023 Meeting Minutes-Page 2 
APMA Letter of Agreement 
Motion by Director Carlson, second by Director Walker to approve the letter of agreement with 
Alley, Poyner, Macchietto Architecture for design services and coordination of the bid process 
for the Inman Elementary School partial reroof project in the amount of $12,000.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
IES Partial Reroof Project Contract 
Motion by Director DeVries, second by Director Johnson to award the Inman Elementary School 
partial reroof contract to Elevate Roofing in the amount of $219,228.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
Adjournment 
Motion by Director Carlson, second by Director Walker to adjourn the meeting at 5:49 p.m.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

Next Board of Directors Meeting Wednesday, May 17, 2023 – 5:30 p.m. 
Virtual Classroom/Phone/Internet 
Red Oak Junior Senior High School Campus 

__________________________ __________________________ 
Bret Blackman, President   Deb Drey, Board Secretary 



Continuation of April 19, 2023 Meeting Minutes - Page 2 
FY23 Budget Amendment 
Motion by Director Carlson, second by Director Walker to approve the FY23 Budget Adjustment 
Resolution.  Motion carried unanimously. 
FY2024 Budget Approval 
Motion by Director Walker, second by Director DeVries to approve the FY24 Certified Budget.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

Director DeVries left the meeting at 6:01 p.m. 
FY24 Budget Adjustment Resolution  
Motion by Director Carlson, second by Director Walker to approve the FY24 Budget Adjustment 
Resolution. Motion carried 3 - 0. 
FY24 Bond Surplus Levy 
Motion by Director Walker, second by Director Carlson to approve the FY Bond Surplus Levy.  
Motion carried 3 - 0. 

Director DeVries returned to the meeting at 6:04 p.m. 
Health Savings Account Administrative Vendor 
Motion by Director Carlson, second by Director Walker to approve iSolved as the Health 
Savings Account Administrative Vendor.  Motion carried unanimously. 
Timberline Billing Service LLC Agreement 
Motion by Director Walker, second by Director DeVries to approve the Timberline Billing 
Service LLC agreement for Medicaid reimbursement services.  Motion carried unanimously. 
Infinite Campus Software Renewal 
Motion by Director Carlson, second by Director Walker to approve the renewal of Infinite 
Campus Student Information Systems Software for FY24.  Motion carried unanimously. 
2023 Summer School Structure 
Motion by Director Carlson, second by Director DeVries to approve the proposed 2023 Summer 
School Structure.  Motion carried unanimously. 
Concurrent Enrollment 
Motion by Director DeVries, second by Director Walker to approve the 23-24 Concurrent 
Enrollment (college credit, courses, career, and technical education) with Southwestern 
Community College. Motion carried unanimously. 
2023-2024 High School Course Handbook 
Motion by Director Carlson, second by Director Walker to approve the 2023-2024 High School 
Course Handbook. Motion carried unanimously. 
Amendment to District’s Teacher Leadership and Compensation Plan 
Motion by Director DeVries, second by Director Walker to approve the proposed amendment to 
the District’s Teacher Leadership and Compensation plan.  Motion carried unanimously.  
Girls’ Wrestling Interscholastic Activity Sharing 
Motion by Director Carlson, second by Director DeVries to approve the activity sharing of Girls’ 
Interscholastic Wrestling with Griswold Community School District for the 2023-2024 school 
year.  Motion carried unanimously.  



Continuation of Apr 19, 2023 Meeting Minutes - Page 3 
Cell Phone Use During School Day Discussion 
The Board discussed the recent survey regarding cell phones in the classroom and the current 
cell phone policies for Inman Elementary and the Junior/Senior High School during school 
hours.  Nate Perrien and Jane Chaillie discussed the current cell phone policies for each building.  
Discussion of possible solutions ensued. 
Monthly Board Meeting Schedule 
The Board revisited the current schedule of one board meeting per month in lieu of the two 
meetings per month.  The general consensus was the current policy of one meeting per month 
was sufficient. 
Closed Session 
Entered into closed session for the Superintendent’s Work Evaluation pursuant to to Iowa Code 
Section 21.5 (1)(i) at 7:13 p.m. and exited at 7:28 p.m. 
Adjournment 
Motion by Director DeVries, second by Director Carlson to adjourn the meeting at 7:28 p.m.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

Next Board of Directors Meeting Wednesday, May17, 2023 – 5:30 p.m. 
Virtual Classroom/Phone/Internet 
Red Oak Junior Senior High School Campus 

__________________________ __________________________ 
Bret Blackman, President   Heidi Harris, Asst Board Secretary 



Continuation of April 5th meeting minutes – Page 2 
Summer Maintenance Projects 
Adam Wenberg presented information of planned maintenance projects for the summer and 
addressed long-range facilities improvement projects identified by Alley Poyner Macchietto 
Architecture. 
Closed Session 
Motion by Director Carlson, and seconded by Director Walker to enter into a closed session per 
Iowa Code 21.5(1)(k) and 22.7(50) at 6:27 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously.   
Exited closed session at 7:52 p.m. 
Closed Work session at 8:19 p.m. 

__________________________ __________________________ 
Bret Blackman, President   Heidi Harris, Asst Board Secretary 



RED OAK COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 2022 APRIL RECONCILIATION REPORT 

GENERAL FUND MANAGEMENT PHYSICAL PLANT AND DEBT SERVICE SAVE TAXES/REV BONDS BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL 

$ 8,049.79 Beg. Balance 04-01-2023 
Revenue 
Expenditure 
Balance 04-30-2023 

Balance 04-30-2022 

Checking Account .80% 

Beg. Balance 04-01-2023 
Revenue 
Expenditure 
Balance 04-30-2023 

$ 5,343,654.63 $ 
$ 1,997,683.50 $ 
$ 1,063,510.08 $ 
$ 6,277,828.05 $ 

$ 5,932,015.44 $ 

Checking Account $ 

ISJIT 
Petty Cash $ 
Outstanding Checks $ 

$ 

ACTIVITY FUND 

$ 98,266.23 

$ 18,876.00 

$ 20,263.95 
$ 96,878.28 

1,212,911.92 $ 3,009,321.14 $ 1,461,034.52 $ 2,698,689.25 
84,893.26 $ 184,580.31 $ 559,396.08 $ 81,784.25 

$ 16,316.56 $ $ 73,611.66 
1,297,805.18 $ 3,177,584.89 $ 2,020,430.60 $ 2,706,861.84 $ 8,049.79 

1,461,691.46 $ 3,308,565.94 $ 2,042,317.83 $ 2,222,682.34 $ 8,049.79 

15,655,613.73 

100.00 
167,153.38 

15,488,560.35 

NUTRITION FUND 

$ 686,967.33 

$ 67,460.81 
$ 84,978.06 

$ 669,450.08 



Beg Balance (July 1) 

Add: Revenue 

l C  Sales Tax

Interest

Subtotal 

LESS: Expenditures 
Chrome Book Lease 

ROECC Construction Exp 

Admin Office Const Exp 

District Signage 

Trans Office Const Exp 

Trans Office Const Exp 

Rev Bond Pymt Transfer 

Jerry's Basement Waterproof 

Trans Office Const Exp 

Rev Bond Pymt Transfer 

Trans Office Const Exp 

ROECC Abstract 

ROECC Construction Exp 

Chrome Book Lease 

Rev Bond Pymt Transfer 

Boyd Jones-Ad min Center 

Rev Bond Pymt Transfer 

ROECC Lighting 

Consession Stand Breaker 

Rev Bond Pymt Transfer 

Rev Bond Pymt Transfer 

Rev Bond Pymt Transfer 

ASI Signage 

Rev Bond Pymt Transfer 

ASI Signage 

Rev Bond Pymt Transfer 

Subtotal 

Fund Balance 

2020-2021 

$1,888,719 

$950,493 

$3,688 

$2,842,900 

$10,097 

$7,768 

$7,696 

$28,312 

$1,998 

$5,600 

$221,920 

$821 

$984 

$73,973 
$1,521 

$345 

$5,785 

$30,620 

$147,946 

$6,755 

$73,973 
$822 

$852 

$73,973 

$73,973 
$73,973 

$1,236 

$73,973 

$13,090 

$73,973 

$0 

$2,842,900 

Capital Projects Fund 

Beg Balance (July 1) 

Add: Revenue 

l C  Sales Tax

Interest 

Subtotal 

LESS: Expenditures 

Chromebook Lease 

Record FB/BB Fields Deed 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 

District Signage 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Track Incorrectly Coded 

Subtotal 

Fund Balance 

2021-2022 

$1,830,921 

$1,247,814 

$4,218 

$3,082,954 

$10,097 

$22 

$73,807 

$73,807 

$73,801 

$73,807 

$9,895 

$73,807 

$73,807 

$73,807 

$73,807 

$73,807 

$73,807 

$73,807 

-$3,500 

$828,387 

$2,254,567 

Beg Balance (July 1) 

Add: Revenue 

l C  Sales Tax 

Interest

Subtotal 

LESS: Expenditures 

Revenue Bond Payment 

FY22 Expense Paid in FY23 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 
Alley Poyner-Bldg Master Plan 

Alley Poyner-Bldg Master Plan 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Alley Poyner-Bldg Master Plan 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Revenue Bond Payment 

Subtotal 

Fund Balance 

2022-2023 

$2,264,484 

$1,195,137 

$10,170 

$3,469,791 

$73,612 

$3,500 

$73,612 

$73,612 

$73,612 

$73,612 

$9,717 

$6,000 

$73,612 

$7,596 

$73,612 

$73,612 

$73,612 

$73,612 

$762,929 

$2,706,862 



PHYSICAL PLANT AND EQUIPMENT LEVY 

2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 
Beginning Balance (July 1} $2,329,854.73 Beginning Balance (July 1) $ 2,726,998.24 Beginning Balance {July 1) $ 3,193,485.61 

Add: Revenue Add: Revenue Add: Revenue 
Property Taxes $137,149.56 Property Taxes $ 130,392.46 Property Taxes $ 122,164.68 
Voted PPEL $420,570.90 Voted PPEL $ 446,494.67 Voted PPEL $ 420,024.91 
Voted PPEL Surtax $493,222.30 Voted PPEL Surtax $ 174,559.79 Voted PPEL Surtax $ 45,787.95 
Utility Replacement Tax $3,864.00 Utility Replacement Tax $ 3,566.87 Utility Replacement Tax $ 3,689.94 
Utility Replacement Tax (SAVE) $13,925.08 Utility Replacement Tax (SAVE) $ 16,751.07 Utility ReplacementTax (SAVE) $ 13,371.56 
Mobile Home Tax $61.01 Mobile Home Tax $ 45.81 Mobile Home Tax $ 66.85 
Voted PPEL Mobile Home $188.87 Voted PPEL Mobile Home $ 269.31 Voted PPEL Mobile Home $ 88.06 
Military Credit $41.22 Military Credit $ 31.27 Military Credit $ 27.29 
Military Credit (SAVE) $115.82 Military Credit (SAVE) $ 0.56 Military Credit (SAVE) $ 98.69 
Commercial Industrial tax $2,160.74 Commercial Industrial tax $ 2,101.92 Commercial Industrial tax 
Commercial Ind. Voted PPEL $7,786.86 Commercial Ind. Voted PPEL $ 3,814.88 Commercial Ind. Voted PPEL 

Interest $5,392.12 Interest $ 5,991.65 Interest $ 12,328.57 
Sale of Vacant Lot $ 2,000.00 

Prior Year Expenditure 
ERATE Reimbursement 

Subtotal $1,084,478.48 Subtotal 786,020.26 Subtotal 617,648.50 

TOTAL AVAILABLE $3,414,333.21 TOTAL AVAILABLE 3,513,018.50 TOTAL AVAILABLE 3,811,134.11 

LESS: Expenditures LESS: Expenditures LESS: Expenditures 
Chrome Book Lease $84,589.28 Frontline License Renewals $ 17,052.94 Chrome Book Lease {Double Payment) $ 169,794.56 
Frontline Software $16,264.13 US Bank-Chromebook Lease Payment $ 84,897.28 Frontline $license Renewals $ 41,560.28 
ForecastS $22,158.00 ForecastS $ 14,426.00 FY22 Expenses Paid in FY23 $ 18,715.00 
School Bus lease $61,602.40 Software Unlimited $ 8,195.00 Boiler Construction Documents $ 7,000.00 
RO Chrysler-Ford Transport Van $33,987.85 Heartland lnsealators $ 5,120.00 Portable Rental $ 34,356.02 
Chrome Book Lease $308.00 Bus lease $ 61,602.40 Bus Lease $ 61,602.40 
Rent Council Bluffs Sp Ed $728.08 Rent Council Bluffs Sp Ed $ 259.08 Garage Doors-Bus Barn $ 11,608.00 
Rent Council Bluffs Sp Ed $732.80 Rent Council Bluffs Sp Ed $ 2,202.60 Chrome Book lease (Double Pymt Refund) $ (84,897.28) 
Rent Council Bluffs Sp Ed $759.74 Track Resurfacing $ 4,000.00 Portable Rental $ 3,015.34 
Rent Council Bluffs Sp Ed $791.55 Press Box Chairs $ 419.93 
Rent Council Bluffs Sp Ed $1,346.07 Track Resurfacing $ 82,000.00 
Infinite Campus Software Renewal $23,233.00 Portable Rental $ 2,978.20 
Rent Council Bluffs Sp Ed $803.32 Boiler Construction Documents $ 3,500.00 
Rent Council Bluffs Sp Ed $805.35 Portable Rental $ 2,968.20 
Rent Council Bluffs Sp Ed $803.80 Rent Council Bluffs Sp Ed $ 2,484.44 

Portable Rental $ 2,968.20 
Lunch Van $ 57,186.00 
Gym Floor Resurfacing $ 5,678.50 
Portable Rental $ 2,968.20 
Rent Council Bluffs Sp Ed $ 2,272.87 
Portable Rental $ 2,968.20 
HS Boiler $ 178,070.00 
Software Subscription $ 3,100.00 
Rent Council Bluffs Sp Ed $ 1,947.40 
Portable Rental $ 2,968.20 
K-12 Docs $ 1,435.00 
Gym Floor Resurfacing $ 3,920.00 
Rent Council Bluffs Sp Ed $ 2,003.36 
Portable Rental $ 2,958.20 
Architect Svcs $ 6,000.00 

Subtotal $248,913.37 Subtotal 197,755.30 Subtotal 633,549.22 
Cash Balance $3,165,419.84 Cash Balance 3,315,263.20 Cash Balance 3,177,584.89 































AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is entered into this 19th, day of April, 2023, by 
and between GREEN HILLS AEA ("GHAEA"), and Red Oak Community School District (the 
"School District"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the School District is in need of qualified personnel to provide certain 
educational services on an occasional, part-time basis; and 

WHEREAS, GHAEA has qualified personnel who can provide the needed services to the 
School District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and for 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Purpose.  The parties have entered into this Agreement for the purpose of setting
forth the terms and conditions relating to the School District's use of GHAEA employees to provide 
services to the School District.   

2. Scope of Services.  The School District shall purchase such services of GHAEA
employees and for such number of days as specifically identified on Exhibit A, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference.  The school district shall provide a private space for 
individual therapy. GHAEA shall be responsible for assigning a GHAEA employee or employees 
to the School District.  The GHAEA employee or employees shall perform the duties reasonably 
requested by the School District, and such services shall be performed at the School District's 
facility or facilities.  Any GHAEA employee shall be considered an employee or agent of GHAEA, 
and at no time shall any GHAEA employee be considered to be an employee of the School District. 
GHAEA shall be responsible for complying with all local, state and federal tax laws relating to its 
employees, specifically including, but not limited to, the payment and reporting of all federal and 
state income tax withholding and social security taxes. 

3. Term.  This Agreement shall be effective for the 2023 – 2024 school year, unless
earlier terminated as provided herein. 

4. Termination.  Any party may terminate this Agreement if one of the other parties
fails to comply with or otherwise perform its obligations as set forth in this Agreement (a 
"Default"), which Default continues uncured for a period of thirty (30) days after the party claiming 
a Default has given written notice to the other party describing the nature of the Default and 
demanding its cure.  In addition, either party may terminate this Agreement at any time upon ninety 
(90) days' prior written notice to the other party.



2 

5. Payment.  The School District shall be responsible for paying the salary and
benefits per diem paid by GHAEA to each employee assigned to the School District as set forth 
on Exhibit A.  GHAEA shall invoice the School District semiannually in the months of January 
and June for services rendered.   

6. Indemnification.

(a) The School District shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless GHAEA and
its officers, directors, employees, agents and other representatives from and against any 
and all loss, claim, liability, damage, cost or expense (including, without limitation, court 
costs and attorneys' fees) arising in connection with the School District's performance 
under this Agreement, except those losses, claims, liabilities, damages, costs or expenses 
arising out of the willful misconduct of GHAEA, its employees, agents or other 
representatives. 

(b) GHAEA shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the School District and
its officers, directors, employees, agents and other representatives from and against any 
and all loss, claim, liability, damage, cost or expense (including, without limitation, court 
costs and attorneys' fees) arising in connection with GHAEA's performance under this 
Agreement, except those losses, claims, liabilities, damages, costs or expenses arising out 
of the willful misconduct of the School District, its employees, agents or other 
representatives. 

7. Limitation of Liability.  NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE
OTHER PARTY FOR ANY INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED
TO, ANY LOSS OF USE, LOSS OF BUSINESS OR LOSS OF PROFIT.

8. Miscellaneous.

(a) Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the United States of America and the State of Iowa as applied 
to contracts entered into and performed entirely within the State by residents thereof.  All 
disputes arising under this Agreement shall be brought in the District Court of the State of 
Iowa in Pottawattamie County or the United States District Court for the Southern District 
of Iowa, Western Division, as permitted by law.  The District Court of Pottawattamie 
County and the United States District Court for the Southern District of Iowa, Western 
Division shall each have non-exclusive jurisdiction over disputes under this Agreement. 
The School District and GHAEA each consent to the personal jurisdiction of the above 
courts. 

(b) Attorneys' Fees.  In the event any proceeding or lawsuit is brought by
GHAEA or the School District in connection with this Agreement, the prevailing party in 
such proceeding shall be entitled to receive its costs, expert witness fees and reasonable 
attorneys' fees, including costs and fees on appeal. 



3 

(c) Notice.  Any notice or demand desired or required to be given hereunder
shall be in writing and deemed given when personally delivered or three (3) days after it is 
deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, sent certified or registered and 
addressed as follows: 

If to the School District, to: 

Red Oak Community School District 
604 S. Broadway 
Red Oak, IA 51566 
Attn: Mr. Ron Lorenz 

If to GHAEA, to: 

Green Hills AEA 
Halverson Center for Education 
24997 Hwy 92 
Council Bluffs, IA  51503 
Attn:  Mrs. Kelly Allen 

 or to such other address or person as hereafter shall be designated in writing by the 
applicable party. 

(d) Assignment.  No party shall assign its rights or obligations under this
Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld.   

(e) Severability.  In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be
unenforceable or invalid under any applicable law or be so held by applicable court 
decision, such unenforceability or invalidity shall not render this Agreement unenforceable 
or invalid as a whole, and, in such event, such provision shall be changed and interpreted 
so as to best accomplish the objectives of such unenforceable or invalid provision within 
the limits of applicable law or applicable court decision. 

(f) Waiver.  No waiver by either party of any breach of this Agreement shall
be a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach.  No waiver by either party of any right 
under this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of any other right. 

(g) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two or
more counterparts, each of which will be considered an original, but all of which together 
will constitute one and the same instrument. 



4 

(h) Entire Agreement; Modification.  This Agreement constitutes the complete
and exclusive understanding and agreement of the parties and supersedes all prior 
understandings and agreements, whether written or oral, with respect to the subject matter 
hereof.  The terms and conditions of any invoice, purchase order or other instrument issued 
by the parties in connection with this Agreement which add to or differ from the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement shall be of no force or effect.  Any waiver, modification or 
amendment of any provision of this Agreement will be effective only if in writing and 
signed by the parties hereto. 

(i) Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall
inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, legal 
representatives and permitted assigns. 

(j) Construction.  This Agreement shall not be construed more strongly against
any party regardless of who was more responsible for its preparation.  Words and phrases 
shall be construed as in the singular or plural number, and as masculine, feminine or neuter 
gender, according to the context. 

(k) Headings.  Section headings are used for convenience only and shall not be
considered a part of this Agreement or be used to interpret the meaning of any term hereof. 

(l) Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied,
is intended to confer upon any party other than the parties hereto (and their respective heirs, 
successors, legal representatives and permitted assigns) any rights, remedies, liabilities or 
obligations under or by reason of this Agreement. 

(m) Remedies.  The rights and remedies provided herein are cumulative and are
not exclusive of any remedies that might be available to any party at law or in equity or 
otherwise. 

(n) Waiver of Jury Trial.  THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AND GHAEA EACH
HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVE ALL RIGHTS TO 
TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM ARISING 
OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT. 



5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date 
and year first set forth above. 

GREEN HILLS AEA 

By:___________________________________ Date: _________________ 
Title:            Board President

RED OAK COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:___________________________________ Date: _________________ 
Title:        Board President

Apr 25 2023

(approved 4/25/23 Bd. Mtg.)



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Services shall be provided by GHAEA for a total of 144 days (0.80) FTE as noted below. 

Master Social Worker Services 

Melissa Godfread-Hobbie 
4 day(s) per week 
Salary and Benefits:  $556 per day 
Plus associated travel 



Audit Trail

Document Details

Title Red Oak Community School District MSW 23-24.pdf

File Name Red Oak Community School District MSW 23-24.pdf

Document ID 28a1a4d6993c4ac38ec35afda08858e0

Fingerprint 055a607ae01ce7a27759c5b392b19246

Status Completed

Document History

Document
Created

Document Created by Linda Perdue (lperdue@ghaea.org)
Fingerprint: 25f3c2bd37b1d5b2e6433ca4b14ac217

Apr 24 2023
06:19PM

America/Chicago

Document
Sent Document Sent to Christine M. Blum (boardpresident@ghaea.org)

Apr 24 2023
06:19PM

America/Chicago

Document
Viewed

Document Viewed by Christine M. Blum (boardpresident@ghaea.org)
IP: 173.215.72.21

Apr 25 2023
09:17PM

America/Chicago

Document
Signed

Document Signed by Christine M. Blum (boardpresident@ghaea.org)
IP: 173.215.72.21

Apr 25 2023
09:18PM

America/Chicago

Document
Completed

This document has been completed.
Fingerprint: 055a607ae01ce7a27759c5b392b19246

Apr 25 2023
09:18PM

America/Chicago



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)

Multi-Year Program

Red Oak High School (9-12) and Red Oak Community School District

WHEREAS, this Memorandum of Understanding, entered into between iJAG, Red Oak High School (9-12), and the
Red Oak Community School District, outlines the elements of a partnership to successfully implement and
sustain the Jobs for America's Graduates (JAG) Multi-Year Program as operated and managed by Iowa Jobs for
America's Graduates (iJAG).

WHEREAS, iJAG is a non-profit organization supported by corporate and foundation contributions, public sector
grants, and participating school funds. iJAG creates business, industry, and education partnerships committed to
achieving the mission of JAG. The mission of JAG is to ensure that youth facing multiple challenges to graduation
remain in school, attain basic employability skills through classroom and work-based learning experiences, are
provided with academic support services, graduate, and receive twelve (12) months of follow-up services by the
iJAG Education Specialist. Follow-up services help ensure iJAG participants successfully transition into a career
and/or pursue postsecondary education to enhance their career entry and advancement.

WHEREAS, the five primary performance goals of the multi-year program are: 90% graduation/GED rate, 80%
overall success twelve months after graduation, with participants employed in a job leading to a career, in the
military, or enrolled in postsecondary education or training, or a combination of work and postsecondary
education, 60% of graduates are employed, 60% of employed graduates are in full-time jobs leading to careers,
and 80% of the graduates are employed full-time and/or are combining work and school. Statewide and school
performance outcomes are used in JAG's accreditation process. State and local affiliates must receive standard
accreditation to become and remain a member of the JAG National Network.

WHEREAS the responsibilities of iJAG include:

1. Maintain an active, involved iJAG Board of Directors to provide oversight to the implementation,
operation, and continuous improvement of programs in Iowa, which satisfy the accreditation standards
of the National JAG Program Model.

2. Employ a full-time, year-round, jointly accepted individual with the requested certification to fulfill the
responsibilities of the iJAG Education Specialist.

3. Develop and establish positive working relationships within the community and connections at the state
and local level for comprehensive school improvement, career and technical education, building
resiliency, transition, career education guidance, Workforce Development, and Economic Development.

4. Participate in the annual I&I Ceremony, iJAG Leadership Development Conference, Legislative Day,
Career Development Conference, and iJAG Nation Leadership Conference, utilizing input from students,
Education Specialists, and the Board of Directors.

5. iJAG Management will provide the following:
a. Support to Education Specialists
b. Technical assistance and training to the iJAG Education Specialist and other essential school staff

on successfully implementing and operating a JAG-accredited program
c. Staff development for all Education Specialists to ensure understanding of the JAG and the

middle school models, share best practices through planned local/state staff development
activities, and attend the annual Learning Summit and other annual training.

d. Conduct frequent school quality assurance reviews on students, services, and outcomes and
consulting visits to offer encouragement, support, and feedback.

i. Program managers will meet with the school administrator leading the iJAG partnership
during these visits to ensure satisfaction and collaboration.



ii. Every 3-4 years, JAG will conduct a site review and prepare an accreditation report for
consideration by the Board of Directors, iJAG administration, school, and Education
Specialist.

WHEREAS, the responsibilities of the Red Oak Community School District include:

1. Buildings will adhere to an "onboarding checklist" to be compiled by the iJAG program team. The list
checklist will consist of but is not limited to the following:

a. Issue a District ID badge allowing iJAG Specialist access to buildings.
b. Provide appropriate space for the iJAG Education Specialist, including classroom space and office

space that provides privacy with the students as necessary and contributes to in-kind services.
c. Provide utilities, computer, copier, internet access, classroom materials, supplies, etc., like other

teachers and school staff.
d. Provide access and training to iJAG Specialists on the school's database system and any other

technology available to the Specialists within the building.
i. Education Specialists will have access to all student information, including but not

limited to grades, demographics, credits, behaviors, schedules, free and reduced lunch
status, IEP/504 Plans, parent/guardian contact information, etc., for all students to assist
with student selection.

e. Include iJAG Specialists in all safety training drills, Mandatory Reporting Training, and all other
training and professional development required of all staff as appropriate.

f. Assign iJAG Specialists a teacher mentor within the assigned building.
g. Collaborate with iJAG to ensure iJAG paperwork and school paperwork completion and address

media releases.
2. Incorporate iJAG Education Specialist in electronic notifications of school updates and notices.
3. School Administration will ensure the following:

a. iJAG is included in the Student Handbook/Course Catalog and ensures guidance staff assists with
student referral and selection.

b. Class sizes will be, at most, 17 students per class in any class period. The iJAG learner-centered
instructional strategy and model, Project Based Learning (PBL), requires small class sizes to be
successful.

c. Work with the iJAG Specialist to establish an in-school Advisory Committee to assist the
Education Specialist in recruiting, screening, and selecting students most in need of services and
who meet JAG criteria to receive services and to provide ongoing support for students and the
iJAG program.

i. The committee will include one representative from the administration, counseling staff,
the faculty, and the Education Specialist.

a. Note: The school may use an existing committee if it will also perform the
additional functions of the iJAG Advisory Committee.

ii. The iJAG Specialist and the school must agree upon each student before being added to
the roster.

iii. Creating iJAG classes is imperative for building connections and creating belonging;
because of this, adding students after the adding and dropping classes deadlines is
unrecommended.

iv. Seniors can join iJAG only during the beginning of the year senior year. The Program
Manager must approve any time after that.

d. Infuse iJAG and their Career Association with other school programs and services where
appropriate.



e. Support the Education Specialists' efforts to engage parents, employers, and the community.
f. Support the Education Specialists' efforts to perform mandatory engagements with employers,

job opportunities, and potential placements off-campus.
g. Work with the Program Manager to:

i. Complete the Observation Rubric twice yearly to assess the Education Specialists'
performance.

ii. Provide building supervision of the Education Specialist.
iii. Conduct regular meetings to evaluate the partnership and progress of the iJAG program.

4. The District will provide the following:
a. Meetings with iJAG leadership quarterly to review data and discuss the partnership
b. Transportation for students to attend statewide events, Career Association events, employer

engagement opportunities, college visits, and community service opportunities
i. Including providing the necessary insurance coverage for students to attend these

opportunities as their participation is considered a school-sponsored event.
ii. Allow other staff to serve as chaperones and activity judges at these events when

possible.
iii. Education Specialists will present the event dates to the appropriate school personnel at

the beginning of the school year and obtain prior approval in the expected timeframes.
iv. The school district will allow the Education Specialist access to smaller district vehicles

when available for small group activities related to career association and WBL.
c. The cost of substitute teachers for at least ten school days, eight (8) hours of iJAG instruction per

day, per iJAG Specialist, as necessary and with prior approval
i. Substitute days are half or full-day increments.
ii. Substitute days include personal sick days, iJAG training, and iJAG-sponsored statewide

events. The school will cover all other days that a sub is needed (employer
engagements).

iii. Any days outside of the above iJAG covers
d. A representative from the school administration (ideally the Principal or Vice Principal) to attend

the annual principal's meetings, coordinated by iJAG administration

WHEREAS the responsibilities of the iJAG Education Specialist include:

1. iJAG Education Specialists' primary role is to deliver the multi-year school iJAG program with fidelity.
a. The program incorporates a learner-centered approach, focused on the thirty-seven (37) core

competencies endorsed by JAG.
2. iJAG Specialists may have one other school-related duty.
3. The Education Specialist will fulfill the following:

a. Recruit and select up to sixty (60) qualified students for the program who satisfy the criteria set
out by iJAG/JAG.

i. Students must need, want, and benefit from the services.
b. Establish an in-school Advisory Committee with school administration to recruit, screen, and

select students most needing services.
c. Organize the student-led Career Association.

i. Each iJAG student will join the Career Association for belonging, a sense of ownership,
building self-esteem, and developing leadership and teamwork skills.

ii. Each student must complete at least fifteen (15) annual hours of community service,
individually or within groups.

d. Assist the Career Association in raising $350.00 annually through a fundraising event.



i. The money will go to supporting their iJAG program.
ii. Monies over $350 will be used for Career Association activities during the year.
iii. Monies raised will be stored securely until the Program Manager can obtain
iv. Monies will be held and accounted for in iJAG accounts.

e. Develop work-based learning and/or job shadow experiences in conjunction with the
administration.

i. Partner with the school on already established work-based learning programs and
employer engagement experiences

ii. Ensuring follow-up students also receive the same work-based learning and employer
engagement opportunities.

iii. Ensure juniors and seniors have access and opportunities to participate in dual credit
classes with the local community college, as applicable.

f. Establish and maintain connections at the school and district levels.
4. Education Specialist will:

a. Attend and participate in iJAG staff development experiences, mandatory staff meetings, and
student events.

b. Work with iJAG administration to assist with special events or peer-based training as needed.
c. Provide career guidance and counseling. Connect and refer students to school or

community-based services to overcome barriers to advancement, employment, and career entry
and advancement.

d. Work with students and other staff/faculty to provide remediation and/or tutoring required to
improve their basic education skills and advance to the next grade level.

i. Provide necessary services to help students overcome barriers to staying in school,
graduating, becoming employed, and/or pursuing a postsecondary education, including
follow-up with teachers in classes that students are not passing or falling behind.

e. Education Specialists running the 11/12 iJAG program will contact graduates and non-graduates
monthly and employers bimonthly during the 12-month follow-up period.

f. Provide personal and confidential information for screening per local and state laws governing
those working directly with students in schools.

g. Complete and maintain all paper and electronic documentation as required by iJAG.
i. Submit properly completed written and electronic documentation as directed by the

iJAG administration.
ii. Work with iJAG administration to complete all monitoring, evaluations, agreements, and

documentation required by funding sources.
h. Sign the Memorandum of Understanding as part of their contract and evaluation.
i. Participate in evaluations conducted by the iJAG administration twice a year.
j. Provide reports throughout the year on various data points, such as but not limited to

programming, GPA, attendance, barriers, etc., to the school and iJAG administration.
k. Understand and adhere to the building's policy regarding leaving the school building during

contract hours.
i. Education Specialists will seek prior approval from their Program Manager before leaving

the school building during contract hours.
ii. Education Specialists will notify their building supervisor when leaving the building

during contract hours.



WHEREAS, the responsibilities of Jobs for America's Graduates include:
1. Provide onsite assistance for Education Specialists and iJAG administration upon request.
2. Make its copyrighted model books and materials available, operational guides, administrative manuals,

electronic data management systems, etc. Provide Education Specialists with the opportunity to attend
the annual JAG National Training Seminar.

3. Conduct accreditation of the iJAG program to ensure conformity with the standards promulgated by JAG.
4. Make available the protected trademark, "Jobs for America's Graduates," and associated emblem and

copyrighted materials directly related to and limited to the periods in which the program is delivered in a
manner consistent with the mission and goals of the JAG Program Model and terms of this
Memorandum of Understanding.

PARTNERSHIP COMMITMENT
This Memorandum of Understanding begins July 1, 2023, and runs through the 2023-24 school year.
The partners mutually agree that the iJAG program will operate within the principles, policies, procedures, and
JAG standards outlined in this document and agreed to by the participating school, iJAG, and Jobs for America's
Graduates.
It is mutually agreed that efforts will be made to continue the iJAG/JAG accredited program year after year based
on funding availability, an adequate number of students to make the program cost-effective, and mutual
satisfaction with the program.
Red Oak Community School District agrees to pay $50,000.00 for the 2023-24 program school year to iJAG. To be
invoiced at a later date (see below).

Please identify the individual where iJAG should send invoice to:

Name: Email:

Red Oak High School (9-10) Program Year 2023-2024 $25,000.00

Red Oak High School (11-12) Program Year 2023-2024 $25,000.00

Red Oak Community School District Total for 2023-24 $50,000.00

Signatures Below:

Iowa Jobs for America’s Graduates Red Oak Community School District

Signature Signature

Print Wendy Mihm-Herold Print

Title President/CEO Title

Date 5/4/2023 Date



RED OAK COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT & WEST CENTRAL COMMUNITY ACTION 
 PRESCHOOL CONTRACTED SERVICES AGREEMENT 

West Central Community Action Head Start Program, hereinafter referred to as “Provider” and 
the Red Oak Community School District, hereinafter referred to as “Partner” wish to enter into 
an agreement under which Partner shall furnish certain designated services necessary to 
implementation of WCCA program operations funded by a Department of Health and Human 
Services Grant.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the following terms and definitions shall 
be used:  

TERMS DEFINITIONS 

Provider: West  Central Community Action (WCCA) 

Provider Address: 1408 “A” Highway 44 
PO Box 709 
Harlan, IA 51537-0709 

Partner: Red Oak Community School District (ROCSD) 

Partner Address: Red Oak Community School District 

2011 N. 8th Street 

Red Oak, IA 51566 

Site Location: Red Oak Child Development Center 
400 West 2nd Street  
Red Oak, IA  51566

Covered Primary Services: 

Required Service Group for 
Primary Services: 

Minimum Services: 

Health, Education, Nutrition and 
Disabilities portion of Center Based Head 
Start Programming. 

The Partner will serve 20 Head Start income 
eligible children.  

The Partner will operate the identified 
preschool classroom(s) working towards a 
minimum of 1,020 teacher/student contact 
hours per year exclusive of school holidays, 
weather-related closings and staff professional 
development days at all of the identified site 
locations. 

The Partner will meet full funded enrollment 
number by September 30, 2023. If the full 
funded enrollment number is not met then Head 
Start will utilize the vacant slot and any vacant 



TERMS DEFINITIONS 

slot within the school year if no waitlist is 
available. 

Agreement Funding for Services: 

Method of Payments: 

Funding is based on the number of Head Start 
eligible children enrolled and served up to the 
maximum allotted slots identified above during 
the course of each month throughout the 2023-
2024 school year.  

The Partner will submit a monthly invoice by 
the 5th day of the following month for the 
previous month of service.  The invoice will 
include the number of children that received 
services and the month being billed.  The 
Partner will be paid $450 per eligible child 
receiving services per month each month the 
child is actively enrolled not to exceed a total 
annual funding amount of $81,000.00. 

Agreement Guiding Principles: Coordinate a comprehensive system of 
activities, policies, and procedures among the 
named parties which guide and support their 
delivery of services to children and their 
families. 

Create and maintain a meaningful partnership 
to promote school readiness so that children 
who are preschool age, receive comprehensive 
services to prepare them for elementary 
school and to address any potential 
“achievement gap”. 

Plan and implement strategies based on 
practice and research that have proven to 
support children’s school success. 

As part of the Head Start Program 
Performance Standards, the ROCSD will 
ensure their positive guidance and discipline 
practices are developmentally appropriate 
and follow best practice recommendations for 
Early Childhood Education. 

Respect the uniqueness of each locality’s 



TERMS DEFINITIONS 

needs and resources. Promote the 
involvement of members of the early child 
care and education communities. 

Share commitment, cooperation, and 
collaboration for a coordinated service 
delivery system. 
Both parties will provide Professional 
Development opportunities as prescribed by 
the Iowa Department of Education and 
HHS/ACF at no cost. 

Program Curriculum and Head Start 
Program Performance Standards 
Monitoring: 

The Connect4Learning (C4L) Curriculum and 
the Head Start Program Standards (HSPPS) 
will be followed at the identified ROCSD 
Preschool Classrooms. 

Head Start staff will support and monitor the 
identified ROCSD preschool classrooms at 
least three times annually to ensure that 
HSPPS are being met. Provider monitoring 
reports will be provided to the Partner staff 
by the 15th of the following month. 

The ROCSD is responsible to report any 
incidents, allegations, or misconduct of Head 
Start funded children to the Head Start 
Director within 24 hours of occurrence.  

 Please see attachment for monitoring items. 

Confidentiality: The Provider and Partner acknowledge 
confidentiality requirements that each must 
follow regarding the sharing and release, with 
the consent of families, of personally 
identifiable information regarding children 
and families. 

Each party will protect the rights of young 
children with respect to records and reports 
created, maintained, and used by each. It is 
the intent of this agreement to ensure that 
parents have rights of access and rights of 
privacy with respect to such reports and 
records, and that applicable State and Federal 



TERMS DEFINITIONS 

laws for exercise of these rights be strictly 
followed. 

Collaboration Meetings and Dispute 
Resolution: 

The Partner and Provider will first attempt to 
resolve any disputes or to solve problems 
among themselves.  

Issues will be resolved as they arise at the 
lowest level possible.  The chain of command 
will be followed. 

Schedule Administrative meetings on a monthly 
basis.  Meetings will occur face-to-face or via 
Zoom to review local agreements, plan 
collaborative activities, and resolve issues. 

Covered Primary Services: 
Partner Responsibilities: 

Will assign a full time Preschool 
Administrator to oversee the preschool 
classrooms throughout the school district. 

Teachers will conduct two home visits per 
school year for each family. 

Teachers will conduct two parent 
conferences per school year. 

Provide nursing services. 

The hiring, supervision, employment and 
professional development of preschool 
certified teachers and qualified substitutes 
that comply with the Head Start Program 
Performance Standards. 

Maintain accreditations, perform the 
registration and participant screening 
process for 3 and 4 year old children. 

Provide meal service to children at the 
identified location(s). 

Non-federal share match documentation for 
donated items such as: classroom staff wages, 



TERMS DEFINITIONS 

fringe benefits and associated costs not paid 
with Head Start funds, classroom 
materials/curriculum, furnishings, professional 
development and custodial services. 

Covered Primary Services: 
Provider Responsibilities: 

Provide a Head Start School and Community 
Partnership Coordinator who meets monthly 
with the preschool administrator as a Liaison 
between the two parties. 

Provide one (1) Family Advocate to support the 
needs of the Head Start children and families 
being served at each of the Provider’s site 
locations and classrooms. 

Non-Federal Share Match 
Documentation: 

The Partner will complete and submit to the 
Provider the Head Start Non-Federal Share 
Form at the beginning of the 2023 – 2024 
school year. 

Agreement And Termination Terms: August 1, 2023 through July 31, 2024 

The Provider and Partner are not bound by this 
agreement for more than the 2023-2024 school 
year. 

The parties agree to abide by the specific terms and provisions of the following attachments 
which are incorporated into this agreement by reference and made a part of it: 

 Basic Contract Provisions.

 Non-Federal Share Match Contribution Form.

 Pre-K Contracted Items.

Signature Page 

Partner: Provider: 

Red Oak Community School District: West Central Community Action: 

By: ___________________________ By: __________________________ 
 Superintendent  Wendy Mueller, Executive Director 

Date: __________________________ Date: ________________________ 



BASIC CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

I. PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF AGREEMENT:

The purpose of this Agreement is to set out the terms and conditions between the Provider and 
Partner. 

Achievement of the goals and objectives of the Head Start Program requires commitment from 
all levels and persons involved in the program.  Policies, regulations and guidelines contribute 
to the effective and efficient process necessary for goal attainment. Both parties encourage and 
expect philosophical commitment to the Head Start goals, as well as compliance with the 
approved grant application, the Preschool Contracted Services Agreement, all policies, 
regulations, and guidelines of HHS/ACF. 

The services to be provided under this Agreement are designed to provide the following 
services at the same site setting and subject to the availability of funding: 

A. Financial support for a minimum of 1,020 teacher/student contact time;
B. Transportation services to eligible rural children;
C. Professional development for Preschool Teachers and Assistant Teachers;
D. Provider Monitoring Reports of ongoing monitoring of Head Start Program Performance

Standards and
E. Transition planning and implementation for children and families into the K-12 ROCSD

system.

II. PARTNER SERVICE RESPONSIBILITIES:

Partner shall provide the specified Covered Primary Services at the designated Location of 
Services for the specified Term of Agreement in accordance with Head Start Performance 
Standards.  The maximum number of children to be served is 20 

In addition to the specific provisions of this Agreement, Partner shall comply with all applicable 
state, federal, and local laws, rules, and regulations. 

III. FUNDING:

Provider is responsible for no more than the specified Maximum Funding Level in Head Start 
Program funds to implement this Preschool Contracted Services Agreement. It is expressly 
understood and agreed that in no event will the total amount paid under this Agreement 
exceed the Maximum Funding Level for full and complete performance unless additional 
funding is specifically authorized in writing by the Provider. 



IV. PROVIDER AND PARTNER METHODS FOR FISCAL MANAGEMENT:

Provider and Partner  shall maintain such records and accounts, including property, personnel, 
and financial, as are deemed necessary by the Iowa Department of Education to assure proper 
accounting for all funds provided for this program. These records will be made available for 
audit purposes and will be retained for four(4) years after the expiration date of this contract 
and any renewals of it, unless permission to destroy them is granted by both the Partner and 
the Iowa Department of Education.   

V. PARTNER PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT:

Partner shall assure, certify, document and maintain that they are in compliance with the Head 
Start Performance Standard 1302.90 Personnel Policies: 

There is a personnel management system covering staff that is consistent with the regulations 
set forth in Head Start Program Performance Standard (1302.90) and provides the Provider 
access to the Partner’s personnel files, policies and procedures. This shall include, but not be 
limited to, a current organizational chart, performance appraisals and the sections that 
outline the Partner’s policies on conducting interviews, verifying references, conduct a sex 
offender registry check and obtain one of the following: (i) State criminal history records, 
including fingerprint checks; or (ii) Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal history records, 
including fingerprint checks. The Partner has ninety (90) days after an employee is hired to 
complete the background check process by obtaining: (i) Whichever check listed above was 
not obtained prior to the date of hire; and, (ii) Child abuse and neglect state registry check, if 
available. 

Partner will establish and maintain written personnel policies and procedures that are 
approved by the ROCSD school board and are available to all district staff. 

Before a person is hired, directly or through contract, including transportation staff and 
contractors, a program must conduct an interview, verify references, conduct a sex offender 
registry check and obtain one of the following: (i) State criminal history records, including 
fingerprint checks; or, (ii) Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal history records, including 
fingerprint checks. The district has 90 days after an employee is hired to complete the 
background check process by obtaining: (i) whichever check listed above of this section was not 
obtained prior to the date of hire; and, the child abuse and neglect state registry check, if 
available. 

Partner must review the information found in each employment application and complete 
background check to assess the relevancy of any issue uncovered by the complete background 
check including any arrest, pending criminal charge, or conviction and must use Child Care and 
Development Fund (CCDF) disqualification factors described in 42 U.S.C. 9858f(c)(1)(D) and 42 
U.S.C. 9858f(h)(1) to determine whether the prospective employee can be hired or the current 
employee must be terminated. 



Partner must ensure a newly hired employee, consultant, or contractor does not have 
unsupervised access to children until the complete background check process is complete. 

Partner must conduct the complete background check for each employee, consultant, or 
contractor at least once every five (5) years which must include each of the four checks listed in 
above, and review and make employment decisions based on the information as described 
above, unless the program can demonstrate to the Provider that it has a more stringent system 
in place that will ensure child safety. 

Partner must consider current and former program parent for employment vacancies for which 
such parents apply and are qualified. 

Partner must ensure all staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers abide by the program’s 
standards of conduct that: (i) Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers implement 
positive strategies to support children’s well-being and prevent and address challenging 
behavior; (ii) Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers do not maltreat or endanger 
the health or safety of children, including, at a minimum, that staff must not: 

(A) Use corporal punishment;

(B) Use isolation to discipline a child;

(C) Bind or tie a child to restrict movement or tape a child’s mouth;

(D) Use or withhold food as a punishment or reward;

(E) Use toilet learning/training methods that punish, demean, or humiliate a child;

(F) Use any form of emotional abuse, including public or private humiliation, rejecting,
terrorizing, extended ignoring, or corrupting a child;

(G) Physically abuse a child;

(H) Use any form of verbal abuse, including profane, sarcastic language, threats, or
derogatory remarks about the child or child’s family; or,

(I) Use physical activity or outdoor time as a punishment or reward;

(iii) Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers respect and promote the unique
identity of each child and family and do not stereotype on any basis, including gender, race,
ethnicity, culture, religion, disability, sexual orientation, or family composition; (iv) Require
staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers to comply with program confidentiality policies
concerning personally identifiable information about children, families, and other staff
members in accordance with subpart C of part 1303 of this chapter and applicable federal,
state, local, and tribal laws; and, (v) Ensure no child is left alone or unsupervised by staff,
consultants, contractors, or volunteers while under their care.

Partner will maintain personnel policies and procedures that include appropriate penalties for 
staff, consultants, and volunteers who violate the standards of conduct. 

Partner must ensure staff and program consultants or contractors are familiar with the ethnic 
backgrounds and heritages of families in the program and are able to serve and effectively 
communicate, either directly or through interpretation and translation, with children who are 

https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/policy/45-cfr-chap-xiii/_link


dual language learners and to the extent feasible, with families with limited English proficiency. 
If a majority of children in a classroom speak the same language, at least one classroom staff 
member must speak such language. 

Partner will ensure each staff member has an initial health examination; ensure that staff do 
not, because of communicable diseases, pose a significant risk to the health or safety of 
others in the classroom that cannot be eliminated or reduced by reasonable accommodations 
in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and section 504 of the Rehabilitation 
Act. 

Partner will make mental health and wellness information available to staff regarding 
health issues that may affect their job performance and provide regularly scheduled 
opportunities to learn about mental health, wellness and health education. 

VI. SUBMISSION OF REPORTS, RECORDS AND EVALUATIONS:

Both parties agree to prepare, retain and permit either party to inspect, as each party considers 
necessary, all records required for this program by the Iowa Department of Education and 
ACF/HHS regulations.  Both parties agree to carry out monitoring and evaluation activities to 
include; at a minimum, periodic observations of the daily program, conferring with staff and 
parents, validation of self-assessment procedures and on-site visits to conduct specific 
activities.  Both parties shall insure the cooperation of employees, policy groups and board 
members in those efforts. 

Both parties agree to submit such reports as may be required by Iowa Department of 
Education, HHS/ACF directives, including (but not exclusive of) computer reports, Self-
Assessment Instruments, improvement plans and financial reports.  Representatives by either 
parties shall have the right to inspect all such records and reports as related to the Head Start 
and West Monona preschool program.  

VII. PROVIDER GENERAL RESPONSIBILITY FOR SERVICE:

The Provider shall monitor, evaluate, and make assistance available to the Partner in 
conducting all activities under this Agreement. 

VIII. PROVIDER SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES FOR SERVICE:

Provider shall provide the following services: 

A. Assist in assuring education program improvement through monthly monitoring site
visits.

B. Systematically provide monthly monitoring reports to the Partner to ensure compliance
with the Head Start Program Performance Standards.

C. Provide and maintain one (1) Family Advocate to support Partner Head Start preschool
children and families with support services that are required by the Head Start Program



Performance Standards. 
D. Provide the required Head Start Program parent conferences and home visits required

by the Head Start Program Performance Standards.
E. Quarterly meetings to provide guidance on Head Start Program Performance Standards.

IX. DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:

Partner and Provider will not discriminate against any person employed in the performance of 
this Agreement, or against any applicant for employment because of race, sex, age, creed, 
religion, color, national origin, sexual orientation, political affiliation, veteran’s status, or 
handicapping condition.  This requirement shall apply to, but not be limited to the following: 
employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, selection for training, recruitment or 
recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation and 
all other privileges, terms and conditions of employment. 

No person shall, on the grounds of race, religion, sex, creed, color, national origin, sexual 
orientation, political affiliation, veteran’s status, or handicapping condition be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the  benefits of, or be subject to discrimination in the performance 
of this Agreement. 

X. POLITICAL ACTIVITY PROHIBITED:

None of the funds, materials, property, services contributed by the Provider or the Partner 
under this Agreement shall be used for any partisan political activity, (1) to further the election 
or defeat of any candidate for public office, or to pay directly or indirectly, the salary or 
expenses of either party to this contract or their agent, to engage in any activity designed to 
influence legislation or appropriations pending before Congress, (2) to provide voters or 
prospective voters with transportation to the polls or similar assistance in connection with any 
such election or (3) to assist any voter registration activity.  Nothing in the above statement is 
intended in any way to inhibit or discourage any party from exercising its lawful rights to 
attempt to influence legislation pending before Congress as long as the costs are not charged to 
this Preschool Contracted Services Agreement or the Head Start Program. 

XI. DRUG FREE ENVIRONMENT:

Provider and Partner shall not permit use of drugs, alcohol, or tobacco by its employees or 
contractors at any Location used for Primary or Secondary Services, in any motor vehicles 
owned or provided by either party or otherwise used in conjunction with providing Primary or 
Secondary Services, or in any manner in the presence or in the view of the children and families 
being served under this Agreement. 

XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPROVED PROGRAM:

Provider agrees to perform all activities authorized by this Agreement in accordance with the 



approved work program, the approved program funding, and the grant conditions inclusive of 
Head Start Program Performance Standards, Program Instructions, CFR 45 (Administration of 
Grants), Audit Guide, Head Start guidelines and all other HHS/ACF directives. 

XIII. SCHEDULE OF PAYMENT:

Provider agrees to pay the Partner as stated in the Method of Payment terms section of the 
Agreement. In no event shall the Partner payments to the Provider exceed the Maximum 
Funding for Services under this Agreement. 

XIV. CHANGES IN SERVICE:

Either party may request changes in the scope of the services to be performed under this 
Agreement.  Mutually agreed upon changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount 
of the Provider’s compensation or modification of the program funding, must be reduced to 
written form before they shall be enforceable by either party.  

XV. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES:

Provider and Partner warrants that no person, selling agency or other organization has been 
employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for 
a commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee.  For breach or violation of this warrant, 
either party shall have the right to annul this contract or otherwise recover the full amount of 
any such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee, or to seek such other legal 
remedies as may be available.  

XVI. HOLD HARMLESS, IDEMNIFICATION AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT:

Provider shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Partner from and against any and all 
losses, claims, liabilities, damages, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
costs, arising out of any negligence, willful misconduct, violation of law, and/or breach of this 
Agreement by the Provider, its employees, or agents. The Partner shall defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless the Provider from and against any and all losses, claims, liabilities, 
damages, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of any 
negligence, willful misconduct, violation of law, and/or breach of this Agreement by the 
Provider, its employees, or agents. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive termination 
of this Agreement. Term and Termination.  

The term of this Agreement shall commence on August 1, 2023 and end on  
July 31, 2024. The parties may renew this Agreement for an additional term as mutually 
determined by the parties. 

Either party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the other party if the other 



party fails to comply with any of the provisions of this Agreement, provided written notice of 
the breach shall be given to the breaching party and the breaching party shall have at least 
ten (10) days to cure the breach. Either party may terminate this Agreement immediately 
upon written notice to the other party if the other party becomes the subject of a proceeding 
under state or federal law for relief of debtors, or if an assignment is made for the benefit of 
creditors. In addition, either party may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, and 
without penalty, upon at least thirty (30) days’ written notice to the Provider. Upon the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement, the Provider will pay the Partner for all earned 
amounts up to the effective date of expiration or termination. 

Except in the case of the Provider’s loss of funding from HHS, financial assistance under this 
contract shall not be terminated or reduced, or an application for refunding denied or financial 
assistance suspended for longer than thirty (30) days unless the Provider has been afforded 
reasonable notice. 

XVII. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY
EXCLUSION:

A. Partner and Provider each certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.

B. Partner or Provider is unable now, or at any time during the term of this Agreement to
certify to any of the statements in this certification, either party shall immediately
provide an explanation in writing to the other party and this contract shall be subject to
immediate termination by either party in the event participation is disallowed as a result
of that debarment or suspension.

XVIII. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

General Liability: $1,000,000.00 each occurrence 
$2,000,000.00 aggregate 
$5,000.00 medical expense per person 
$1,000,000.00 personal & adv injury 
$2,000,000.00 products/completed op. 

Excess Liability Umbrella: $1,000,000.00 each occurrence 
$1,000,000.00 aggregate 

Professional Liability: $2,000,000.00 each occurrence 
$2,000,000.00 aggregate 

Sexual Abuse Coverage: $50,000.00 each person 
$250,000.00 maximum 



Worker’s Compensation: $500,000.00 each accident 
$500,000.00 each employee 
$500,000.00 total policy 



SERVICES AGREEMENT FORMANAGED SERVICES
BETWEEN

Green Hills AEA
AND

RED OAK CSD

This Agreement is entered into by and between the Green Hills AEA (“GHAEA”) and RED
OAK CSD (the “District”) effective as of July 1, 2023 (the “Effective Date”).

GHAEA and the District agree as follows:

1. Scope of Work. GHAEA will provide to the District the services as set forth in
Schedule A (the “Services”), which shall be attached hereto and is by this reference
incorporated as part of this Agreement. Multiple Schedule A documents may be
included.

2. Service Contracts. The District agrees to make payments to GHAEA according to the
fee schedule set forth in Schedule B, which shall be attached hereto and is by this
reference incorporated as part of this Agreement. The District further agrees to
compensate GHAEA for all services and expenses incurred in connection with
providing the Services as set forth in Schedule B and elsewhere in this Agreement.
Multiple Schedule B documents may be included.

3. Term(s) and Termination. GHAEA shall provide the Services beginning on the
Effective Date and shall continue providing the Services until terminated by either
party. This Agreement shall terminate upon the occurrence of any of the following:

a. The District breaches any of its obligations under this Agreement. In the
event of such breach of performance, GHAEA shall provide written notice to the
District specifying the breach and the District shall have sixty (60) days to cure such
breach. If the District fails to cure its breach within the sixty (60) day period, this
Agreement shall immediately terminate.

i. Notwithstanding Section 3.a, if the District’s breach of this Agreement
is a failure to timely make a payment pursuant to Schedule B, the District
shall have sixty (60) days to cure such breach.



b. GHAEA breaches any of its obligations under this Agreement. In the event of
such breach of performance, the District shall provide written notice to GHAEA
specifying the breach and GHAEA shall have sixty (60) days to cure such breach. If
GHAEA fails to cure its breach within the sixty (60) day period, this Agreement shall
immediately terminate.

c. Either the District or GHAEA provides written notice of termination to the
other party. Such notice of termination shall become effective, and this agreement
shall terminate, sixty (60) days after delivery of such notice.

d. Notwithstanding any other provision contained in this Agreement, this
Agreement shall immediately terminate and neither party shall be liable for any
failures to perform if such failure is caused by acts of God or the public enemy, fire,
explosion, accident, flood, drought, embargoes, shortages, actions of any kind by a
governmental authority (other than a governmental authority who is a party to this
Agreement) whether such act is valid or invalid, or any other casualty.

In the event this Agreement terminates, , all rights and obligations of the parties hereunder
shall cease as of the date of such termination, except that GHAEA will provide services in
connection with migrating the District to a new service provider, and GHAEA shall charge
the District at its normal hourly rate based upon the per diem rate set out in Schedule B for
such migration services. Migration includes coordination of responsibilities, turnover,
documentation, and response to questions from the new provider.

4. Representations andWarranties. GHAEA represents and warrants that the Services
will be provided in a professional manner, by qualified personnel, consistent with
this Agreement. GHAEA shall use commercially reasonable efforts to perform the
Services to the District’s satisfaction. The District represents and warrants that it will
discuss with GHAEA any major purchases of technology hardware and software, as
well as equipment and peripherals, such that GHAEAmay advise the District as to
the compatibility of such hardware, software, equipment, or peripherals. The
District represents and warrants that GHAEA will be the sole provider of the
Services unless alternate arrangements are made between the parties. Both parties
represent and warrant that, if any disputes arise regarding this Agreement, the
parties shall negotiate in good faith to resolve any disputes or differences. GHAEA
MAKES NOOTHERWARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED,
WITH RESPECT TO THE SERVICES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. GHAEA EXPRESSLY
DISCLAIMS ANYWARRANTY OFMERCHANTABILITY FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE.



5. Limitation of Liability. GHAEA shall indemnify and hold the District harmless from
and against all liabilities, claims, debts, taxes, obligations, costs, and expenses
(including reasonable attorney fees, court costs, and costs of appeal) that the
District may incur or sustain as a result of any breach by GHAEA of this Agreement
or negligent or other wrongful conduct by GHAEA in the performance of its services
and obligations under this Agreement.

6. Limitation on Remedies. The District shall indemnify and hold GHAEA harmless
from and against all liabilities, claims, debts, taxes, obligations, costs, and expenses
(including reasonable attorney fees, court costs, and costs of appeal) that GHAEA
may incur or sustain as a result of any breach by the District of this Agreement or
negligent or other wrongful conduct by the District in the performance of its
services and obligations under this Agreement.

7. Assignment. The District may not assign or delegate any or all of its rights or its
duties under this Agreement without the prior written consent of GHAEA.

8. Complete Agreement. This Agreement (together with all attachments hereto) is the
complete and exclusive statement of the agreement of the parties with respect to
the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior oral or written proposals or
agreements with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement
may not be modified except in a writing executed by both parties.

9. Conflict. In the event that any term of this Agreement conflicts with any term
provided for in the Schedules attached to this Agreement and incorporated herein,
the terms of this Agreement shall control and the terms of the Schedules shall be
subordinate.

10. Counterparts.This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one
and the same agreement.



Green Hills AEA

By: ________________________________ Date: ________________

Board President

RED OAK CSD

By: ________________________________ Date: ________________

Board President

Apr 25 2023

(approved 4/25/23 Bd. Mtg.)



SCHEDULE A

vCISO SERVICE

Section 1 – Services Provided
Green Hills AEA will provide a certified vCISO who will work with the District to develop a security
program from scratch or optimize and build upon what is already established. The vCISO will leverage
unbiased experts to educate districts on best practices in threat identification, threat mitigation,training,
and response planning. The program will create actionable security insights for district leadership, a
mitigation plan, and an incident response plan. The goal of the vCISO program is to improve the district’s
security and compliance posture to address increasing risks and minimize impact if an incident does
occur.

Section 2 – Areas not covered
The vCISO Service is limited to vulnerability assessment & planning to mitigate Cybersecurity threats.
Subscription to the vCISO Service is not a guarantee of incident prevention. Subscription to the vCISO
Service is not Cyber Liability Insurance. See SERVICES AGREEMENT FORMANAGED SERVICES -
Section(s) 4., 5., 6.

Section 3 – Areas where 3rd party vendor support may / will be required
GHAEA will provide expertise and access to the Security Studio tool set.

Additional measures to address vulnerabilities might include but are not limited to::
● Vulnerability Scanning
● Internal / External Penetration Testing
● Endpoint management (Mobile Device Management)
● Endpoint Protection
● Training
● Cyber Incident Liability insurance

The District will require a third party to provide such systems.

Section 4 – Standard Practice
The agency will assign a certified vCISO to the district as a primary point of contact for this service.
Additional teammembers from GHAEAmay participate in providing service. The district shall appoint a
Cybersecurity teammade up of at least 3 employees of the District with specific interest or aptitude for
participating on the team. Suggested participants include (but are not limited to) Superintendent, School
Business Official, Technology Director, Instructional Leaders (Principal, Curriculum Specialist,
Instructional Coach), Facilities &Maintenance Supervisor, Transportation Supervisor, Nutrition Services
Supervisor, Managed Service Providers, Teachers, Community Members.

Objectives:
● Align security and compliance needs with K-12 School reality
● Quickly identify and remediate vulnerabilities and risks based on impact

Page 1 Modified 04/17/2023



● Increase district leadership’s visibility into the state of cyber security
● Optimize security and compliance spend
● Align district plans to Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency- U.S. Department of

Homeland Security best practice
Scope:

● Customized Security ProgramDevelopment, Execution, &Management
● Security RoadMap
● Annual Risk Assessment using the Security Studio S2School vulnerability assessment.
● Policy and Procedure Development
● External Audit Assistance (e.g., Cyber Insurance Underwriting)
● Co-Facilitate Security Tabletop Exercises
● School Board Reports and Leadership Presentations

Section 5 – Staffing Allocation
The agency will assign a certified vCISO to the district as a primary point of contact for this service.

Page 2 Modified 04/17/2023



SCHEDULE B

Managed Services Package

Green Hills AEA (GHAEA) will provide technology assistance support as described in Schedule A. If
GHAEA Technology staff is needed for an event, the District will inform GHAEA of such needs with
reasonable advance notice. Normal working hours are Monday through Friday, 8 am until 4 pm. GHAEA
will provide a list of all observed holidays not considered working hours. If support is needed outside of
working hours, coverage can be arranged with reasonable advance notice. On-site days for this
agreement are .8 FTE (i.e. four days out of a five day work week). Specific scheduled days to be
determined by GHAEA and the District in cooperation.

When school is not in session due to weather, GHAEA, in consultation with the District, will decide how
best to deploy resources. Support may be on call during this time, with the understanding that all
projects will be completed on time. When the assigned technician is not able to attend work on a
scheduled day, GHAEA will provide support remotely. After seven missed days when school is in session
GHAEA will discount the contract for any days missed past seven.

GHAEA and the District understand that the costs provided for herein are the base costs for the Services.
Any additional work items as indicated in Schedule A Section 3 will be separately quoted by GHAEA and
agreed to by the District.

BASE COST FOR FISCAL YEAR (Selected services that apply)

IT MANAGED SERVICE N/A

ERATEMANAGED SERVICE N/A

TELEPHONEMANAGED SERVICE N/A

APPLICATION HOSTING SERVICE

Project Lead the Way

$500 initial setup fee

Billing will be based on the actual cost viewable from the AWS
management console.

Adobe Creative Cloud

$500 initial setup fee

Billing will be based on the actual cost viewable from the AWS
management console.

“Other” Application Hosting (AWS AppStream)

$500 initial setup fee

Billing will be based on the actual cost viewable from the AWS

N/A

Page 1 Revised 4/13/2023



management console.

vCISO (Virtual Chief Information Security Officer) SERVICE $3,600

TEACHER LIBRARIAN SERVICE N/A

Billing by the GHAEA Business Office will be quarterly. Payment is due 30 days after receipt of the
invoice.

Page 2 Revised 4/13/2023



Audit Trail

Document Details

Title RED OAK CSD IT MSA WITH SCHEDULE 04_23 .pdf

File Name RED OAK CSD IT MSA WITH SCHEDULE 04_23 .pdf

Document ID 6a714dea09f541eb859f061354993476

Fingerprint 6511ebbe55d5d2434b5c9c1eb158ff1f

Status Completed

Document History

Document
Created

Document Created by Linda Perdue (lperdue@ghaea.org)
Fingerprint: 50add9524b091a3b21ceb1a345205438

Apr 24 2023
06:53PM

America/Chicago

Document
Sent Document Sent to Christine M. Blum (boardpresident@ghaea.org)

Apr 24 2023
06:53PM

America/Chicago

Document
Viewed

Document Viewed by Christine M. Blum (boardpresident@ghaea.org)
IP: 173.215.72.21

Apr 25 2023
09:06PM

America/Chicago

Document
Signed

Document Signed by Christine M. Blum (boardpresident@ghaea.org)
IP: 173.215.72.21

Apr 25 2023
09:07PM

America/Chicago

Document
Completed

This document has been completed.
Fingerprint: 6511ebbe55d5d2434b5c9c1eb158ff1f

Apr 25 2023
09:07PM

America/Chicago



700 - Purpose of Non-instructional and Business Services (no revisions) 

This series of the board policy manual is devoted to the goals and objectives for the school 
district’s non-instructional services and business operations that assist in the delivery of the 
education program.  These non-instructional services include, but are not limited to, 
transportation, the school lunch program and childcare.  The board, as it deems necessary, will 
provide additional non-instructional services to support the education program. 
It is the goal of the board to provide non-instructional services and to conduct its business 
operations in an efficient manner. 

Approved November 11, 2013    
Reviewed October 29, 2013     May 17, 2023 
Revised  November 26, 2018 

701.1 - Depository of Funds (no revisions) 

Each year at its annual meeting, the board will designate by resolution the name and location of 
the Iowa located financial depository institution or institutions to serve as the official school 
district depository or depositories.  The maximum deposit amount to be kept in the depository 
will be stated in the resolution.  The amount stated in the resolution must be for all 
depositories and include all of the school district’s funds. 

It is the responsibility of the board secretary to include the resolution in the minutes of the 
meeting. 

Approved November 11, 2013    
Reviewed October 29, 2013  May 17, 2023      
Revised November 26, 2018 

701.2 - Transfer of Funds (significant revisions to reflect code changes) 

The board may loan monies between funds as it deems necessary.  The board shall exercise this 
authority judiciously. 

When the necessity for a fund has ceased to exist, the balance may be transferred to another 
fund or account by board resolution.  School district monies received without a designated 
purpose may be transferred in this manner.  School district monies received for a specific 
purpose or upon vote of the people may only be transferred, by board resolution when the 
purpose for which the monies were received has been completed.  Voter approval is required 
to transfer monies to the general fund from the capital projects fund and debt service fund. 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)

Multi-Year Program

Red Oak High School (9-12) and Red Oak Community School District

WHEREAS, this Memorandum of Understanding, entered into between iJAG, Red Oak High School (9-12), and the
Red Oak Community School District, outlines the elements of a partnership to successfully implement and
sustain the Jobs for America's Graduates (JAG) Multi-Year Program as operated and managed by Iowa Jobs for
America's Graduates (iJAG).

WHEREAS, iJAG is a non-profit organization supported by corporate and foundation contributions, public sector
grants, and participating school funds. iJAG creates business, industry, and education partnerships committed to
achieving the mission of JAG. The mission of JAG is to ensure that youth facing multiple challenges to graduation
remain in school, attain basic employability skills through classroom and work-based learning experiences, are
provided with academic support services, graduate, and receive twelve (12) months of follow-up services by the
iJAG Education Specialist. Follow-up services help ensure iJAG participants successfully transition into a career
and/or pursue postsecondary education to enhance their career entry and advancement.

WHEREAS, the five primary performance goals of the multi-year program are: 90% graduation/GED rate, 80%
overall success twelve months after graduation, with participants employed in a job leading to a career, in the
military, or enrolled in postsecondary education or training, or a combination of work and postsecondary
education, 60% of graduates are employed, 60% of employed graduates are in full-time jobs leading to careers,
and 80% of the graduates are employed full-time and/or are combining work and school. Statewide and school
performance outcomes are used in JAG's accreditation process. State and local affiliates must receive standard
accreditation to become and remain a member of the JAG National Network.

WHEREAS the responsibilities of iJAG include:

1. Maintain an active, involved iJAG Board of Directors to provide oversight to the implementation,
operation, and continuous improvement of programs in Iowa, which satisfy the accreditation standards
of the National JAG Program Model.

2. Employ a full-time, year-round, jointly accepted individual with the requested certification to fulfill the
responsibilities of the iJAG Education Specialist.

3. Develop and establish positive working relationships within the community and connections at the state
and local level for comprehensive school improvement, career and technical education, building
resiliency, transition, career education guidance, Workforce Development, and Economic Development.

4. Participate in the annual I&I Ceremony, iJAG Leadership Development Conference, Legislative Day,
Career Development Conference, and iJAG Nation Leadership Conference, utilizing input from students,
Education Specialists, and the Board of Directors.

5. iJAG Management will provide the following:
a. Support to Education Specialists
b. Technical assistance and training to the iJAG Education Specialist and other essential school staff

on successfully implementing and operating a JAG-accredited program
c. Staff development for all Education Specialists to ensure understanding of the JAG and the

middle school models, share best practices through planned local/state staff development
activities, and attend the annual Learning Summit and other annual training.

d. Conduct frequent school quality assurance reviews on students, services, and outcomes and
consulting visits to offer encouragement, support, and feedback.

i. Program managers will meet with the school administrator leading the iJAG partnership
during these visits to ensure satisfaction and collaboration.



ii. Every 3-4 years, JAG will conduct a site review and prepare an accreditation report for
consideration by the Board of Directors, iJAG administration, school, and Education
Specialist.

WHEREAS, the responsibilities of the Red Oak Community School District include:

1. Buildings will adhere to an "onboarding checklist" to be compiled by the iJAG program team. The list
checklist will consist of but is not limited to the following:

a. Issue a District ID badge allowing iJAG Specialist access to buildings.
b. Provide appropriate space for the iJAG Education Specialist, including classroom space and office

space that provides privacy with the students as necessary and contributes to in-kind services.
c. Provide utilities, computer, copier, internet access, classroom materials, supplies, etc., like other

teachers and school staff.
d. Provide access and training to iJAG Specialists on the school's database system and any other

technology available to the Specialists within the building.
i. Education Specialists will have access to all student information, including but not

limited to grades, demographics, credits, behaviors, schedules, free and reduced lunch
status, IEP/504 Plans, parent/guardian contact information, etc., for all students to assist
with student selection.

e. Include iJAG Specialists in all safety training drills, Mandatory Reporting Training, and all other
training and professional development required of all staff as appropriate.

f. Assign iJAG Specialists a teacher mentor within the assigned building.
g. Collaborate with iJAG to ensure iJAG paperwork and school paperwork completion and address

media releases.
2. Incorporate iJAG Education Specialist in electronic notifications of school updates and notices.
3. School Administration will ensure the following:

a. iJAG is included in the Student Handbook/Course Catalog and ensures guidance staff assists with
student referral and selection.

b. Class sizes will be, at most, 17 students per class in any class period. The iJAG learner-centered
instructional strategy and model, Project Based Learning (PBL), requires small class sizes to be
successful.

c. Work with the iJAG Specialist to establish an in-school Advisory Committee to assist the
Education Specialist in recruiting, screening, and selecting students most in need of services and
who meet JAG criteria to receive services and to provide ongoing support for students and the
iJAG program.

i. The committee will include one representative from the administration, counseling staff,
the faculty, and the Education Specialist.

a. Note: The school may use an existing committee if it will also perform the
additional functions of the iJAG Advisory Committee.

ii. The iJAG Specialist and the school must agree upon each student before being added to
the roster.

iii. Creating iJAG classes is imperative for building connections and creating belonging;
because of this, adding students after the adding and dropping classes deadlines is
unrecommended.

iv. Seniors can join iJAG only during the beginning of the year senior year. The Program
Manager must approve any time after that.

d. Infuse iJAG and their Career Association with other school programs and services where
appropriate.



e. Support the Education Specialists' efforts to engage parents, employers, and the community.
f. Support the Education Specialists' efforts to perform mandatory engagements with employers,

job opportunities, and potential placements off-campus.
g. Work with the Program Manager to:

i. Complete the Observation Rubric twice yearly to assess the Education Specialists'
performance.

ii. Provide building supervision of the Education Specialist.
iii. Conduct regular meetings to evaluate the partnership and progress of the iJAG program.

4. The District will provide the following:
a. Meetings with iJAG leadership quarterly to review data and discuss the partnership
b. Transportation for students to attend statewide events, Career Association events, employer

engagement opportunities, college visits, and community service opportunities
i. Including providing the necessary insurance coverage for students to attend these

opportunities as their participation is considered a school-sponsored event.
ii. Allow other staff to serve as chaperones and activity judges at these events when

possible.
iii. Education Specialists will present the event dates to the appropriate school personnel at

the beginning of the school year and obtain prior approval in the expected timeframes.
iv. The school district will allow the Education Specialist access to smaller district vehicles

when available for small group activities related to career association and WBL.
c. The cost of substitute teachers for at least ten school days, eight (8) hours of iJAG instruction per

day, per iJAG Specialist, as necessary and with prior approval
i. Substitute days are half or full-day increments.
ii. Substitute days include personal sick days, iJAG training, and iJAG-sponsored statewide

events. The school will cover all other days that a sub is needed (employer
engagements).

iii. Any days outside of the above iJAG covers
d. A representative from the school administration (ideally the Principal or Vice Principal) to attend

the annual principal's meetings, coordinated by iJAG administration

WHEREAS the responsibilities of the iJAG Education Specialist include:

1. iJAG Education Specialists' primary role is to deliver the multi-year school iJAG program with fidelity.
a. The program incorporates a learner-centered approach, focused on the thirty-seven (37) core

competencies endorsed by JAG.
2. iJAG Specialists may have one other school-related duty.
3. The Education Specialist will fulfill the following:

a. Recruit and select up to sixty (60) qualified students for the program who satisfy the criteria set
out by iJAG/JAG.

i. Students must need, want, and benefit from the services.
b. Establish an in-school Advisory Committee with school administration to recruit, screen, and

select students most needing services.
c. Organize the student-led Career Association.

i. Each iJAG student will join the Career Association for belonging, a sense of ownership,
building self-esteem, and developing leadership and teamwork skills.

ii. Each student must complete at least fifteen (15) annual hours of community service,
individually or within groups.

d. Assist the Career Association in raising $350.00 annually through a fundraising event.



i. The money will go to supporting their iJAG program.
ii. Monies over $350 will be used for Career Association activities during the year.
iii. Monies raised will be stored securely until the Program Manager can obtain
iv. Monies will be held and accounted for in iJAG accounts.

e. Develop work-based learning and/or job shadow experiences in conjunction with the
administration.

i. Partner with the school on already established work-based learning programs and
employer engagement experiences

ii. Ensuring follow-up students also receive the same work-based learning and employer
engagement opportunities.

iii. Ensure juniors and seniors have access and opportunities to participate in dual credit
classes with the local community college, as applicable.

f. Establish and maintain connections at the school and district levels.
4. Education Specialist will:

a. Attend and participate in iJAG staff development experiences, mandatory staff meetings, and
student events.

b. Work with iJAG administration to assist with special events or peer-based training as needed.
c. Provide career guidance and counseling. Connect and refer students to school or

community-based services to overcome barriers to advancement, employment, and career entry
and advancement.

d. Work with students and other staff/faculty to provide remediation and/or tutoring required to
improve their basic education skills and advance to the next grade level.

i. Provide necessary services to help students overcome barriers to staying in school,
graduating, becoming employed, and/or pursuing a postsecondary education, including
follow-up with teachers in classes that students are not passing or falling behind.

e. Education Specialists running the 11/12 iJAG program will contact graduates and non-graduates
monthly and employers bimonthly during the 12-month follow-up period.

f. Provide personal and confidential information for screening per local and state laws governing
those working directly with students in schools.

g. Complete and maintain all paper and electronic documentation as required by iJAG.
i. Submit properly completed written and electronic documentation as directed by the

iJAG administration.
ii. Work with iJAG administration to complete all monitoring, evaluations, agreements, and

documentation required by funding sources.
h. Sign the Memorandum of Understanding as part of their contract and evaluation.
i. Participate in evaluations conducted by the iJAG administration twice a year.
j. Provide reports throughout the year on various data points, such as but not limited to

programming, GPA, attendance, barriers, etc., to the school and iJAG administration.
k. Understand and adhere to the building's policy regarding leaving the school building during

contract hours.
i. Education Specialists will seek prior approval from their Program Manager before leaving

the school building during contract hours.
ii. Education Specialists will notify their building supervisor when leaving the building

during contract hours.



WHEREAS, the responsibilities of Jobs for America's Graduates include:
1. Provide onsite assistance for Education Specialists and iJAG administration upon request.
2. Make its copyrighted model books and materials available, operational guides, administrative manuals,

electronic data management systems, etc. Provide Education Specialists with the opportunity to attend
the annual JAG National Training Seminar.

3. Conduct accreditation of the iJAG program to ensure conformity with the standards promulgated by JAG.
4. Make available the protected trademark, "Jobs for America's Graduates," and associated emblem and

copyrighted materials directly related to and limited to the periods in which the program is delivered in a
manner consistent with the mission and goals of the JAG Program Model and terms of this
Memorandum of Understanding.

PARTNERSHIP COMMITMENT
This Memorandum of Understanding begins July 1, 2023, and runs through the 2023-24 school year.
The partners mutually agree that the iJAG program will operate within the principles, policies, procedures, and
JAG standards outlined in this document and agreed to by the participating school, iJAG, and Jobs for America's
Graduates.
It is mutually agreed that efforts will be made to continue the iJAG/JAG accredited program year after year based
on funding availability, an adequate number of students to make the program cost-effective, and mutual
satisfaction with the program.
Red Oak Community School District agrees to pay $50,000.00 for the 2023-24 program school year to iJAG. To be
invoiced at a later date (see below).

Please identify the individual where iJAG should send invoice to:

Name: Email:

Red Oak High School (9-10) Program Year 2023-2024 $25,000.00

Red Oak High School (11-12) Program Year 2023-2024 $25,000.00

Red Oak Community School District Total for 2023-24 $50,000.00

Signatures Below:

Iowa Jobs for America’s Graduates Red Oak Community School District

Signature Signature

Print Wendy Mihm-Herold Print

Title President/CEO Title

Date 5/4/2023 Date



RED OAK COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT & WEST CENTRAL COMMUNITY ACTION 
 PRESCHOOL CONTRACTED SERVICES AGREEMENT 

West Central Community Action Head Start Program, hereinafter referred to as “Provider” and 
the Red Oak Community School District, hereinafter referred to as “Partner” wish to enter into 
an agreement under which Partner shall furnish certain designated services necessary to 
implementation of WCCA program operations funded by a Department of Health and Human 
Services Grant.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the following terms and definitions shall 
be used:  

TERMS DEFINITIONS 

Provider: West  Central Community Action (WCCA) 

Provider Address: 1408 “A” Highway 44 
PO Box 709 
Harlan, IA 51537-0709 

Partner: Red Oak Community School District (ROCSD) 

Partner Address: Red Oak Community School District 

2011 N. 8th Street 

Red Oak, IA 51566 

Site Location: Red Oak Child Development Center 
400 West 2nd Street  
Red Oak, IA  51566

Covered Primary Services: 

Required Service Group for 
Primary Services: 

Minimum Services: 

Health, Education, Nutrition and 
Disabilities portion of Center Based Head 
Start Programming. 

The Partner will serve 20 Head Start income 
eligible children.  

The Partner will operate the identified 
preschool classroom(s) working towards a 
minimum of 1,020 teacher/student contact 
hours per year exclusive of school holidays, 
weather-related closings and staff professional 
development days at all of the identified site 
locations. 

The Partner will meet full funded enrollment 
number by September 30, 2023. If the full 
funded enrollment number is not met then Head 
Start will utilize the vacant slot and any vacant 



TERMS DEFINITIONS 

slot within the school year if no waitlist is 
available. 

Agreement Funding for Services: 

Method of Payments: 

Funding is based on the number of Head Start 
eligible children enrolled and served up to the 
maximum allotted slots identified above during 
the course of each month throughout the 2023-
2024 school year.  

The Partner will submit a monthly invoice by 
the 5th day of the following month for the 
previous month of service.  The invoice will 
include the number of children that received 
services and the month being billed.  The 
Partner will be paid $450 per eligible child 
receiving services per month each month the 
child is actively enrolled not to exceed a total 
annual funding amount of $81,000.00. 

Agreement Guiding Principles: Coordinate a comprehensive system of 
activities, policies, and procedures among the 
named parties which guide and support their 
delivery of services to children and their 
families. 

Create and maintain a meaningful partnership 
to promote school readiness so that children 
who are preschool age, receive comprehensive 
services to prepare them for elementary 
school and to address any potential 
“achievement gap”. 

Plan and implement strategies based on 
practice and research that have proven to 
support children’s school success. 

As part of the Head Start Program 
Performance Standards, the ROCSD will 
ensure their positive guidance and discipline 
practices are developmentally appropriate 
and follow best practice recommendations for 
Early Childhood Education. 

Respect the uniqueness of each locality’s 



TERMS DEFINITIONS 

needs and resources. Promote the 
involvement of members of the early child 
care and education communities. 

Share commitment, cooperation, and 
collaboration for a coordinated service 
delivery system. 
Both parties will provide Professional 
Development opportunities as prescribed by 
the Iowa Department of Education and 
HHS/ACF at no cost. 

Program Curriculum and Head Start 
Program Performance Standards 
Monitoring: 

The Connect4Learning (C4L) Curriculum and 
the Head Start Program Standards (HSPPS) 
will be followed at the identified ROCSD 
Preschool Classrooms. 

Head Start staff will support and monitor the 
identified ROCSD preschool classrooms at 
least three times annually to ensure that 
HSPPS are being met. Provider monitoring 
reports will be provided to the Partner staff 
by the 15th of the following month. 

The ROCSD is responsible to report any 
incidents, allegations, or misconduct of Head 
Start funded children to the Head Start 
Director within 24 hours of occurrence.  

 Please see attachment for monitoring items. 

Confidentiality: The Provider and Partner acknowledge 
confidentiality requirements that each must 
follow regarding the sharing and release, with 
the consent of families, of personally 
identifiable information regarding children 
and families. 

Each party will protect the rights of young 
children with respect to records and reports 
created, maintained, and used by each. It is 
the intent of this agreement to ensure that 
parents have rights of access and rights of 
privacy with respect to such reports and 
records, and that applicable State and Federal 



TERMS DEFINITIONS 

laws for exercise of these rights be strictly 
followed. 

Collaboration Meetings and Dispute 
Resolution: 

The Partner and Provider will first attempt to 
resolve any disputes or to solve problems 
among themselves.  

Issues will be resolved as they arise at the 
lowest level possible.  The chain of command 
will be followed. 

Schedule Administrative meetings on a monthly 
basis.  Meetings will occur face-to-face or via 
Zoom to review local agreements, plan 
collaborative activities, and resolve issues. 

Covered Primary Services: 
Partner Responsibilities: 

Will assign a full time Preschool 
Administrator to oversee the preschool 
classrooms throughout the school district. 

Teachers will conduct two home visits per 
school year for each family. 

Teachers will conduct two parent 
conferences per school year. 

Provide nursing services. 

The hiring, supervision, employment and 
professional development of preschool 
certified teachers and qualified substitutes 
that comply with the Head Start Program 
Performance Standards. 

Maintain accreditations, perform the 
registration and participant screening 
process for 3 and 4 year old children. 

Provide meal service to children at the 
identified location(s). 

Non-federal share match documentation for 
donated items such as: classroom staff wages, 



TERMS DEFINITIONS 

fringe benefits and associated costs not paid 
with Head Start funds, classroom 
materials/curriculum, furnishings, professional 
development and custodial services. 

Covered Primary Services: 
Provider Responsibilities: 

Provide a Head Start School and Community 
Partnership Coordinator who meets monthly 
with the preschool administrator as a Liaison 
between the two parties. 

Provide one (1) Family Advocate to support the 
needs of the Head Start children and families 
being served at each of the Provider’s site 
locations and classrooms. 

Non-Federal Share Match 
Documentation: 

The Partner will complete and submit to the 
Provider the Head Start Non-Federal Share 
Form at the beginning of the 2023 – 2024 
school year. 

Agreement And Termination Terms: August 1, 2023 through July 31, 2024 

The Provider and Partner are not bound by this 
agreement for more than the 2023-2024 school 
year. 

The parties agree to abide by the specific terms and provisions of the following attachments 
which are incorporated into this agreement by reference and made a part of it: 

 Basic Contract Provisions.

 Non-Federal Share Match Contribution Form.

 Pre-K Contracted Items.

Signature Page 

Partner: Provider: 

Red Oak Community School District: West Central Community Action: 

By: ___________________________ By: __________________________ 
 Superintendent  Wendy Mueller, Executive Director 

Date: __________________________ Date: ________________________ 



BASIC CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

I. PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF AGREEMENT:

The purpose of this Agreement is to set out the terms and conditions between the Provider and 
Partner. 

Achievement of the goals and objectives of the Head Start Program requires commitment from 
all levels and persons involved in the program.  Policies, regulations and guidelines contribute 
to the effective and efficient process necessary for goal attainment. Both parties encourage and 
expect philosophical commitment to the Head Start goals, as well as compliance with the 
approved grant application, the Preschool Contracted Services Agreement, all policies, 
regulations, and guidelines of HHS/ACF. 

The services to be provided under this Agreement are designed to provide the following 
services at the same site setting and subject to the availability of funding: 

A. Financial support for a minimum of 1,020 teacher/student contact time;
B. Transportation services to eligible rural children;
C. Professional development for Preschool Teachers and Assistant Teachers;
D. Provider Monitoring Reports of ongoing monitoring of Head Start Program Performance

Standards and
E. Transition planning and implementation for children and families into the K-12 ROCSD

system.

II. PARTNER SERVICE RESPONSIBILITIES:

Partner shall provide the specified Covered Primary Services at the designated Location of 
Services for the specified Term of Agreement in accordance with Head Start Performance 
Standards.  The maximum number of children to be served is 20 

In addition to the specific provisions of this Agreement, Partner shall comply with all applicable 
state, federal, and local laws, rules, and regulations. 

III. FUNDING:

Provider is responsible for no more than the specified Maximum Funding Level in Head Start 
Program funds to implement this Preschool Contracted Services Agreement. It is expressly 
understood and agreed that in no event will the total amount paid under this Agreement 
exceed the Maximum Funding Level for full and complete performance unless additional 
funding is specifically authorized in writing by the Provider. 



IV. PROVIDER AND PARTNER METHODS FOR FISCAL MANAGEMENT:

Provider and Partner  shall maintain such records and accounts, including property, personnel, 
and financial, as are deemed necessary by the Iowa Department of Education to assure proper 
accounting for all funds provided for this program. These records will be made available for 
audit purposes and will be retained for four(4) years after the expiration date of this contract 
and any renewals of it, unless permission to destroy them is granted by both the Partner and 
the Iowa Department of Education.   

V. PARTNER PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT:

Partner shall assure, certify, document and maintain that they are in compliance with the Head 
Start Performance Standard 1302.90 Personnel Policies: 

There is a personnel management system covering staff that is consistent with the regulations 
set forth in Head Start Program Performance Standard (1302.90) and provides the Provider 
access to the Partner’s personnel files, policies and procedures. This shall include, but not be 
limited to, a current organizational chart, performance appraisals and the sections that 
outline the Partner’s policies on conducting interviews, verifying references, conduct a sex 
offender registry check and obtain one of the following: (i) State criminal history records, 
including fingerprint checks; or (ii) Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal history records, 
including fingerprint checks. The Partner has ninety (90) days after an employee is hired to 
complete the background check process by obtaining: (i) Whichever check listed above was 
not obtained prior to the date of hire; and, (ii) Child abuse and neglect state registry check, if 
available. 

Partner will establish and maintain written personnel policies and procedures that are 
approved by the ROCSD school board and are available to all district staff. 

Before a person is hired, directly or through contract, including transportation staff and 
contractors, a program must conduct an interview, verify references, conduct a sex offender 
registry check and obtain one of the following: (i) State criminal history records, including 
fingerprint checks; or, (ii) Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal history records, including 
fingerprint checks. The district has 90 days after an employee is hired to complete the 
background check process by obtaining: (i) whichever check listed above of this section was not 
obtained prior to the date of hire; and, the child abuse and neglect state registry check, if 
available. 

Partner must review the information found in each employment application and complete 
background check to assess the relevancy of any issue uncovered by the complete background 
check including any arrest, pending criminal charge, or conviction and must use Child Care and 
Development Fund (CCDF) disqualification factors described in 42 U.S.C. 9858f(c)(1)(D) and 42 
U.S.C. 9858f(h)(1) to determine whether the prospective employee can be hired or the current 
employee must be terminated. 



Partner must ensure a newly hired employee, consultant, or contractor does not have 
unsupervised access to children until the complete background check process is complete. 

Partner must conduct the complete background check for each employee, consultant, or 
contractor at least once every five (5) years which must include each of the four checks listed in 
above, and review and make employment decisions based on the information as described 
above, unless the program can demonstrate to the Provider that it has a more stringent system 
in place that will ensure child safety. 

Partner must consider current and former program parent for employment vacancies for which 
such parents apply and are qualified. 

Partner must ensure all staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers abide by the program’s 
standards of conduct that: (i) Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers implement 
positive strategies to support children’s well-being and prevent and address challenging 
behavior; (ii) Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers do not maltreat or endanger 
the health or safety of children, including, at a minimum, that staff must not: 

(A) Use corporal punishment;

(B) Use isolation to discipline a child;

(C) Bind or tie a child to restrict movement or tape a child’s mouth;

(D) Use or withhold food as a punishment or reward;

(E) Use toilet learning/training methods that punish, demean, or humiliate a child;

(F) Use any form of emotional abuse, including public or private humiliation, rejecting,
terrorizing, extended ignoring, or corrupting a child;

(G) Physically abuse a child;

(H) Use any form of verbal abuse, including profane, sarcastic language, threats, or
derogatory remarks about the child or child’s family; or,

(I) Use physical activity or outdoor time as a punishment or reward;

(iii) Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers respect and promote the unique
identity of each child and family and do not stereotype on any basis, including gender, race,
ethnicity, culture, religion, disability, sexual orientation, or family composition; (iv) Require
staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers to comply with program confidentiality policies
concerning personally identifiable information about children, families, and other staff
members in accordance with subpart C of part 1303 of this chapter and applicable federal,
state, local, and tribal laws; and, (v) Ensure no child is left alone or unsupervised by staff,
consultants, contractors, or volunteers while under their care.

Partner will maintain personnel policies and procedures that include appropriate penalties for 
staff, consultants, and volunteers who violate the standards of conduct. 

Partner must ensure staff and program consultants or contractors are familiar with the ethnic 
backgrounds and heritages of families in the program and are able to serve and effectively 
communicate, either directly or through interpretation and translation, with children who are 

https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/policy/45-cfr-chap-xiii/_link


dual language learners and to the extent feasible, with families with limited English proficiency. 
If a majority of children in a classroom speak the same language, at least one classroom staff 
member must speak such language. 

Partner will ensure each staff member has an initial health examination; ensure that staff do 
not, because of communicable diseases, pose a significant risk to the health or safety of 
others in the classroom that cannot be eliminated or reduced by reasonable accommodations 
in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and section 504 of the Rehabilitation 
Act. 

Partner will make mental health and wellness information available to staff regarding 
health issues that may affect their job performance and provide regularly scheduled 
opportunities to learn about mental health, wellness and health education. 

VI. SUBMISSION OF REPORTS, RECORDS AND EVALUATIONS:

Both parties agree to prepare, retain and permit either party to inspect, as each party considers 
necessary, all records required for this program by the Iowa Department of Education and 
ACF/HHS regulations.  Both parties agree to carry out monitoring and evaluation activities to 
include; at a minimum, periodic observations of the daily program, conferring with staff and 
parents, validation of self-assessment procedures and on-site visits to conduct specific 
activities.  Both parties shall insure the cooperation of employees, policy groups and board 
members in those efforts. 

Both parties agree to submit such reports as may be required by Iowa Department of 
Education, HHS/ACF directives, including (but not exclusive of) computer reports, Self-
Assessment Instruments, improvement plans and financial reports.  Representatives by either 
parties shall have the right to inspect all such records and reports as related to the Head Start 
and West Monona preschool program.  

VII. PROVIDER GENERAL RESPONSIBILITY FOR SERVICE:

The Provider shall monitor, evaluate, and make assistance available to the Partner in 
conducting all activities under this Agreement. 

VIII. PROVIDER SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES FOR SERVICE:

Provider shall provide the following services: 

A. Assist in assuring education program improvement through monthly monitoring site
visits.

B. Systematically provide monthly monitoring reports to the Partner to ensure compliance
with the Head Start Program Performance Standards.

C. Provide and maintain one (1) Family Advocate to support Partner Head Start preschool
children and families with support services that are required by the Head Start Program



Performance Standards. 
D. Provide the required Head Start Program parent conferences and home visits required

by the Head Start Program Performance Standards.
E. Quarterly meetings to provide guidance on Head Start Program Performance Standards.

IX. DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:

Partner and Provider will not discriminate against any person employed in the performance of 
this Agreement, or against any applicant for employment because of race, sex, age, creed, 
religion, color, national origin, sexual orientation, political affiliation, veteran’s status, or 
handicapping condition.  This requirement shall apply to, but not be limited to the following: 
employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, selection for training, recruitment or 
recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation and 
all other privileges, terms and conditions of employment. 

No person shall, on the grounds of race, religion, sex, creed, color, national origin, sexual 
orientation, political affiliation, veteran’s status, or handicapping condition be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the  benefits of, or be subject to discrimination in the performance 
of this Agreement. 

X. POLITICAL ACTIVITY PROHIBITED:

None of the funds, materials, property, services contributed by the Provider or the Partner 
under this Agreement shall be used for any partisan political activity, (1) to further the election 
or defeat of any candidate for public office, or to pay directly or indirectly, the salary or 
expenses of either party to this contract or their agent, to engage in any activity designed to 
influence legislation or appropriations pending before Congress, (2) to provide voters or 
prospective voters with transportation to the polls or similar assistance in connection with any 
such election or (3) to assist any voter registration activity.  Nothing in the above statement is 
intended in any way to inhibit or discourage any party from exercising its lawful rights to 
attempt to influence legislation pending before Congress as long as the costs are not charged to 
this Preschool Contracted Services Agreement or the Head Start Program. 

XI. DRUG FREE ENVIRONMENT:

Provider and Partner shall not permit use of drugs, alcohol, or tobacco by its employees or 
contractors at any Location used for Primary or Secondary Services, in any motor vehicles 
owned or provided by either party or otherwise used in conjunction with providing Primary or 
Secondary Services, or in any manner in the presence or in the view of the children and families 
being served under this Agreement. 

XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPROVED PROGRAM:

Provider agrees to perform all activities authorized by this Agreement in accordance with the 



approved work program, the approved program funding, and the grant conditions inclusive of 
Head Start Program Performance Standards, Program Instructions, CFR 45 (Administration of 
Grants), Audit Guide, Head Start guidelines and all other HHS/ACF directives. 

XIII. SCHEDULE OF PAYMENT:

Provider agrees to pay the Partner as stated in the Method of Payment terms section of the 
Agreement. In no event shall the Partner payments to the Provider exceed the Maximum 
Funding for Services under this Agreement. 

XIV. CHANGES IN SERVICE:

Either party may request changes in the scope of the services to be performed under this 
Agreement.  Mutually agreed upon changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount 
of the Provider’s compensation or modification of the program funding, must be reduced to 
written form before they shall be enforceable by either party.  

XV. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES:

Provider and Partner warrants that no person, selling agency or other organization has been 
employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for 
a commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee.  For breach or violation of this warrant, 
either party shall have the right to annul this contract or otherwise recover the full amount of 
any such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee, or to seek such other legal 
remedies as may be available.  

XVI. HOLD HARMLESS, IDEMNIFICATION AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT:

Provider shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Partner from and against any and all 
losses, claims, liabilities, damages, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
costs, arising out of any negligence, willful misconduct, violation of law, and/or breach of this 
Agreement by the Provider, its employees, or agents. The Partner shall defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless the Provider from and against any and all losses, claims, liabilities, 
damages, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of any 
negligence, willful misconduct, violation of law, and/or breach of this Agreement by the 
Provider, its employees, or agents. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive termination 
of this Agreement. Term and Termination.  

The term of this Agreement shall commence on August 1, 2023 and end on  
July 31, 2024. The parties may renew this Agreement for an additional term as mutually 
determined by the parties. 

Either party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the other party if the other 



party fails to comply with any of the provisions of this Agreement, provided written notice of 
the breach shall be given to the breaching party and the breaching party shall have at least 
ten (10) days to cure the breach. Either party may terminate this Agreement immediately 
upon written notice to the other party if the other party becomes the subject of a proceeding 
under state or federal law for relief of debtors, or if an assignment is made for the benefit of 
creditors. In addition, either party may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, and 
without penalty, upon at least thirty (30) days’ written notice to the Provider. Upon the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement, the Provider will pay the Partner for all earned 
amounts up to the effective date of expiration or termination. 

Except in the case of the Provider’s loss of funding from HHS, financial assistance under this 
contract shall not be terminated or reduced, or an application for refunding denied or financial 
assistance suspended for longer than thirty (30) days unless the Provider has been afforded 
reasonable notice. 

XVII. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY
EXCLUSION:

A. Partner and Provider each certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.

B. Partner or Provider is unable now, or at any time during the term of this Agreement to
certify to any of the statements in this certification, either party shall immediately
provide an explanation in writing to the other party and this contract shall be subject to
immediate termination by either party in the event participation is disallowed as a result
of that debarment or suspension.

XVIII. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

General Liability: $1,000,000.00 each occurrence 
$2,000,000.00 aggregate 
$5,000.00 medical expense per person 
$1,000,000.00 personal & adv injury 
$2,000,000.00 products/completed op. 

Excess Liability Umbrella: $1,000,000.00 each occurrence 
$1,000,000.00 aggregate 

Professional Liability: $2,000,000.00 each occurrence 
$2,000,000.00 aggregate 

Sexual Abuse Coverage: $50,000.00 each person 
$250,000.00 maximum 



Worker’s Compensation: $500,000.00 each accident 
$500,000.00 each employee 
$500,000.00 total policy 



If all requirements for district use of funds under the Preschool Foundation Aid, 
Professional Development Supplement, Home School Assistance Program, Teacher 
Leadership Supplement or any discontinued fund teacher have been met and funds remain 
unexpended and unobligated at the end of the fiscal year, the district may transfer all or a 
portion of remaining funds by passage of a board resolution into the district’s flexibility 
account in accordance with law.  Before the expenditure of amounts in the flexibility 
account, the district shall publish notice of the time, date, and place of a public hearing on 
the proposed resolution approving said expenditures. The board must find and certify that 
the statutory requirements of each original source of funds have been met before adopting 
the resolution approving the expenditures. The district will present a copy of the signed 
board resolution to the Department of Education. 

The District may transfer by board resolution from the general fund to the student activity 
fund an amount needed to purchase or refurbish protective and safety equipment required 
for any extracurricular interscholastic athletic contest or competition sponsored or 
administered by the Iowa High School Athletic Association of Iowa Girls High School Athletic 
Union. 

If the before and after school program exceeds the amount necessary to operate the 
program, the excess amount may, following a public hearing, be transferred by resolution of 
the board of directors of the school corporation for deposit in the general fund of the school 
corporation to be used for school district general fund purposes. The district will present a 
copy of the signed board resolution to the Department of Education. 

The district may choose to request approval from the School Budget Review Committee to 
transfer funds to make a program whole, prior to its elimination. 

Temporary transfers (loans) of funds are permitted between funds but must be repaid to the 
originating fund, with interest, by Oct. 1 following the end of the fiscal year. 

A loan from one fund to the other will be at a rate of interest consistent with the state 
rate.  The period of the loan shall be for a reasonable period and no longer than one year from 
the beginning date of the loan. 

It is the responsibility of the board secretary to make recommendations to the board regarding 
transfers and to provide the documentation justifying the transfer. 

Approved November 11, 2013 May 17, 2023   
Reviewed October 29, 2013  May 17, 2023      
Revised November 26, 2018 May 17, 2023 

701.3 - Financial Records (minor revisions to enhance clarity) 



Financial records of the school district are maintained in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) as required or modified by law.  School district monies are 
received and expended from the appropriate fund and/or account. The funds and accounts of 
the school district will include, but not be limited to: 

Governmental fund type: 
• General fund
• Special revenue fund

• Management levy fund
• Physical plant and equipment levy fund
• Public education and recreation levy fund (PERL)
• Student activity fund

• Capital projects fund
• Physical plant and equipment levy fund (PPEL)
• Secure and Advanced Vision for Education (SAVE)

• Debt service fund
• State penny sales tax fund

Proprietary fund type: 
• Enterprise fund

• School nutrition fund
• Childcare fund

• Internal service fund

Fiduciary funds: 
• Trust or agency funds

• Expendable trust funds
• Nonexpendable trust funds
• Agency funds
• Pension trust funds

• Custodial funds

Account groups: 
• General capital assets account group
• General long-term debt account group

As necessary the board may, by board resolution, create additional funds within the 
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary fund types.  The resolution shall state the type of fund, 
name of the fund and purpose of the fund. 

The general fund is used primarily for the education program.  Special revenue funds are used 
to account for monies restricted to a specific use by law.  Proprietary funds account for 
operations of the school district operated similar to private business, and they account for the 



costs of providing goods and services provided by one department to other departments on a 
cost reimbursement basis.  Fiduciary funds are used to account for monies or assets held by the 
school district on behalf of, or in trust for, another entity.  The account groups are the 
accounting records for fixed assets and long-term debt. 

Approved November 11, 2013    
Reviewed October 29, 2013   May 17, 2023  
Revised November 26, 2018 May 17, 2023  

701.4 - Governmental Accounting Practices (no revisions) 

School district accounting practices will follow state and federal laws and regulations, generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and the uniform financial accounting system provided 
by the Iowa Department of Education.  As advised by the school district’s auditor, 
determination of liabilities and assets, prioritization of expenditures of governmental funds and 
provisions for accounting disclosures shall be made in accordance with governmental 
accounting standards. 

In Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54, the board identifies 
the order of spending unrestricted resources applying the highest level of classification of fund 
balance - restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned - while honoring constraints on the 
specific purposes for which amounts in those fund balances can be spent.  A formal board 
action is required to establish, modify and or rescind a committed fund balance.  The resolution 
will state the exact dollar amount.  In the event, the board chooses to make changes or rescind 
the committed fund balance, formal board action is required. 

The board authorizes the superintendent and school business manager to assign amounts to a 
specific purpose in compliance with GASB 54.  An ‘assigned fund balance’ should also be 
reported in the order of spending unrestricted resources, but is not restricted or committed. 

It is the responsibility of the superintendent to make recommendations to the board regarding 
fund balance designations. 

Approved: November 11, 2013 
Reviewed:  October 29, 2013 May 17, 2023 
Revised: November 26, 2018 

702.1 - Cash in School Buildings (no revisions) 



The amount of cash that may be kept in the school building for any one day is sufficient for that 
day’s operations.  Funds raised by students are kept in the locked fireproof vault or locked 
fireproof cabinet in the building or in the Administrative Center. 

A minimal amount of cash is kept in the central administration office at the close of the 
day.  Excess cash is deposited in the authorized depository of the school district. 

It is the responsibility of the superintendent to determine the amount of cash necessary for 
each day’s operations and to comply with this policy. 

Approved November 11, 2013    
Reviewed November 26, 2018   May 17, 2023 
Revised November 26, 2018 

703.1 - Budget Planning (minor revisions to reflect new budget deadline of April 30 enacted 
by HF 718) 

Prior to certification of the budget, the board will review the projected revenues and 
expenditures for the school district and make adjustments where necessary to carry out the 
education program within the revenues projected. 

A budget for the school district is prepared annually for the board’s review.  The budget will 
include the following: 

• the amount of revenues to be raised by taxation;
• the amount of revenues from sources other than taxation;
• an itemization of the amount to be spent in each fund; and,
• a comparison of the amount spent and revenue received in each fund for like purposes

in the two prior fiscal years. 

It is the responsibility of the superintendent and the board secretary/treasurer to prepare the 
budget for review by the board prior to the April 15 30 deadline each year. 

Prior to the adoption of the proposed budget by the board, the public is apprised of the 
proposed budget for the school district.  Prior to the adoption of the proposed budget by the 
board, members of the school district community will have an opportunity to review and 
comment on the proposed budget.  A public hearing for the proposed budget of the board is 
held each year in sufficient time to file the adopted budget no later than April 15 30. 

The proposed budget filed by the board with the board secretary and the time and place for the 
public hearing on the proposed budget is published in a newspaper designated for official 
publication in the school district.  It is the responsibility of the board secretary to publish the 



proposed budget and public hearing information at least 20 but no more than 10 days prior to 
the public hearing. 

The board will adopt and certify a budget for the operation of the school district to the county 
auditor by April 15 30.  It is the responsibility of the board secretary to file the adopted and 
certified budget with the county auditor and other proper authorities. 

The board may amend the budget for the fiscal year in the event of unforeseen 
circumstances.  The amendment procedures will follow the procedures for public review and 
adoption of the original budget by the board outlined in these policies. 

It is the responsibility of the superintendent and the board secretary to bring any budget 
amendments necessary to the attention of the board to allow sufficient time to file the 
amendment with the county auditor no later than May 31 of each year. 

Approved November 11, 2013 May 17, 2023   
Reviewed November 26, 2018 May 17, 2023   
Revised November 26, 2018 May 17, 2023   

703.2 - Spending Plan (no revisions) 

The budget of the school district is the authority for the expenditures of the school district for 
the fiscal year for which the budget was adopted and certified.  It is the responsibility of the 
superintendent to operate the school district within the budget. 

Approved November 11, 2013    
Reviewed November 26, 2018  May 17, 2023   
Revised November 26, 2018 

704.1 - Local, State, Federal, and Miscellaneous Revenue (no revisions) 

Revenues of the school district are received by the board treasurer.  Other persons receiving 
revenues on behalf of the school district will promptly turn them over to the board treasurer. 

Revenue, from whatever source, is accounted for and classified under the official accounting 
system of the school district.  It is the responsibility of the board treasurer to deposit the 
revenues received by the school district in a timely manner.  School district funds from all 
sources will not be used for private gain or political purposes. 



Tuition fees received by the school district are deposited in the general fund.  The tuition fees 
for kindergarten through twelfth grade during the regular academic school year are set by the 
board based upon the superintendent’s recommendation in compliance with current 
law.  Tuition fees for summer school, driver’s education and adult education are set by the 
board prior to the offering of the programs. 

The board may charge materials fees for the use or purchase of educational 
materials.  Materials fees received by the school district are deposited in the general fund.  It is 
the responsibility of the superintendent to recommend to the board when materials fees will 
be charged and the amount of the materials fees. 

Rental fees received by the school district for the rental of school district equipment or facilities 
are deposited in the general fund.  It is the responsibility of the superintendent to recommend 
to the board a fee schedule for renting school district property. 

Proceeds from the sale of real property are placed in the physical plant and equipment 
levy (PPEL) fund. However, following a properly noticed public hearing, the board of directors 
may elect to deposit proceeds from the sale of real property or buildings into any fund under 
the control of the school corporation.  Notice for the public hearing must be published in a 
newspaper of general circulation within the district not less than ten and no more than twenty 
days prior to the proposed public hearing.  Notice of the public hearing must include the date, 
time and location of the public hearing, and a description of the proposed action. The proceeds 
from the sale of other school district property are placed in the general fund. 

The board may claim exemption from the law prohibiting competition with private enterprise 
for the following activities: 

• Goods and services directly and reasonably related to the educational mission;
• Goods and services offered only to students, employees or guests, which cannot be

provided by private enterprise at the same or lower cost; 
• Use of vehicles for charter trips offered to the public, full- or part-time, or temporary

students; 
• Goods and services, which are not otherwise available in the quantity or quality

required by the school district; 
• Telecommunications other than radio or television stations;
• Sponsoring or providing facilities for fitness and recreation;
• Food service and sales; and,
• Sale of books, records, tapes, software, educational equipment, and supplies.

It is the responsibility of the superintendent to bring to the board’s attention additional sources 
of revenue for the school district. 



Approved November 11, 2013    
Reviewed August 23, 2021  May 17, 2023  
Revised August 23, 2021 

704.2 - Debt Management (no changes) 

DEBT LIMITS 

Credit Ratings 

The school district seeks to maintain the highest possible credit ratings for all categories of 
short- and long-term debt that can be achieved without compromising the delivery of 
services and the achievement of adopted objectives.  The school district recognizes 
that external economic, natural, or other events may from time 
to time affect the creditworthiness of its debt. Nevertheless, the school district is committed 
to ensuring that actions within their control are prudent. 

Debt Limits 

For general obligation debt, the school district’s outstanding debt limit shall be no more than 
five percent (5%) of the actual value of property within the school district’s boundaries, as 
prescribed in the Iowa constitution and statutory restrictions. 

For revenue debt, the school district’s goal is to provide adequate debt service coverage of at 
least 1.20 times the annual debt service costs. 

In accordance with Iowa law, the school district may not act as a conduit issuer or issue 
municipal securities to raise capital for revenue-generating projects where 
the funds generated are used by a third party (“conduit borrower”) to make payments to 
investors. 

PURPOSES AND USES OF DEBT 

Capital Planning 

To enhance creditworthiness and prudent financial management, the school 
district is committed to systematic capital planning 
intergovernmental cooperation and coordination and long-term financial planning. 

Capital Financing 

The school district may issue long-term debt for capital projects as authorized by Iowa law, 
which include, but are not limited to, the costs of planning, design, land acquisition, buildings, 



permanent structures, attached fixtures or equipment, and movable pieces of equipment. 
Capitalized interest may be included in sizing any capital project debt issue.  The types of debt 
instruments to be used by the school district include: 

• General Obligation Bonds
• General Obligation Capital Loan Notes
• Bond Anticipation Notes
• Revenue Anticipation Notes
• School Infrastructure Sales, Services and Use Tax Revenue Bonds
• Lease Purchase Agreements, including Certificates of Participation

Working Capital Financing 

The school district may issue debt for working capital for operations after cash flow analysis 
has determined that there is a mismatch between available cash and cash 
outflows.  The school district shall strive to repay working capital debt by the end of 
the fiscal year in which the debt was incurred.  A Working Capital Reserve may be included in 
sizing any working capital debt issue. 

Refundings 

Periodic reviews of all outstanding debt will be undertaken to determine if refunding 
opportunities exist. Refunding will be considered (within federal tax law restraints) if and when 
there is a net economic benefit of the refunding or if the refunding is otherwise in the best 
interests of the school district, such as to release restrictive bond covenants which affect the 
operations and management of the school district. 
In general, advance refundings for economic savings will be undertaken when a net present 
value savings exceeds three percent of the refunded debt can be achieved.  Current refundings, 
which produce a new present value savings of less than three percent will be considered on 
a case by case basis taking into consideration bond covenants 
and general conditions.  Refundings with negative savings will not be considered unless there is 
a compelling public policy objective for doing so. 

DEBT STANDARDS AND STRUCTURE 

Length of Debt 

Debt will be structured for the shortest period consistent with a fair allocation of costs to 
current and future beneficiaries or users.  Long-term debt will not be issued for periods 
exceeding the useful life or average useful lives of the project or projects to be financed.  All 
debt issued will adhere to state and federal law regarding the length of time the debt may be 
outstanding. 

Debt Structure 



Debt will be structured to achieve the lowest possible net cost to the school district given 
market conditions, the urgency of the capital project, the type of debt being issued, and the 
nature and type of repayment source.  To the extent possible, the school district will design the 
repayment of its overall debt to rapidly recapture its credit capacity for future use. 

Generally, the school district will only issue fixed-rate debt.  In very limited circumstances, the 
school district may issue variable rate debt, consistent with the limitations of Iowa law and 
upon a finding of the board that the use of fixed rate debt is not in the best interest of 
the school district and a statement of the reasons for the use of variable rate debt. 

All debt may be structured using discount, par or premium coupons, and as serial or term bonds 
or notes, or any combination thereof, consistent with Iowa law.  The school district should 
utilize the coupon structure that produces the lowest True Interest Cost (TIC) taking 
into consideration the call option value of any callable maturities. 

The school district will strive to structure their debt in sinking fund installments for each debt 
issue that achieves, as nearly as practicable, level debt service within an issue or overall debt 
service within a particular classification of debt. 

Derivatives (including, but not limited to, interest rate swaps, caps, 
collars, corridors, ceiling and floor agreements, forward agreements, float agreements, or 
other similar financing arrangements), zero-coupon or capital appreciation bonds are not 
allowed to be issued consistent with State law. 

Decision Analysis to Issue Debt 

Whenever the school district is contemplating the issuance of debt, information will be 
developed concerning the following four categories commonly used by 
rating agencies assessing the school district’s credit worthiness, listed below. 

Debt Analysis – Debt capacity analysis; purpose for which debt is proposed to be issued; debt 
structure; debt burden; debt history and trends; and adequacy of debt and capital planning. 

Financial Analysis – Stability, diversity, and growth rates of tax or other revenue sources; trend 
in assessed valuation and collections; current budget trends; appraisal of past 
revenue and expenditure trends; history and long-term trends of revenues and expenditures; 
evidences of financial planning; adherence to GAAP; audit results; fund balance status and 
trends in operating and debt funds; financial monitoring systems and capabilities; and cash flow 
projections. 

Governmental and Administrative Analysis – Government organization structure; location 
of financial responsibilities and degree of control; adequacy of basic service provision; 
intergovernmental cooperation/conflict and extent of duplication; and overall planning efforts. 



Economic Analysis – Geographic and location advantages; population and 
demographic characteristics; wealth indicators; types of employment, 
industry and occupation; housing characteristics; new construction; evidences of industrial 
decline; and trend of the economy. 

DEBT ISSUANCE 

Credit Enhancement 

Credit enhancements (.i.e., bond insurance, etc.) may be used but only when the net debt 
service on the debt is reduced by more than the costs of the credit enhancement. 

Costs and Fees 

All costs and fees related to issuing the debt will be paid out of debt proceeds 
and allocated across all projects receiving proceeds of the debt issue. 

Method of Sale 

Generally, all school district debt will be sold through a competitive bidding process.  Bids will 
be awarded on a TIC basis providing other bidding requirements are satisfied. 

The school district may sell debt using a negotiated process in extraordinary circumstances 
when the complexity of the issue requires specialized expertise, when the negotiated sale 
would result in substantial savings in time or money, or when market conditions of school 
district credit are unusually volatile or uncertain. 

Professional Service Providers 

The school district will retain external bond counsel for all debt issues.  All debt issued by 
the school district will include a written opinion by bond counsel affirming that the school 
district is authorized to issue the debt, stating that the school district has met 
all Iowa constitutional and statutory requirements necessary for issuance and determining 
the debt’s federal income tax status.  The bond counsel retained must have comprehensive 
municipal debt experience and a thorough understanding of Iowa law as it relates to the 
issuance of the particular debt. 

The school district will retain an independent financial advisor.  The financial advisor will be 
responsible for structuring and preparing all offering documents for each debt issue.  The 
financial advisor retained will have comprehensive municipal debt experience, experience with 
diverse financial structuring and pricing of municipal securities. 



The treasurer shall have the authority to periodically select other service providers 
(e.g., escrow agents, verification agents, trustees, arbitrage consultants, rebate 
specialist, etc.) as necessary to meet legal requirements and minimize net debt costs.  These 
services can include debt restructuring services and security or escrow purchases. 

Compensation for bond counsel, financial advisor and other service providers will 
be as economical as possible and consistent with industry standards for the desired 
qualification levels. 

DEBT MANAGEMENT 

Investment of Debt Proceeds 

The school district shall invest all proceeds received from the issuance of debt separate from 
the school district’s consolidated cash pool unless otherwise specified by the authorizing bond 
resolution or trust indenture.  Investments will be consistent with 
those authorized by Iowa law and the school district’s Investment Policy to maintain safety of 
principal and liquidity of the funds. 

Arbitrage and Record Keeping Compliance 

The treasurer shall maintain a system of record-keeping, reporting and compliance 
procedures with respect to all federal tax requirements which are currently, or may 
become applicable through the lifetime of all tax-exempt or tax credit bonds. 
Federal tax compliance, record-keeping, reporting and compliance procedures shall include not 
be limited to: 

1) post-issuance compliance procedures (including proper use of proceeds,
timely expenditure of proceeds, proper use of bond financed property, yield 
restriction and rebate, and timely return filing); 

2) proper maintenance of records to support federal tax compliance;
3) investments and arbitrage compliance;
4) expenditures and assets;
5) private business use; and
6) designation of primary responsibilities for federal tax compliance of all

bond financings. 

Financial Disclosure 

The school district is committed to full and complete financial disclosure, and to cooperating 
fully with rating agencies, institutional and individual investors, other levels of government, 
and the general public to share comprehensible and accurate financial information.  The school 
district is dedicated to meeting secondary disclosure requirements on a 
timely and comprehensive basis, as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission. 



The Official Statements accompanying debt issues, Annual Audits, and Continuing Disclosure 
statements will meet the standards articulated by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
(MSRB), the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC), Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the Internal 
Revenue Service (IRS).  The treasurer shall be responsible for ongoing debt disclosure as 
required by any Continuing Disclosure Certificate for any debt issue and for 
maintaining compliance with disclosure standards promulgated by state and federal regulatory 
bodies. 

Approved November 11, 2013    
Reviewed November 26, 2018  May 17, 2023  
Revised November 26, 2018 

704.2R1 - Post-Issuance Compliance Regulation for Tax-Exempt Obligations (no revisions) 

1. Role of Compliance Coordinator/Board Treasurer

 The board treasurer shall: 

a) Be responsible for monitoring post-issuance compliance;
b) Maintain a copy of the transcript of proceedings or minutes in connection with the

issuance of any tax-exempt obligations and obtain records that are necessary to 
meet the requirements of this regulation; 

c) Consult with bond counsel, a rebate consultant, financial advisor, IRS publications
and such other resources as are necessary to understand and meet the 
requirements of this regulation; 

d) Seek out training and education to be implemented upon the occurrence of new
developments in the area and upon the hiring of new personnel to implement this 
regulation. 

2. Financing Transcripts’ Filing and Retention

 The board treasurer shall confirm the proper filing of an IRS 8038 Series return and 
maintain a transcript of proceedings and minutes for all tax-exempt obligations issued 
by the school district including, but not limited to, all tax-exempt bonds, notes and 
lease-purchase contracts. Each transcript shall be maintained until 11 years after the 
tax-exempt obligation documents have been retired. The transcript shall include, at a 
minimum: 

a) Form 8038;
b) Minutes, resolutions and certificates;



c) Certifications of issue price from the underwriter;
d) Formal elections required by the IRS;
e) Trustee statements;
f) Records of refunded bonds, if applicable;
g) Correspondence relating to bond financings; and
h) Reports of any IRS examinations for bond financings.

3. Proper Use of Proceeds

 The board treasurer shall review the resolution authorizing issuance for each tax-exempt 
obligation issued by the school district and the school district shall: 

a) Obtain a computation of the yield on such issue from the school district’s financial
advisor; 

b) Create a separate Project Fund (with as many sub-funds as shall be necessary to
allocate proceeds among the projects being funded by the issue) into which the 
proceeds of issue shall be deposited; 

c) Review all requisitions, draw schedules, draw requests, invoices and bills requesting
payment from the Project Fund; 

d) Determine whether payment from the Project Fund is appropriate and, if so, make
payment from the Project Fund (and appropriate sub-fund, if applicable); 

e) Maintain records of the payment requests and corresponding records showing
payment; 

f) Maintain records showing the earnings on, and investment of, the Project Fund;
g) Ensure that all investments acquired with proceeds are purchased at fair market

value; 
h) Identify bond proceeds or applicable debt service allocations that must be invested

with a yield-restriction and monitor the investments of any yield-restricted funds to 
ensure that the yield on such investments do not exceed the yield to which such 
investments are restricted; 

i) Maintain records related to any investment contracts, credit enhancement
transactions and the bidding of financial products related to the proceeds. 

4. Timely Expenditure and Arbitrage/Rebate Compliance

     The board treasurer shall review the Tax-Exemption Certificate (or equivalent) for each 
tax-exempt obligation issued by the school district and the expenditure records 
provided in Section 2 of this regulation, above and shall: 

a) Monitor and ensure that proceeds of each such issue are spent within the
temporary period set forth in such certificate; 



b) Monitor and ensure that the proceeds are spent in accordance with one or more of
the applicable exceptions to rebate as set forth in such certificate if the school 
district does not meet the “small  issuer” exception for said obligation; 

c) Not less than 60 days prior to a required expenditure date, confer with bond
counsel and a rebate consultant, if the school district will fail to meet the 
applicable temporary period or rebate exception expenditure requirements of the 
Tax-Exemption Certificate.  In the event the school district fails to meet a 
temporary period or rebate exception: 
1. Procure a timely computation of any rebate liability and, if rebate is due, file a

Form 8038-T and arrange for payment of such rebate liability; 
2. Arrange for timely computation and payment of yield reduction payments (as

such term is defined in the Code and Treasury Regulations), if applicable. 

5. Proper Use of Bond Financed Assets

 The board treasurer shall: 

a) Maintain appropriate records and a list of all bond financed assets.  Such records
shall include the actual amount of proceeds (including investment earnings) spent 
on each of the bond financed assets; 

b) Monitor and confer with bond counsel with respect to all proposed bond financed
assets; 
1. management contracts;
2. service agreements;
3. research contracts;
4. naming rights contracts;
5. leases or sub-leases;
6. joint venture, limited liability or partnership arrangements;
7. sale of property; or
8. any other change in use of such asset.

c) Maintain a copy of the proposed agreement, contract, lease or arrangement,
together with the response by bond counsel with respect to said proposal for at 
least three years after retirement of all tax-exempt obligations issued to fund all or 
any portion of bond financed assets; and 

d) Contact bond counsel and ensure timely remedial action under IRS Regulation
Sections 1.141-12 in the event the school district takes an action with respect to a 
bond financed asset, which causes the private business tests or private loan 
financing test to be met. 

6. General Project Records



 For each project financed with tax-exempt obligations, the board treasurer shall 
maintain, until three years after retirement of the tax-exempt obligations or obligations 
issued to refund those obligations, the following: 

a) Appraisals, demand surveys or feasibility studies;
b) Applications, approvals and other documentation of grants;
c) Depreciation schedules;
d) Contracts respecting the project.

7. Advance Refundings

 The board treasurer shall be responsible for the following current, post issuance and 
record retention procedures with respect to advance refunding bonds.  The board 
treasurer shall: 

a) Identify and select bonds to be advance refunded with advice from internal
financial personnel and a financial advisor; 

b) Identify, with advice from the financial advisor and bond counsel, any possible
federal tax compliance issues prior to structuring any advance refunding; 

c) Review the structure with the input of a financial advisor and bond counsel, of
advance refunding issues prior to the issuance to ensure; 

(1) that the proposed refunding is permitted pursuant to applicable federal tax
requirements if there has been a prior refunding of the original bond issue; 

(2) that the proposed issuance complies with federal income tax requirements
which might impose restrictions on the redemption date of the refunded 
bonds; 

(3) that the proposed issuance complies with federal income tax requirements
which allow for the proceeds and replacement proceeds of an issue to be 
invested temporarily in higher yielding investments without causing the 
advance refunding bonds to become “arbitrage bonds”; and 

(4) that the proposed issuance will not result in the issuer’s exploitation of the
difference between tax exempt and taxable interest rates to obtain an 
financial advantage nor overburden the tax exempt market in a way that 
might be considered an abusive transaction for federal tax purposes; 

d) Collect and review data related to arbitrage yield restriction and rebate
requirements for advance refunding bonds. To ensure such compliance, the 
board treasurer shall engage a rebate consultant to prepare a verification report 
in connection with the advance refunding issuance. Said report shall ensure said 
requirements are satisfied; 

e) Whenever possible, purchase State and Local Government Series (SLGS) to size
each advance refunding escrow. The financial advisor shall be included in the 
process of subscribing SLGS. To the extent SLGS are not available for purchase, 



the Board treasurer shall, in consultation with bond counsel and the financial 
advisor, comply with IRS regulations; 

f) Ensure, after input from bond counsel, compliance with any bidding requirements
set forth by the IRS regulations to the extent as issuer elects to the purchase of a 
guaranteed investment contract; 

g) In determining the issue price for any advance refunding issuance, obtain and
retain issue price certification by the purchasing underwriter at closing; 

h) After the issuance of an advance refunding issue, ensure timely identification of
violations of any federal tax requirements and engage bond counsel in attempt to 
remediate same in accordance with IRS regulations. 

8. Continuing Disclosure

     The board treasurer shall assure compliance with each continuing disclosure certificate 
and annually, per continuing disclosure agreements, file audited annual financial 
statements and other information required by each continuing disclosure agreement. 
The board treasurer will monitor material events as described in each continuing 
disclosure agreement and assure compliance with material event disclosure. Events to 
be reported shall be reported promptly, but in no event not later than 10 business days 
after the day of the occurrence of the event.  Currently, such notice shall be given in the 
event of: 

a) Principal and interest payment delinquencies;
b) Non-payment related defaults, if material;
c) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
d) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements relating to the bonds reflecting

financial difficulties; 
e) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
f) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or

final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB), 
or other material notices, or determinations with respect to the tax-exempt 
status of the bonds, or material events affecting the tax-exempt status of the 
bonds; 

g) Modifications to rights of Holders of the Bonds, if material;
h) Bond calls (excluding sinking fund mandatory redemptions), if material and tender

offers; 
i) Defeasances of the bonds;
j) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the bonds, if

material; 
k) Rating changes on the bonds;
1) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer;
m) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer

or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the 



ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake 
such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such 
actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and 

n) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee, if material. 

704.3 – Investments (no changes) 

School district funds in excess of current needs are invested in compliance with this policy.  The 
goals of the school district’s investment portfolio in order of priority are: 

• To provide safety of the principal;
• To maintain the necessary liquidity to match expected liabilities; and
• To obtain a reasonable rate of return.

In making investments, the school district will exercise the care, skill, prudence and diligence 
under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and 
familiar with such matters would use to meet the goals of the investment program. 

School district funds are monies of the school district, including operating funds.  “Operating 
funds” of the school district are funds that are reasonably expected to be used during a current 
budget year or within fifteen months of receipt.  When investing operating funds, the 
investments must mature within three hundred and ninety-seven days or less.  When investing 
funds other than operating funds, the investments must mature according to the need for the 
funds. 

The board authorizes the treasurer to invest funds in excess of current needs in the following 
investments: 

• Interest bearing savings, money market, and checking accounts at the school district’s
authorized depositories; 

• Qualified investment pool, including, but not limited to, Iowa Schools Joint Investment
Trust Program (ISJIT); 

• Certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit at federally insured Iowa
depository institutions; and, 

• Obligations of the United States government, its agencies, and instrumentalities.

It is the responsibility of the treasurer to oversee the investment portfolio in compliance with 
this policy and the law. 

The treasurer is responsible for reporting to and reviewing with the board at its regular 
meetings the investment portfolio’s performance, transaction activity and current investments 
including the percent of the investment portfolio by type of investment and by issuer and 



maturities.  It shall also be the responsibility of the treasurer to obtain the information 
necessary to ensure that the investments and the outside persons doing business with the 
school district meet the requirements outlined in this policy. 

It is the responsibility of the superintendent to deliver a copy of this policy to the school 
district’s depositories, auditor and outside persons doing investment business with the school 
district.  It will also be the responsibility of the superintendent, in conjunction with the 
treasurer, to develop a system of investment practices and internal controls over the 
investment practices.  The investment practices are designed to prevent losses, to document 
the officers’ and employees’ responsibility for elements of the investment process and address 
the capability of the management. 

Approved November 11, 2013    
Reviewed October 29, 2013   May 17, 20223     
Revised November 26, 2018 

704.4 - Gifts, Grants, and Bequests 

The board believes gifts, grants, and bequests to the school district may be accepted 
when they will further the interests of the school district.  The board will have sole 
authority to determine whether the gift furthers the interests of the school district.  The 
board reserves the right to turn away a gift, grant, and/or bequest that places an undue 
burden on the school district if the school district were to accept. 

Gifts, grants, and bequests are approved by the board.  Once it has been approved by 
the board, a board member or the superintendent may accept the gift on behalf of the 
school district. 

Gifts, grants, and bequests once accepted on behalf of the school district become the 
property of the school district.  Gifts, grants, and bequests are administered in 
accordance with terms, if any, agreed to by the board. 

The board also recognizes and supports the Red Oak Community School District 
Foundation, Inc., which has been established to accept grants, bequests, gifts, and 
other contributions.

Approved November 11, 2013    
Reviewed October 29, 2013  May 17, 2023      
Revised November 26, 2018 

704.5 - Student Activities Fund (no changes) 



Revenue raised by students or from student activities is deposited and accounted for in the 
student activities fund.  This revenue is the property of and is under the financial control of the 
board.  Students may use this revenue for purposes approved by the superintendent or 
superintendent’s designee. 

Whether such revenue is collected from student contributions, club dues, and special activities 
or result from admissions to special events or from other fund-raising activities, all funds will be 
under the jurisdiction of the board and under the specific control of the superintendent or 
superintendent’s designee.  They will be deposited in a designated depository and will be 
disbursed and accounted for in accordance with instructions issued by the superintendent. 

It is the responsibility of the board secretary to keep student activity accounts up-to-date and 
complete. 

Any unencumbered class or activity account balances will automatically revert to the activity 
fund when a class graduates or an activity is discontinued. 

Approved November 11, 2013    
Reviewed November 26, 2018  May 17, 2023  
Revised November 26, 2018 

704.6 ONLINE FUNDRAISING CAMPAIGNS – CROWDFUNDING (no revisions) 

The Red Oak Community School District Board of Education believes online fundraising 
campaigns, including crowdfunding campaigns, may further the interests of the district. Any 
person or entity acting on behalf of the district and wishing to conduct any fundraising 
campaign, online or otherwise, for the benefit of the district shall begin the process by seeking 
prior approval from the Superintendent.  Any fundraising efforts conducted using the district's 
name, symbols, or imagery will be conducted in accordance with all policies, regulations and 
rules for fundraising within the district.  Money or items raised by an online fundraising 
campaign will be the property of the district only upon acceptance by the board, and will be 
used only in accordance with the terms for which they were given, as agreed to by the board. 

Approval of requests shall depend on factors including, but not limited to: 

• Compatibility with the district’s educational program, mission, vision, core values, and
beliefs; 

• Congruence with the district and school goals that positively impact student
performance; 

• The district’s instructional priorities;



• The manner in which donations are collected and distributed by the crowdfunding
platform; 

• Equity in funding; and
• Other factors deemed relevant or appropriate by the district.

If approved, the requestor shall be responsible for preparing all materials and information 
related to the online fundraising campaign and keeping district administration apprised of the 
status of the campaign. 

The requestor is responsible for compliance with all state and federal laws and other relevant 
district policies and procedures. All items and money generated are subject to the same 
controls and regulations as other district property and shall be deposited or inventoried 
accordingly. No money raised or items purchased shall be distributed to individual employees. 

Legal Reference: 
Iowa Code §§ 279.8; 279.42; 565.6. 

Approved:  August 23, 2021  
Reviewed:  August 23, 2021 May 17, 2023 
Revised:  August 23, 2021 

705.1 Purchasing and Bidding (significant revisions based recent bidding threshold revisions; 
note new regulations regarding suspension and debarment and the use of federal funds) 

The board supports economic development in Iowa, particularly in the local community.  As 
permitted by law, purchasing preference will be given to Purchases by the school district will be 
made in Iowa for Iowa goods and services from a locally-owned businesses located within the 
school district or from an Iowa-based company that offers these goods or services if the cost 
and other considerations are relatively equal and they meet the required specifications. 
However, when spending federal Child Nutrition Funds, geographical preference is allowed 
only for unprocessed agricultural food items as a part of response evaluation. Other 
statutory purchasing preferences will be applied as provided by law, including goals and 
reporting with regard to procurement from certified targeted small businesses, minority-
owned businesses, and female-owned businesses. 

Prior to August 15 of each year and after analyzing the school district’s anticipated 
procurement level for the current fiscal year, the school board will set a goal of ten percent of 
the anticipated procurement level to be purchased from certified targeted small businesses. In 
determining the procurement level, the cost of utilities (heat, electricity, telephone and natural 
gas) and employees’ costs will not be included.  After the goal has been established, the 
superintendent will file the required Targeted Small Business Procurement form with the 
Department of Education by August 15. 



By July 31 of each year, the superintendent will file a report with the Department of Education 
outlining purchases of goods and services from targeted small businesses for the previous fiscal 
year. 

The school board and superintendent will encourage targeted small businesses that are not 
certified with the Department of Inspections and Appeals to become certified targeted small 
businesses. 

All Projects 

It is the responsibility of the superintendent to approve purchases, except those authorized by 
or requiring direct board action.  The superintendent may coordinate and combine purchases 
with other governmental bodies to take advantage of volume price breaks.  Joint purchases 
with other political subdivisions will be considered in the purchase of equipment, accessories or 
attachments with an estimated cost of $50,000 or more. 

The superintendent will have the authority to authorize purchases without competitive bids for 
goods and services costing under $5,000 without prior board approval.  For goods and services 
costing more than $5,000, the superintendent will receive, at a minimum, quotes of the goods 
and services to be purchased prior to approval of the board. 

In the event that only one quotation or bid is submitted, the board may proceed if the 
quotation or bid meets the contract award specifications. 

The contract award may be based on several cost considerations including, but not limited to 
the following: 

• The cost of the goods and services being purchased;
• Availability of service and/or repair;
• The targeted small business procurement goal and other statutory purchasing

preferences; and
• Other factors deemed relevant by the board.

When using federal Child Nutrition funds to purchase goods and services, dollars spent annually 
must be estimated.  It is acceptable to categorize (e.g. groceries, milk, produce, small 
equipment, large equipment, supplies, and chemicals).  A formal sealed bid procurement 
process is required when annual spending in the category exceeds $25,000 annually.  An 
informal process is used for all other purchases under the threshold annually.  Documentation 
of informal procurement activity is kept on file. 

Public Improvement Projects 

For goods and services utilized in If the total estimated cost of a public improvement projects, 
as defined under Iowa law, costing is less than $57,000 $81,000 (or as outlined by law) or less, 



the superintendent shall receive quotes of for the goods and services to be purchased prior to 
approval of the purchase by the superintendent or the board. The board may award the 
contract in the best interest of the District. 

For goods and services utilized in If the total estimated cost of a public improvement projects, 
as defined under Iowa law, costing more is greater than $57,000 $81,000 (or as outlined by 
law) and less than $139,000 $196,000, the superintendent shall receive at least two 
competitive quotations for the work in accordance with the process required under Iowa law 
of the goods and services to be purchased prior to approval by the board.  The District will 
contract with purchase will be made from the party submitting the lowest responsive, 
responsible quotation based upon total cost considerations including, but not limited to, the 
cost of the goods and services being purchased, availability of service and/or repair, delivery 
date, and other factors deemed relevant by the board. 

For goods and services utilized in If the total estimated cost of a public improvement projects, 
as defined under Iowa law, costing more is greater than $139,000  $196,000 (or as outlined by 
law), the superintendent shall receive competitive sealed bids in accordance with the process 
required by Iowa law of the goods and services to be purchased prior to approval of the board 
awarding the contract for construction.  The purchase will be made from the party submitting 
the lowest responsive, responsible bid based upon total cost considerations including, but not 
limited to, the cost of the goods and services being purchased, availability of service and/or 
repair, delivery date, and other factors deemed relevant by the board. 

The board and the superintendent will have the right to reject any or all bids, or any part 
thereof, and to re-advertise.  If it is determined that a targeted small business which bid on the 
project may be unable to perform the contract, the superintendent will notify the Department 
of Economic Development.  The board will enter into such contract or contracts as the board 
deems in the best interests of the school district. 

The district shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations required for 
procurement, including the selection and evaluation of contractors.  The superintendent or 
designee is responsible for developing an administrative process to implement this policy, 
including, but not limited to, procedures related to suspension and debarment for 
transactions subject to those requirements. 

Approved November 11, 2013    May 17, 2023 
Reviewed October 29, 2013 May 17, 2023       
Revised November 26, 2018 May 17, 2023 

705.1R1 Purchasing and Bidding Protest Procedure (originally approved March 8, 2021 due to 
ESSER requirements) 



A. Any actual or prospective bidder, offeror, or contractor who considers himself to have been
aggrieved in connection with the solicitation, evaluation, or award of a contract by the Red 
Oak Community School District may formally protest to the School Business Official of the 
Red Oak Community School District. Such protests must be made in writing and received by 
the School Business Official of the Red Oak Community School District within seven (7) days 
of the award of the contract. The protesting party must mail or deliver copies of the protest 
to the Red Oak Community School District, the State Agency, and other interested parties. 

B. In the event of a timely protest, the Red Oak Community School District shall not proceed
further with the solicitation or award of the contract. 

C. A formal protest must be sworn and contain:
1. A specific identification of the statutory or regulatory provision that the protesting party

alleges has been violated. 
2. A specific description of each action by the Red Oak Community School District that the

protesting party alleges to be a violation of the statutory or regulatory provision that the 
protesting party has identified. 

3. A precise statement of the relevant facts.
4. A statement of any issues of law or fact that the protesting party contends must be

resolved. 
5. A statement of the argument and authorities that the protesting party offers in support of

the protest. 
6. A statement that copies of the protest have been mailed or delivered to the State Agency

and all other identifiable interested parties. 

D. The Red Oak Community School District may settle and resolve the dispute over the solicitation
or award of a contract at any time before the matter is submitted on appeal to the Board. 
The Red Oak Community School District may solicit written responses to the protest from 
other interested parties. 

E. If the protest is not resolved by mutual agreement, the Red Oak Community School District
shall issue a written determination that resolves the protest. 

1. If the Red Oak Community School District determines that no violation of statutory or
regulatory provisions has occurred, then the Red Oak Community School District shall 
inform the protesting party, the State Agency, and other interested parties by letter that 
sets forth the reasons for the determination. 

2. If the Red Oak Community School District determines that a violation of any statutory or
regulatory provisions has occurred in a situation in which a contract has not been awarded, 
then the Red Oak Community School District shall inform the protesting party, the State 
Agency, and other interested parties of that determination by letter that details the 
reasons for the determination and the appropriate remedy. 

3. If the Red Oak Community School District determines that a violation of any statutory or
regulatory provisions has occurred in a situation in which a contract has been awarded, 
then the Red Oak Community School District shall inform the protesting party, the State 



Agency, and other interested parties of that determination by letter that details the 
reasons for the determination. This letter may include an order that declares the contract 
void. 

F. The Red Oak Community School District shall maintain all documentation on the purchasing
process that is the subject of a protest or appeal in accordance with the retention schedule of 
Red Oak Community School. 

705.1R2 Suspension and Debarment of Vendors and Contractors Procedure 

In connection with transactions subject to federal suspension and debarment requirements, the 
district is prohibited from entering into transactions with parties that are debarred, suspended, 
or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in federal assistance programs or 
activities.  

When soliciting bids or otherwise preparing to enter into such a transaction, the 
superintendent or designee will use at least one of the following verification methods to ensure 
that any parties to the transaction are not suspended or debarred prior to committing to any 
sub-award, purchase, or contract: 

1. Obtaining a certification of a party’s compliance with the federal suspension and
debarment requirements in connection with any application, bid, or proposal;

2. Requiring compliance with the federal suspension and debarment requirements as an
express condition of any sub-award, purchase, or contract in question; or

3. Prior to committing to any sub-award, purchase, or contract, check the online Federal
System for Award Management at https://sam.gov/portal/SAM/##11 to determine
whether the relevant party is subject to any suspension or debarment restrictions.

2 CFR Part 200 Subpart B-General Provisions 
200.113 Mandatory Disclosures 

A non-Federal entity or applicant for a Federal award must disclose, in a timely manner, in 
writing to the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity all violations of Federal criminal 
law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the Federal award. Non-
Federal entities that have received a Federal award including the term and condition outlined in 
Appendix XII—Award Term and Condition for Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters are 
required to report certain civil, criminal, or administrative proceedings to SAM. Failure to make 
required disclosures can result in any of the remedies described in §200.338 Remedies for 
noncompliance, including suspension or debarment. (See also 2 CFR part 180, 31 U.S.C. 3321, 
and 41 U.S.C. 2313.)  It is the responsibility of the Superintendent to timely report to the 



relevant federal or pass through agency any violations of federal criminal law involving fraud, 
bribery or gratuity potentially impacting a federal grant. 

705.1R3 Using Federal Funds in Procurement Contracts 

In addition to the District’s standard procurement and purchasing procedures, the following 
procedures for vendors/contractors paid with federal funds are required.  When federal, state, 
and local requirements conflict, the most stringent requirement will be followed. 

2 CFR Part 200, Subpart D Subsection §200.318 (c)(1)  
No District employee, officer, or agent may participate in the selection, award and 
administration of contracts supported by a Federal award if he or she has a real or apparent 
conflict of interest.  Such a conflict of interest would arise when the employee, officer, or agent, 
any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization which 
employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other 
interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract.  District officers, 
employees, and agents may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of 
monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts.  However, for situations where the 
financial interest is not substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal value, district 
employees must abide by all relevant board policies. Violation of this requirement may result in 
disciplinary action for the District employee, officer, or agent. 

2 CFR Part 200, Subpart D Subsection §200.320 (e)(1-4) 
Procurement for contracts paid with federal funds may be conducted by noncompetitive (single 
source) proposals when one or more of the following circumstances apply: (1) the item is only 
available from a single source; (2) public exigency or emergency will not permit the delay 
resulting from competitive bids; (3) the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity 
expressly authorizes noncompetitive proposals in response to a written request from the non-
Federal entity; or (4) after solicitation of a number of sources, competition is inadequate.  

2 CFR Part 200, Subpart D Subsection §200.321 
The District will take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women's 
business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. Affirmative steps 
must include: (1) placing such businesses on solicitation lists; (2) soliciting such businesses 
whenever they are potential sources; (3) when economically feasible, dividing contracts into 
smaller tasks or quantities to allow participation from such businesses; (4) establishing delivery 
schedules that encourage participation by such businesses; (5) when appropriate, utilizing the 
Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the 
Department of Commerce; and (6) requiring the primary contractor to follow steps (1) through 
(5) when subcontractors are used.

The district will include the following provisions in all procurement contracts or purchase orders 
include the following provisions when applicable: 



2 CFR Part 200 Appendix II 
(A) Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at $150,000,
which is the inflation adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council
and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. 1908,
must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors
violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.

(B) All contracts in excess of $10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience
by the non-Federal entity including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for
settlement.

(C) Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all
contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 CFR Part
60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in
accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal

Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as 
amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal 
Employment Opportunity,” and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, “Office of Federal 
Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.”  

(D) Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). When required by Federal program
legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities
must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and
3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, “Labor
Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted
Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to
laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage
determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay
wages not less than once a week. The non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current
prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The
decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the
wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to
the Federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with
the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor
regulations (29 CFR Part 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work
Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act provides that
each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person
employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-Federal entity must report all
suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.

(E) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708). Where applicable, all
contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the



employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 
3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 
U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every 
mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the 
standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not 
less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in 
the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and 
provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under 
working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not 
apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open 
market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.  

(F) Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the
definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient
wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding
the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or
research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with
the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations
and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,”
and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

(G) Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C.
1251-1387), as amended—Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 must
contain a provision that requires the non-Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable
standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q)
and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must
be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA).

(H) Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689)—A contract award (see 2
CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions in the
System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180
that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part
1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names of
parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.

(I) Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352)—Contractors that apply or bid for an award
exceeding $100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that
it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in
connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C.
1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in



connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier 
up to the non-Federal award.  

(J) See §200.322 Procurement of recovered materials.

§200.216 Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or
equipment

(a) The district is prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:

1. Procure or obtain;
2. Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or
3. Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment,

services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a
substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any
system.  As described in Public law 115-232, section 889, covered telecommunications
equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies
Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

i. For purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security
surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance 
and telecommunication equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, 
Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any 
subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). 

ii. Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using
such equipment. 

iii. Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or
provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the 
National Intelligence of the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes 
to be an entity owned by or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a 
foreign country.  
(b) In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f),
paragraph (l), heads of executive agencies administering loan, grant, or subsidy programs shall
prioritize available  funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and
organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered
communications equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and
to ensure that communications service to users and customers is sustained.
(c) See Public Law 115-232, section 889 for additional information.
(d) See also §200.471.

705.2 Purchasing on Behalf of Employees (no revisions) 



Generally, the school district will not purchase items on behalf of employees.  The school 
district may in unusual and unique circumstances do so.  It is within the discretion of the board 
to determine when unique and unusual circumstances exist. 

No purchase is made unless the employee has paid the school district prior to the order being 
placed and the employee has agreed to be responsible for any taxes or other expenses due. 

Approved November 11, 2013    
Reviewed November 26, 2018     May 17, 2023 
Revised November 26, 2018 

705.3 - Payment for Goods and Services (no revisions) 

The board authorizes the payment of claims against the school district for goods and 
services.  The board will allow the payment after the goods and services have been received 
and accepted in compliance with board policy. 

Claims for payment of freight, drayage, express, postage, printing, water, lights, telephone, 
rents, and payment of salaries pursuant to the terms of a written contract may be paid by the 
board secretary prior to formal audit and approval by the board.  In addition, the secretary, 
upon approval of the board president, may issue warrants for approved registrations, claims 
offering a discount for early payment, approved travel expenses, approved goods and services 
delivered C.O.D. and other verified bills filed with the secretary when the board is not in session 
prior to payment of these claims and prior to audit and approval by the board.  The board 
secretary will examine the claims and verify bills. 

The secretary will determine to the secretary’s satisfaction that the claims presented to the 
board are in order and are legitimate expenses of the school district.  It is the responsibility of 
the secretary to bring claims to the board. 

The board president and board secretary may sign warrants by use of a signature plate or 
rubber stamp.  If the board president is unavailable to personally sign warrants, the vice 
president may sign warrants on behalf of the president. 

It is the responsibility of the superintendent to develop the administrative regulations regarding 
this policy. 

Approved November 11, 2013 
Reviewed November 26, 2018 May 17, 2023 
Revised November 26, 2018 



705.4 Credit and Procurement Cards (new required policy per Iowa Constitution, Art. III, § 31. 
Iowa Code §§ 279.8, .29, .30. 281 I.A.C. 12.3(1).) 

Employees may use school district credit cards and/or procurement cards (p-cards) for the 
actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of work-related duties.  Actual and 
necessary expenses incurred in the performance of work-related duties include, but are not 
limited to travel expenses related to professional development or fulfillment of required job 
duties, fuel for school district transportation vehicles used for transporting students to and 
from school and for school-sponsored events, payment of claims related to professional 
development of the board and employees, and other expenses required by employees and the 
board in the performance of their duties. 

Employees and officers using a school district credit or procurement card must submit a 
detailed, itemized receipt in addition to a credit or procurement card receipt indicating the 
date, purpose and nature of the expense for each claim item. Failure to provide a proper 
receipt will make the employee responsible for expenses incurred.  Those expenses are 
reimbursed to the school district no later than ten working days following use of the school 
district's credit or procurement card.  In exceptional circumstances, the superintendent or 
board may allow a claim without proper receipt.  Written documentation explaining the 
exceptional circumstances is maintained as part of the school district's record of the claim. 

The school district may maintain a school district credit or procurement card for actual and 
necessary expenses incurred by employees and officers in the performance of their duties.  The 
superintendent may maintain a school district credit or procurement card for actual and 
necessary expenses incurred in the performance of the superintendent's duties.  The 
transportation director may maintain a school district credit or procurement card for fueling 
school district transportation vehicles in accordance with board policy. 

It is the responsibility of the superintendent to determine whether the school district credit or 
procurement card use is for appropriate school business. It is the responsibility of the board to 
determine through the audit and approval process of the board whether the school district 
credit or procurement card used by the superintendent and the board is for appropriate school 
business. 

The superintendent is responsible for developing administrative regulations regarding actual 
and necessary expenses and use of a school district credit or procurement card.  The 
administrative regulations will include the appropriate forms to be filed for obtaining a credit or 
procurement card. 

Approved 
Reviewed 
Revised 



705.5 Expenditures for Public Purpose (new policy requiring third reading) 

The board recognizes that school district funds are public funds, and as such, should be used 
to further a public purpose and the overall educational mission of the school 
community.  The district is committed to managing and spending public funds in a 
transparent and responsible manner.  Prior to making a purchase with public funds, an 
individual should be comfortable defending the purchase/reimbursement to the taxpayers in 
the district.  If the individual is uncomfortable doing so, the purchase may not fulfill a public 
purpose and additional guidance should be sought before the purchase is made. 

The superintendent shall develop a process for approving expenditures of public funds.  The 
board will review expenditures and applicable reports as necessary to ensure proper 
oversight of the use of public funds.  To the extent possible, expenditures shall be pre-
approved by the district prior to expending the funds.  Purchases of food and refreshment 
for district staff, even within district, should comply with the district’s Employee Travel 
Compensation policy, and all other applicable policies.  All purchases/reimbursements shall 
comply with applicable laws, board policies and district accounting requirements. 

Approved 
Reviewed 
Revised 

705.5R1 Expenditures for Public Purpose 

The following is a list of examples organized by activity for what is allowable, or not allowable 
as a purchase/reimbursement using public funds.  This regulation is intended as guidance and 
there may be situations that are not listed here.  Any questions regarding the appropriateness 
of an expenditure should be submitted to administration prior to expending funds.   

Reimbursements to an Individual 

• Use of Credit/Procurement Card:  All purchases through a district-owned credit or
procurement card shall be pre-approved and comply with the district’s policy 705.4 –
Credit and Procurement Cards.

• Mileage:  Individuals who are required to travel (other than to and from work) as part of
fulfilling their job duties to the district shall be reimbursed for mileage costs in
accordance with the requirements stated in the district’s Employee Travel
Compensation policy.



• Travel accommodations:  Employees who are required to travel and stay overnight as
part of fulfilling their job duties to the district shall be reimbursed for costs in
accordance with the requirements stated in the district’s Employee Travel
Compensation policy.

• Alcohol:  Alcohol is a personal expense and is never allowable for purchase or
reimbursement using public funds.

• Food/Refreshments:  Food and refreshments are typically a personal expense.  Meetings
spanning meal times should be avoided when possible.  When a district meeting is
required to take place spanning a customary meal time, the superintendent or designee
shall determine whether food and/or refreshment will be provided to employees whose
presence is required during the meeting.  The cost of food and refreshment for
employees shall be reasonable, and when possible, a separate itemized receipt for each
employee is required.  If an itemized receipt is not available, approval is required by the
school business official prior to reimbursement.  In all cases, the names and number of
employees shall be noted on the receipt.

• Apparel/Personal Items:  Apparel and personal items including, but not limited to items
such as t-shirts, hats, mugs, etc. provide personal benefit to individuals and are a
personal expense.  These items shall not be purchased or reimbursed with public
funds.

• Gifts:  Gift cards or gifts given to individuals are personal expenses and public funds
should not be used (except for recognition/staff retirement, listed below) for these
purposes.  Voluntary collections from staff would be an acceptable way of purchasing
gifts.

• Retirement and Recognition Gifts:  Recognizing an employee or volunteer’s years of
dedication to educating the community and commitment to the district serves a public
purpose by honoring individuals with a token gift, or honorarium, in recognition of their
service.  The same is true for individual awards, mementos, or items purchased in
recognition of employee service to the district.  These purchases may use public funds,
provided the expenditures are modest and approved by the superintendent.

• Honoraria:  District employees may at times receive an honorarium from an outside
source as compensation for the employee’s time devoted to preparing and delivering a
presentation within the scope of their professional field.  Honorariums may only be
accepted by employees when the employee has used their personal time outside of
their work for the district to prepare and deliver the presentation.  If the employee uses
district time or resources to prepare or deliver a presentation, any honorarium shall be
given to the district.



• Break Room Supplies:  The purchase of perishable or disposable supplies for employee
break rooms is primarily designed for individual consumption and is a personal
expense.  This includes items such as coffee, coffee filters, plates, cups, spoons, napkins,
etc.

Supplies for Public Areas 

• Limited refreshments such as water and coffee may be available in public reception
areas of the district including, but not limited to the central office, the building
administrator’s office, etc.  These refreshments may be purchased with the use of public
funds, as they provide light refreshment to members of the community.

Staff Parties/Receptions 

• Parties and receptions to benefit individual staff members are considered a personal
expense and should not be purchased or reimbursed with public funds.  This includes
but is not limited to holiday parties.

• Hosting a group reception to honor all employees retiring from the district in a given
school year is allowable as a public expense. Hosting a retirement reception provides a
direct benefit to the community as an opportunity for the community to attend and
honor the retiring employees’ years of dedication and service to the district.

School/ Student Activity Banquets 

• School/student activity banquets are typically a personal expense and will not be
purchased or reimbursed with public funds unless the public purpose is submitted for
review and pre-approved by the superintendent.

Memorial Gifts 

• Memorial flowers to convey sympathy or congratulations are allowable as a public
expense if they have been approved by the superintendent.  Memorial cards are always
appropriate.

• Memorial gifts of any sort other than flowers and a card are a personal expense.

Student Incentives 

• It is within the discretion of the building principal to authorize the purchase of awards
holding a nominal value to commemorate the achievements of a student or group of
students.  These awards should be designed to reward behavior and values that
exemplify the educational and community mission of the district.  Awards should not be



gift cards or other monetary awards. 

• Flowers and decorations for school dances held as part of the district’s student activity
program are an allowable expense paid out of the student activity fund, provided the
purchases are approved by the building principal.

Meetings 

• To the extent possible, meetings which span normal meal times should be avoided.

• Meetings of the district’s board of directors and board committees are made up of
individuals who volunteer a large amount of their personal time to serve the needs of
the school community.  These meetings are also scheduled at time most convenient for
the public, and often span normal meal hours.  Food and refreshment purchased for
board members is an acceptable use of public funds.  The service of these unpaid
volunteers directly benefits the entire school community.  The superintendent has
discretion to purchase/reimburse reasonable expenses for providing food and
refreshment to these unpaid volunteers during these meetings.

Some expenditures will be considered personal expenses regardless of the context.  These 
include purchase or reimbursement of alcohol, and personal items not included as retirement 
or memorial gifts listed above. 



905.1 Community Use of School Facilities 

The board promotes the concept of school facilities serving as a center for community 
activities. Therefore, groups or organizations in the community will be allowed to use school 
facilities when the following conditions are met: 

1. The use in no way interferes with the district’s educational and activity programs.
2. The use is consistent with state law and conforms to district regulations.
3. The use does not result in the facilities being over maximum capacity.  If the use would

result in the facilities being over maximum capacity, the various uses requested (by
various groups or organizations) will be granted as the school district determines
appropriate.

4. The group or organization is responsible and will exercise care in the use of the facilities.
5. The activity is supervised by an adequate number of adult sponsors.
6. No alcoholic beverages or controlled substances are available or used on school grounds.
7. Red Oak Community School District buildings and campus facilities are tobacco/nicotine-

free.  The use of tobacco and/or nicotine products (in any form) is prohibited.
8. The activity is confined to the area designated, and no school equipment or supplies are

used except as approved in advance.
9. Any decorations or materials to be applied to the walls or floors must be approved in

advance by the building principal.
10. Candles or other flammable materials shall be prohibited.
11. The activity is not a commercial profit-making venture by a taxable entity.
12. The use is not for private purpose or for personal gain.
13. A written application and agreement is executed, and approval is received in advance.  A

valid certificate of insurance is required.
14. The group or organization shall be responsible for paying for any damage or destruction to

the school facilities.
15. The group or organization shall indemnify and hold the district harmless from any claims

or charges arising from the actions or inactions of the group or organization.

Application and Arrangements.  A written application must be filled out by the group or 
organization and approval received through the Administrative Center. The district reserves the 
right to withdraw approval. 

Priority.  Requests for use of school facilities for activities other than for the educational and 
activity program of the district (which shall always have precedence) shall receive priority 
scheduling as follows.  Once an activity is scheduled, however, the district need not cancel the 
activity to make the facility available for a group with a higher priority. 

1. First Priority:  Meetings or activities for students, parents, and/or staff sponsored by
recognized tax-exempt organizations which are affiliated with the district programs, such
as:
• Parent-Teacher Organizations



• Booster Clubs
• Red Oak Education Association for meetings of the local association only.
• Red Oak Support Staff Association for meetings of the local association only.

2. Second Priority:  Adult education programs and other programs or training activities
sponsored by tax-supported organizations, such as:
• Community College adult education classes
• University/college educational programs
• Green Hills Area Education Agency staff development activities
• Law Enforcement Programs or Training sponsored at the City, County, or State Patrol

levels, with a designated law enforcement official responsible for supervision
• Armed Forces programs, other than recruitment or fundraising programs, that are

open to the public and for which there is no admission charge

3. Third Priority*:  Educational and recreational programs which are sponsored by tax-
exempt organizations, such as:
• Staff recreational programs
• City rRecreational and club programs
• YMCA recreational programs
• Church programs
• Red Cross programs
• Civic Clubs/Organizations
• Meetings sponsored by governmental agencies to which the public is invited
• Nonpublic schools for special purposes
• Political meetings

4. Fourth Priority:  Fund-raising activities and nonprofit making meetings and activities
sponsored by commercial groups and parent-study groups sponsored by non-tax-exempt
organizations.

Fees.  Groups specified in the first priority are exempt from all rental and personnel 
fees.  Groups specified in the second priority are exempt from all rental fees but will be charged 
for necessary personnel fees.  Groups specified in the third and fourth priorities will be charged 
rental fees as set forth below and shall be charged for necessary personnel fees.  Personnel fees 
include fees for the custodian(s), for food service workers if the kitchen is used, and for persons 
to operate public address systems, lighting, and special stage equipment.  The rate shall be 
$25.00 $50.00 per hour. 

Rental Fees: 

Second Priority Third Priority Fourth Priority 

a. Middle School Auditorium $50.00 $100.00 

b. Senior Jr-Sr High Auditorium $50.00 $125.00 $100.00 $175.00 
c. Auditorium Sound System $25.00 $50.00 



c. Inman/Middle School 
Gymnasium 

$50.00 $125.00 $100.00 $175.00 

d. Senior Jr-Sr High Gymnasium $50.00 $125.00 $100.00 $175.00 

e. Media Center $50.00 $75.00 $100.00 $125.00 

f. Inman/Middle School 
 Cafeteria (including kitchen) 

$50.00 $75.00 $100.00 $125.00 

g. Senior High Cafeteria $50.00 $125.00 $100.00 $175.00 

h. Washington Intermediate 
Multi-Purpose Room 

$50.00 $100.00 

i. General classrooms (all 
buildings) 

$50.00 $75.00 $100.00 $125.00 

j. Inman Cafeteria $50.00 $125.00 $100.00 $175.00 

k. Fieldhouse $50.00 $125.00 $100.00 $175.00 

l. Athletic Fields (per day) $50.00 $125.00 $100.00 $175.00 

*No fees will be charged for use of classrooms for after-school use (Monday-Friday from 3:15
p.m. to 4:45 p.m., during the school year), by Third Priority Groups which provide adult
supervised activities for Red Oak Community School students.  These groups will be charged a
custodial fee if clean-up is required or if a custodian must stay beyond normally scheduled
hours.

Third Priority Groups shall be eligible for a reduced-rate for multiple use requests.  These rates 
shall be determined by the administration. 

Football Stadium/Track Use. 
A. Groups shall be charged the following rental fees for use of limited facilities at the

football stadium:
• Third Priority - $50.00 $75.00
• Fourth Priority - $100.00 $125.00

 The following facilities are included in the above user fee as needed: 
• Stadium parking facilities
• Parking lots
• Ticket stations
• Players’ benches
• Restrooms

B. Groups shall be charged the following rental fees for use of extended facilities at the
football stadium:

• Third Priority - $50.00 $75.00

• Fourth Priority - $100.00 $125.00
 The following additional facilities are included in the above use fee as needed: 

• Athletic field and track
• Sound system



• Locker & shower rooms
• Press box
• Lights

The following conditions shall apply in addition to the general conditions outlined in this 
policy: 

1. Any use of the track or football field must be approved in advance.
2. All concession rights and privileges are reserved by the district.
3. If designated by the district, the organization shall insure that police protection is

provided and shall pay all such costs.
4. If rehearsals are necessary, arrangements shall be determined by the business office.
5. If any platforms, stages, chairs or additional stage equipment are needed, they shall

be provided by the organization.  Installation must be approved by the Maintenance
Director.

6. The organization shall be required to provide public liability insurance naming the
Red Oak Community School District as an “additional insured” through a company
approved by the district with a minimum of $100,000 property coverage.



Red Oak JrSr HS 12th grade graduates as of 04-20-23 for the School Board 
First Name Middle Name Last Name First Name Middle Name Last Name 
Heavyn Lee Marie Aherns Eric Matthew Lindsey 
Bridgett Ann Archer Taelin Spera McRae 
Karter Joseph Archer Estefany Medina 
Dante Lewis Baucom Lexi Jade Meier 
Tymberlee Joan Louise Bentley Emma Joann Nilson 
Cash Victor Steven Berendes Lillianne Marie Pafford 
Joanna May Bloomer Johnathan Gar Perkins 
Dawson Damien Bond Josie Delayna Rengstorf 
Guadalupe Angel Bowen Zephyr Darius Richardson 
Kayden Andrew Bozwell Kyler Thomas Rinabarger 
Haley Jane Branam Chase Lee Roeder 
Aiden Scott Bruce Tessa Lynn Rolenc 
Jared Daniel Cashatt Aaron James Schmid 
Kaleb Michael Cobb Jacob William Scriver 
Logan James Conn Fateen Jelani Sealy 
Landon Patrick Couse Braiden Gene Shirley 
Grace Maryann Devito Hannah Lynn Snow Smith 
Lainey Taylor Devries Camden Douglas Southard 
Danique Catherina Maria Dobbe Cole Jacob Thornton 
Madison Lexis Doyle Josie Rebecca Vanderhoof 
Chloe Madison Edie Elisha Victor Vukonich 
Jacob Evan-Riley Eggerss Gracelynn Elizabeth Wagaman 
Brandon Aaron Erp Grace Ann Wegman 
Samuel David Fields Dylan Michael Welch 
Theresa Gail Flick Jonah Peter Wemhoff 
Riley Todd Fouts Ethan Joseph Wenberg 
Kailynn Kae Frazee Kyle Nicholas Westover 
James Matthew Gass Ashley Ann Wilkins 
Cayden Edward Gillespie Keegan James Williams 
Isabella Maryn Glassel Braden Richard Woods 
Michelle lsabela Grass 
Trystan James Hartson 
Sadie Rose Hummel 
Audrey Jane Irvine 
Isabella Renae Jager 
Brayden Eugene Johnson 
Tucker Lee Johnson 
Zane Stephen King 
Tanner Kayne Kinsley 
Jackson Martin Kling 
Sernity Page Kruse 
Chloie Heather Lane 
Valor James Lankton 
Kindered Christine Lehman 
Eduardo Lepe 



Red Oak Community Schools

Basic Life and AD&D, Voluntary Term Life,
Long-Term Disability, and Dental Renewal

July 1, 2023

Presented By:
Lisa Daniels



Single Single Life $0.154 per $1,000 LTD $0.240 per $100 of CME
Family EE + 1 AD&D $0.020 per $1,000

EE + 2+

Single Single Life $0.129 per $1,000 LTD $0.240 per $100 of CME
Family EE + 1 AD&D $0.020 per $1,000

EE + 2+

7/1/21 to 7/1/23

$23.90
$46.20
$80.90

$24.20
$68.90

DENTAL 
(Admin/Support Staff)

Principal
7/1/19 to 7/1/21

2021 Principal proposed a rate pass. 
Marketed coverage and moved to The 
Standard for a -10.4% decrease from 

current.

The Standard

$28.43
$71.76

7/1/19 to 7/1/21

VOLUNTARY DENTAL
(Certified Teachers)

BASIC LIFE and AD&D

Principal

LONG-TERM DISABILITY

Principal

Annual Recap

7/1/19 to 7/1/21

2021 Principal proposed a rate pass. 
Marketed coverage and moved to The 

Standard for a -16% decrease from 
current

The Standard
7/1/21 to 7/1/23

$29.52
$55.04

$91.31

2021 Principal proposed 12.5% 
increase. Marketed coverage and 

moved to The Standard for a rate pass.

The Standard
7/1/21 to 7/1/23

Principal

2021 Principal proposad a rate pass on 
Basic Life/AD&D. Marketed coverage 

and moved to The Standard for a -
14.4%  decrease from current.

The Standard
7/1/21 to 7/1/23

7/1/19 to 7/1/21



1 2/06/2023 •IMG*l60:760228:00000 PAGE 1 
EXPERIENCE DETAIL REPORT - DENTAL GRFA3029 RNW 
SOB 160 POL 760228 

PH NAME: RED Q A . ' (  COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT TYPE: RG FUND CODE: N 
ADM: HO 

RENEWAL MONTH: MAY BENEFIT CODES INCLUDE: 92 93 
TOTAL NUMBER ACTIVE DIVISIONS: 002 
TOTAL NUMBER CANCELLED DIVISIONS: 000 

INCURRE TOTAL 
ADJ PAID INCURRED LOSS EMP DEP B DEP C DEP D INC CLM i OF AMT PER 

DATE PREM CLAIMS CLAIMS RATIO LIVES UNITS UNITS UNITS PER EMP CLAIMS CLAIM 
0202107 3,905 4,344 5,792 148.3 110 24 8 0 52.65 21 206.86 
202108 3,953 4,031 4,321 109.3 112 24 8 0 38.58 22 183.23 
202109 3,919 1,769 1,839 46.9 112 24 7 0 16.42 13 136.08 
202110 3,991 3,700 3,893 97.5 115 24 7 0 33.85 23 160.87 
202111 3,802 3,189 3,187 83.8 109 23 7 0 29.24 14 227.79 
202112 3,850 4,832 4,822 125.2 111 23 7 0 43, 44 27 178.96 
202201 3,964 2,282 2,325 58.7 112 25 7 0 20. 76 13 175.54 

27,384 24,147 26,179 95.6 781 167 51 0 33.52 133 181.56 
0202202 3,939 6,055 6,104 155.0 111 25 7 0 54.99 35 173. 00
202203 3,984 5,003 5,067 127.2 111 26 7 0 45.65 33 151.61
202204 3,915 6,434 6,313 161.3 110 25 7 0 57.39 29 221.86
202205 3,915 2,521 2,559 65.4 110 25 7 0 23.26 14 180.07
202206 3,994 4,994 4,965 124.3 110 27 8 0 45,14 29 172. 21
202207 3,946 4,514 4,528 114.7 109 26 8 0 41,54 28 161. 21
202208 3,452 4,910 4,740 137.3 94 21 8 0 50.43 31 158.39
202209 3,880 1,912 1,950 50.3 110 22 8 0 17.73 17 112. 47
202210 3,880 4,175 4,221 108.8 110 22 8 0 38.37 25 167.00
202211 3,904 1,441 1,414 36.2 111 22 8 0 12.74 10 144.10
202212 3,835 3,973 4,007 104.5 110 21 8 0 36. 43 23 172. 74
202301 3,859 6,727 6,726 174.3 111 21 8 0 60.59 32 210.22

46,503 52,659 52,594 113.1 1307 283 92 0 40.24 306 172. 09
0 73,887 76,806 78,773 106.6 2088 450 143 0 37.73 439 174.96



Carrier

In-Network
$50

Family Deductible $150
TYPE 1: DIAGNOSTIC AND PREVENTIVE SERVICES

Routine Exams (1 in 6 months)
Routine Cleanings (1 in 6 months)
Bitewing X-Rays (1 set 12 months)
Full Mouth/Panoramic Series (1 in 5 years)
Fluoride Application (1 per 12 months; under age 14)

TYPE 2: BASIC SERVICES
Periodontal Prophylaxis
Emergency Exams
Space Maintainers (under age 14)
Sealants (under age 14)
Fillings
Endodontics (Simple and Complex)
Periodontics (Surgical and Non-Surgical)
Composite Fillings (Anterior and Posterior)
Simple Oral Surgery

TYPE 3: MAJOR SERVICES
Anesthesia
Complex Oral Surgical Procedures
Crowns
Implants
Dentures, Partials and Bridges

Calendar Year Maximum $1,000 
Current

Single 38 $24.20
Family 10 $68.90

$1,608.60

This summary is for illustration purposes only.  If there is a discrepancy between this summary and the policy, the policy governs.

▪ Rates guaranteed for 12 months

$1,000 
Renewal

ESTIMATED MONTHLY PREMIUM

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ▪ Out-of-Network clams paid at the 95th Percentile of U & C
▪ Uses Ameritas PPO network

$28.56
$81.30

$1,898.15

▪ Requires the greater of 85% or 10 lives enrolled

18%

100%
Deductible Waived

100%
Deductible Waived

80% 80%

50% 50%

$150

THE STANDARD
Admin/Support Staff

Out-of-Network
Individual Deductible $50



Carrier

In-Network
$50

Family Deductible $150
TYPE 1: DIAGNOSTIC AND PREVENTIVE SERVICES

Routine Exams (1 in 6 months)
Routine Cleanings (1 in 6 months)
Bitewing X-Rays (1 set 12 months)
Full Mouth/Panoramic Series (1 in 60 months)
Fluoride Application (1 per 12 months; under age 14)

TYPE 2: BASIC SERVICES
Periodontal Prophylaxis
Emergency Exams
Space Maintainers (under age 14)
Sealants (under age 14)
Fillings
Composite Fillings (Anterior and Posterior)
Simple Oral Surgery

TYPE 3: MAJOR SERVICES
Anesthesia
Complex Oral Surgical Procedures
Endodontics (Simple and Complex)
Periodontics (Surgical and Non-Surgical)
Crowns
Implants
Dentures, Partials and Bridges

Calendar Year Maximum $1,000 
Current

Single 47 $23.90
Employee + 1 5 $46.20

Family 8 $80.90
$2,001.50

This summary is for illustration purposes only.  If there is a discrepancy between this summary and the policy, the policy governs.

▪ Uses Ameritas PPO network
▪ Require participation of 65%
▪ Rates guaranteed for 12 months

Renewal
$28.20
$54.52
$95.48

100%
Deductible Waived

100%
Deductible Waived

80% 80%

50%

$150

THE STANDARD
Certified Teachers

Out-of-Network
Individual Deductible $50

50%

$1,000 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ▪ Out-of-Network claims paid at the 95th Percentile of U & C
18%

ESTIMATED MONTHLY PREMIUM $2,361.84



CARRIER

Class 1 - Superintendent

Class 2 - Principals & Vice Principals

Class 3 - Teachers

Class 4 - All Others
Reduction Schedule

Accelerated Life Benefit

Portability & Conversion
Waiver of Premium

Monthly Volume (130 Lives)

Rates per $1,000

Life

AD&D

ESTIMATED MONTHLY PREMIUM

Rate Guarantee

Additional Information

$3,643,500

The Standard
Basic Life and AD&D

$100,000

$30,000

$20,000

$75,000

To 65% @ age 65;
to 50% @ age 70

Included

Included
Included

This summary is for illustration purposes only.  If there is a discrepancy between this summary and the policy, the policy governs.

Current and Renewal

$0.129

$0.020

$542.88

Until 2024

▪ 100% Participation Required



Maximum Monthly Benefit

Minimum Monthly Benefit

Own Occupation

Pre-Ex Limitation

$495,068 $527,385

Current Renewal w/Salary Updates
$1,188.16 $1,265.73

Additional Information

$7,583

CARRIER The Standard
Long-Term Disability

Maximum Annual Covered Salary $130,000

Drug & Alcohol Limitation 24 Months

Greater of $100 or 10% of the maxmum benefit

Benefit Percentage 70%

Elimination Period 90 Days
Definition of Disability An employee will be considered disabled if, as a result of physical disease, injury, pregnancy or mental disorder one 

of the following applies:
▪ Unable to perform with reasonable continuity the material duties of their own occupation; OR
▪ Suffer a loss of at least 20 percent in their indexed predisability earnings when working in their own occupation

Benefit Duration To SSNRA

3 Years

Mental Health Limitation 24 Months

This summary is for illustration purposes only.  If there is a discrepancy between this summary and the policy, the policy governs.

$0.240

Other Limited Conditions 24 Months

Survivor Benefit 3 x maximum benefit
3/12

Covered Monthly Earnings

Per $100 of Insured Monthly Payroll (130 Lives)

Rate Guarantee Until 2024

▪ 100% participation required
▪ Includes EAP - 3 face-to-face visits

ESTIMATED MONTHLY PREMIUM



Employee Guarantee Issue

Reduction Schedule

Accelerated Life Benefit

Portability & Conversion

Waiver of Premium

Maximum Spouse Benefit

Maximum Child Benefit

Ages EE / Sp Ages EE / Sp
< 19 $0.064 45 - 49 $0.160

20 - 24 $0.064 50 - 54 $0.245
25 - 29 $0.064 55 - 59 $0.458
30 - 34 $0.085 60 - 64 $0.702
35 - 39 $0.096 65 - 69 $1.352
40 - 44 $0.106 70 + $2.193

Dependent Rate

Employee Volume (31 Lives)

Spouse Volume (9 Lives)

Child Volume (3 Lives)

Rate Guarantee
Additional Information

Up to $200,000 in $5,000 increments, 
not to exceed 50% of the Employee's benefit

Spouse Guarantee Issue $20,000

Included

CARRIER The Standard
Voluntary Term Life and Dependent Life

Maximum Benefit Up to $500K in $10,000 increments. Not to exceed 8 times earnings for 
basic and optional life benefit combined

$150,000
Employee Annual Coverage Increase

During the annual Open Enrollment, The Standard allows an employee to increase their benefit amount up 
by 1 or 2 increments up to the guarantee issue amount without evidence of insurability

By 35% at age 65,
to 50% at age 70

Included

Included

This summary is for illustration purposes only.  If there is a discrepancy between this summary and the policy, the policy governs.

Dependent Annual Coverage Increase
During the annual Open Enrollment, The Standard allows an employee to increase the spouse and 
dependent children coverage up to the guaranteed issue amount without evidence of insurability

Until 2024
▪ Spouse's benefit and premium rates are based on the spouse's attained age
▪ Rates assume 34% participation will continue

Life Rates per $1,000

Child per $1,000
$0.100

$2,545,500

$130,000

$30,000

Current
$654.75 $705.60

ESTIMATED MONTHLY PREMIUM Renewal with Age Band Changes

Live birth to age 26 - Up to $10,000 in $2,000 increments, 
not to exceed 50% of the Employee's benefit

Child Guarantee Issue $10,000 



EE Age @ 
Renewal

SP Age @ 
Renewal

07/01/23 07/01/23

Allison Sharon 55 $100,000 $24.50 $45.80
Freiberg Melissa 45 $50,000 $5.30 $8.00
Funk Jeremy 42 55 $50,000 $10,000 $7.75 $9.88
Hall Heather 45 54 $190,000 $20,000 $10,000 $26.04 $36.30
Latham Jennifer 35 $50,000 $4.25 $4.80
Stephens Jacque 55 $50,000 $13.25 $22.90
Vannausdle Roger 55 $20,000 $4.90 $9.16
Census indicates age band changes and premium updates at renewal. 

Optional 
Dependent Life

Voluntary Term Life Age Band Changes

Last Name First Name
Optional

Employee Life
Renewal 

Vol Life Premium
Current 

Vol Life Premium

Optional
Spouse 

Life



● PRINCIPAL Included

● LINCOLN FINANCIAL Included

● MUTUAL OF OMAHA Pending

● METLIFE Declined to Quote

● UNUM Declined to Quote



INN / OON INN / OON INN / OON
$50 / $50 $50 / $50 $50 / $50

$150 / $150 $150 / $150 $150 / $150

Yes Yes Yes

$1,000 $1,000 $1,000

Yes Yes Yes

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

100% / 100% 100% / 100% 100% / 100%

80% / 80% 80% / 80% 80% / 80%

50% / 50% 50% / 50% 50% / 50%

Basic Basic Basic

Preventive Preventive Preventive

Basic Basic Basic

Fillings - Amalgam & Composite Basic Basic Basic

Basic Basic Basic

Major Major Major

Major Major Major

95th Percentile 95th Percentile 99th Percentile

No No Yes

None None None

Contributory Contributory Contributory

Minimum Participation Current Current Current

www.standard.com www.lfg.com www.principal.com

THE STANDARD
CURRENT

LINCOLN
(PACKAGED)

PRINCIPAL
(PACKAGED)

Employee 38 $24.20 $21.78 $31.56

Employee + Family 10 $68.90 $62.01 $89.85

Monthly Premium $1,609 $1,448 $2,098

Annual Premium $19,303 $17,373 $25,173

Change in Cost N/A ($1,930) $5,870 

Percentage Change N/A -10.0% 30.4%

Rate Guarantee Period Current 24 Months 12 Months
This is a brief summary of benefits. The actual contract will prevail. 
Frequency of services may vary by carrier.

Prev Applied to Cal Max

Admin/Support Staff Dental Marketing

CARRIERS
THE STANDARD

CURRENT
LINCOLN

(PACKAGED)
PRINCIPAL

(PACKAGED)

Deductible - Individual

Deductible - Family

Deductible - Waived for Prev

Calendar Year Maximum

Sealants

X-Rays

Endodontics / Periodontics

Simple Extractions

Orthodontia Lifetime Max

Orthodontia - Children/Adult

Preventive

Basic

Major

Waiting Periods

Minimum Contribution

Provider Lookup

Oral Surgery / Anesthesia

Implants

OON Reimbursement

Maximum Rollover

http://www.standard.com/
http://www.lfg.com/
http://www.principal.com/


INN / OON INN / OON INN / OON
$50 / $50 $50 / $50 $50 / $50

$150 / $150 $150 / $150 $150 / $150

Yes Yes Yes

$1,000 $1,000 $1,000

Yes Yes Yes

100% / 100% 100% / 100% 100% / 100%

80% / 80% 80% / 80% 80% / 80%

50% / 50% 50% / 50% 50% / 50%

N/A N/A N/A

Basic Basic Basic

Preventive Preventive Preventive

Major Major Major

Fillings Amalgam & Composite Basic Basic Basic

Basic Basic Basic

Major Major Major

Major Major Major

95th Percentile 95th Percentile 99th Percentile

No No Yes

None None None

0% 0% 0%

Minimum Participation Current Current 20% / 5 Enrolled

www.standard.com www.lfg.com www.principal.com 
THE STANDARD

CURRENT
LINCOLN 

(PACKAGED)
PRINCIPAL

(PACKAGED)
Employee 47 $23.90 $23.90 $29.41

Employee + One 5 $46.20 $46.20 $56.85

Employee + Family 8 $80.90 $80.90 $99.54

Monthly Premium $2,002 $2,002 $2,463

Annual Premium $24,018 $24,018 $29,554

Change in Cost N/A $0 $5,536 

Percentage Change N/A 0.0% 23.0%

Rate Guarantee Period Current 24 Months 12 Months
This is a brief summary of benefits. The actual contract will prevail. 
Frequency of services may vary by carrier.

Minimum Contribution

Provider Lookup

Waiting Periods

Oral Surgery / Anesthesia

Implants

OON Reimbursement

Maximum Rollover

Certified Teachers Dental Marketing

CARRIERS
THE STANDARD

CURRENT
LINCOLN 

(PACKAGED)
PRINCIPAL

(PACKAGED)

Preventive

Basic

Prev Applied to Cal Max

Calendar Year Maximum

Deductible - Individual

Deductible - Waived for Prev

Deductible - Family

Endodontics / Periodontics

Simple Extractions

Sealants

X-Rays

Major

Orthodontia

http://www.standard.com/
http://www.lfg.com/
http://www.principal.com/


Class 1: Superintendent
Class 2: Principals & Vice Principals
Class 3: Teachers
Class 4: All Other Support Staff

Class 1: Flat $100K
Class 2: Flat $75K
Class 3: Flat $30K
Class 4: Flat $20K

Class 1: Flat $100K
Class 2: Flat $75K
Class 3: Flat $30K
Class 4: Flat $20K

Class 1: Flat $100K
Class 2: Flat $75K
Class 3: Flat $30K
Class 4: Flat $20K

Portability Included Included Not Included
Conversion Included Included Included
Age Reduction Schedule

Age 65 65% 65% 65%
Age 70 50% 50% 50%

Waiver of Premium Included Included Included
Employer Contribution 100% 100% 100%
Participation Requirement 100% 100% 100%

THE STANDARD
CURRENT

LINCOLN
(PACKAGED)

PRINCIPAL
(PACKAGED)

Life Volume $3,643,500 $3,601,500 $3,601,500 
AD&D Volume $3,601,500 $3,601,500 $3,601,500 
Life Rate per $1000 $0.129 $0.116 $0.140
AD&D Rate per $1000 $0.020 $0.020 $0.022

Monthly Premium $542.04 $490.16 $583.44 

Annual Premium $6,504.50 $5,881.97 $7,001.32 
Change in Cost From Current N/A ($622.53) $496.82 

Percentage Change From Current N/A -10% 7.64%
Rate Guarantee Current 24 Months 24 Months

This is a brief summary of benefits. The actual contract will prevail. 

CARRIERS
THE STANDARD

CURRENT
LINCOLN

(PACKAGED)
PRINCIPAL

(PACKAGED)

Life & AD&D Insurance Marketing



Employee Benefit

Employee Maximum

Employee Guarantee Issue

Employee Reduction Schedule

Spouse Benefit

Spouse Maximum

Spouse Guarantee Issue

Spouse Reduction Schedule

Child Benefit

Child Maximum

Portability

Conversion

Minimum Participation

EMPLOYEE SPOUSE EMPLOYEE SPOUSE EMPLOYEE SPOUSE
Age 00-19 $0.064 $0.064 $0.064 $0.064 $0.060 $0.060
Age 20-24 $0.064 $0.064 $0.064 $0.064 $0.060 $0.060
Age 25-29 $0.064 $0.064 $0.064 $0.064 $0.060 $0.060
Age 30-34 $0.085 $0.085 $0.085 $0.085 $0.080 $0.080
Age 35-39 $0.096 $0.096 $0.096 $0.096 $0.110 $0.110
Age 40-44 $0.106 $0.106 $0.106 $0.106 $0.168 $0.168
Age 45-49 $0.160 $0.160 $0.160 $0.160 $0.258 $0.258
Age 50-54 $0.245 $0.245 $0.245 $0.245 $0.419 $0.419
Age 55-59 $0.458 $0.458 $0.458 $0.458 $0.664 $0.664
Age 60-64 $0.702 $0.702 $0.702 $0.702 $1.011 $1.011
Age 65-69 $1.352 $1.352 $1.352 $1.352 $1.700 $1.700
Age 70-74 $2.193 $2.193 $2.193 $2.193 $3.012 $3.012
Age 75-79 $2.193 $2.193 $2.193 $2.193 $3.012 $3.012
Age 80-00 $2.193 $2.193 $2.193 $2.193 $3.012 $3.012

Rate per $1,000 of Coverage
Child Life Rate
EE AD&D Rate
SP AD&D Rate
CH AD&D Rate
Rate Guarantee
This is a brief summary of benefits. The actual contract will prevail.

Included

Included

Included

Included

Current

Flat $10,000

$10,000

$20,000

65% at 65, 50% at 70

$20,000

65% at 65, 50% at 70

Flat $10,000

$10,000

$200,000

65% at 65, 50% at 70 65% at 65, 50% at 70

$5K Increments

$200,000

$150,000 $150,000

$500,000

$10K Increments

$5K Increments

$500,000

$10K Increments

Voluntary Life & AD&D Insurance Marketing

CARRIERS
THE STANDARD

CURRENT
LINCOLN

(PACKAGED)
PRINCIPAL

(PACKAGED)

$10K Increments

$500,000
Under Age 70: $150,000

Age 70+: $10,000
65% at 65, 50% at 70

$5K Increments

$200,000 / 100% of EE
Under Age 70: $30,000

Age 70+: $10,000
65% at 65, 50% at 70

$2K, $4K, $5K, $7.5K, $10K

$10,000 / 100% of EE

Included

Included

20% / 5 Enrolled

PRINCIPAL
(PACKAGED)

$0.100 $0.100 $0.200

LINCOLN
(PACKAGED)

THE STANDARD
CURRENT

Current

Current Current $0.022
Current Current $0.022
Current Current N/A
Current 24 Months 24 Months



Monthly Benefit $7,583 $7,583 $7,583

Benefit Percentage 70% 70% 70%

Elimination Period 90 Days 90 Days 90 Days

Duration RBD to SSNRA RBD to SSNRA RBD to SSNRA

Own Occupation Period 36 Months 36 Months 36 Months

Definition of Disability Or Or Or

Pre-existing Condition Limitation 6/12 6/12 3/12

Contract Provisions

Partial Disability Current Current Included

Mental Health Limitation Current Current 24 Months per Lifetime

Substance Abuse Limitation Current Current 24 Months per Lifetime

Other Limited Conditions Current Current Included

Social Security Integration Current Current Primary & Family

Survivor Benefit Included Included Included

Rehabilitation/Vocational Incentive Included Included Included

Employee Assistance Program Included Included Included

Employer Contribution 100% 100% 100%

Taxable Benefit Yes (100% ER Paid) Yes (100% ER Paid) Yes (100% ER Paid)
THE STANDARD

CURRENT
LINCOLN

(PACKAGED)
PRINCIPAL

(PACKAGED)
Rate Guarantee Current 24 Months 24 Months

Monthly Covered Payroll $527,385 $527,392 $527,392

LTD Rate per $100 of CP $0.240 $0.216 $0.310

Estimated Monthly Cost $1,265.73 $1,139.17 $1,634.92

Estimated Annual Cost $15,188.70 $13,670.00 $19,618.98

Change in Cost From Current N/A ($1,518.70) $4,430.28

Percentage Change From Current N/A -10.00% 29.17%

Participation Requirement 100% 100% 100%
This is a brief summary of benefits. The actual contract will prevail.

Long-Term Disability Insurance Marketing
CARRIERS

THE STANDARD
CURRENT

LINCOLN
(PACKAGED)

PRINCIPAL
(PACKAGED)



Ge Mercer 

Heidi Harris 
Business Manager 
Red Oak Community School District 
Red Oak, IA 

May 8, 2023 

Statement of Work ("SOW") 

welcome to brighter 

Angela Villhauer 
Principal - Iowa Office Business Leader 

12421 Meredith Drive 
Urbandale Iowa 50398 
T +1 319-430-3435 
Angela.villhauer@mercer.com 
www.mercer.com 

The objective of this Statement of Work ("SOW") is to confirm the scope of Mercer's work and the 
compensation for this engagement Educator Trust Program - Consulting Services. This SOW 
is between Mercer Health and Benefits LLC ("Mercer") Red Oak Community School District 
("Client") and is subject to the terms and conditions contained in the existing engagement letter 
dated 4/17/18 (the "Agreement'). All capitalized terms not defined in this SOW shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in the Agreement. 

1. Description of Mercer responsibilities:

The Services under this SOW shall commence on July 1, 2023 ("Effective Date") and continue
through June 30, 2024 ("Initial Term") and shall automatically renew for consecutive one (1) 
year terms thereafter (each a "Renewal Term").

Service Attachment Commencement Go-Live Notice of Renewal 
Number Date Date Non- Date 

Renewal 
Date 

Core H&B 1 April 1, 2023 July 1, 2023 April 1, 2024 July 1, 2024 
Services 

Health 2 April 1 , 2023 July 1, 2023 April 1, 2024 July 1, 2024 
Advocate 
Services 

Voluntary 3 April 1, 2023 July 1, 2023 April 1, 2024 July 1, 2024 
Benefits 

Services provided by Mercer Health & Benefits LLC. 

A business of Marsh McLennan 



Page 2 
May 8, 2023 

Additional projects requested by Client that individually are not expected to exceed $10,000 
will be billed (i) at time and expense (based on Mercer's hourly billing rate in effect at the time 
the work is performed), (ii) on a fixed fee basis or (iii) as otherwise mutually agreed in writing 
and will, in each case, be subject to the terms of this Agreement. 

The Services are subject to the terms of the following Attachments incorporated by reference: 

Attachment Attachment Number 

Health& Welfare Services Schedule 1 
Health Advocate Services 2 
Voluntary Benefit Services 3 

2. Description of Client responsibilities:

Client agrees to furnish to Mercer's representatives all information they may request as it 
pertains to Client's insurance contracts, rates, rating schedules, surveys, reserves, retentions
and all other financial data they may request for their study of Client's present and future
requirements in connection with the insurance program to which this SOW applies.

Client understands that the failure to provide, or cause to provide, complete, accurate, up-to-
date, and timely documentation and information to Mercer, an insurer, or other service
provider, whether intentional or by error, could result in impairment or voiding of coverage or 
service. Client agrees to review all policies, endorsements and program agreements delivered
to Client by Mercer and will advise Mercer of anything which Client believe is not in 
accordance with the negotiated coverage and terms within thirty (30) days following receipt.

Additional responsibilities may be listed in the Service Schedule attachment.

3. Period of time over which work is performed:

The Services under this SOW shall commence on July 1, 2023 ("Effective Date") and 
continue through June 30, 2024("Initial Term") and shall automatically renew for consecutive
one (1) year terms thereafter (each a "Renewal Term").

4. Compensation/fees:

Mercer will receive base commissions and/or fees from insurance carriers and/or fees from
vendors, and /or fees from Client as billed, collected, and remitted by a third party (i.e. carrier)
that are disclosed separately on Mercer's Transparency and Carrier Information Form or 
equivalent for the Services which Mercer has provided or will provide to Client separately.

In addition to the compensation set forth herein, Mercer also bills for other expenses related to 
the Services requested.

If applicable, Client may be billed this compensation pursuant to a Billing and Collection
Agreement or other similar arrangements with the applicable third party. If Client fails to make 
payments more than (30) days after the due date, Mercer may exercise our right to claim
interest for late payment. If such failure to pay extends beyond ninety (90) days, Mercer may 



Page 3 
May 8, 2023 

either suspend the provision of the services until payment is received or terminate this SOW 
with immediate effect. 

In the event Client terminates this SOW prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or Renewal 
Term, the parties agree that Mercer will not have received full compensation for Services 
performed and that further compensation is due Mercer. For purposes of determining 
compensation owed to Mercer, the parties further agree that Mercer will be deemed to have 
earned, for the performance of its annual Services, 100% of its annual compensation. 

Client shall pay any outstanding compensation due Mercer in the event the Client is unable to 
cause its carrier or replacement broker to pay Mercer a portion of future commissions to fully 
compensate Mercer for Services performed based on the schedule above. In such event, 
Mercer will calculate the outstanding compensation based on commissions paid to Mercer for 
the final full month that Mercer served as broker of record. 

Mercer has entered this SOW with Client based, in part, on an expectation that base 
commissions will adequately compensate Mercer for the performance of the Services. From 
time to time, the level of premium volume and in turn resulting commission that is based upon 
premium volume may reduce due to a number of factors, including external events such as 
reductions in force or beneficial cost reducing decisions made by the Client. In such situations, 
Client agrees to renegotiate the overall level of compensation Mercer receives within 90 days 
of Mercer notifying Client of such reduction by (i) working with Mercer and the applicable 
carriers to increase Mercer's commission rates and/or (ii) directly providing Mercer additional 
compensation, to the extent permitted by law, for the purpose of maintaining a level of 
compensation for Mercer consistent with the Services provided hereunder. Such 
consideration will be made when the aggregate commission amounts received by Mercer 
across all lines of coverage subject to this SOW decrease from the prior year. 

In the event Mercer is unable to negotiate the full Renewal Term Adjustment, Client will pay 
Mercer the difference, to the extent permitted by law, at the end of the Renewal Term. 

In the event Client terminates this SOW prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or Renewal 
Term, any unpaid compensation with respect to such term (or the current year in the event of 
a multiple year term) shall be accelerated and shall be due and payable to Mercer within 30 
days of the effective date of termination. 

Line(s) of Coverage/Service 

Line o f  Coverage 

Medical 

Flexible Spending- iSolved 

Accident 

Critical Illness 

Hospital Indemnity 

Commission 

$36 PCPM 

10% 

10% 

10% 

10% 

In addition to other compensation listed, we also bill for necessary travel and other expenses 
related to the services requested. 

5. Subcontractors



Page 4 
May 8, 2023 

Mercer may need to utilize various subcontractors ("Subcontractors") in the course of the 
provision of the Services to assist in such tasks as printing and mailing, development of 
interactive tools, graphic design, etc. Client consents to Mercer's use of the Subcontractors 
and further acknowledge and agree that Mercer may provide such Subcontractors with 
Client's Confidential Information, including Work, on a confidential and a need to know basis 
for the purposes contemplated by this SOW. 

6. Use of Name and Logo 

The parties agree and acknowledge that Mercer may need to use Client's name, logo, 
tradename and/or mark in connection with the performance of the Services. Client consents to 
such use, and grant to Mercer and its agents, vendors and subcontractors of a non-exclusive,
royalty-free, limited license to use Client's name, logo and any tradename or mark only in 
connection with the performance of the Services. The parties further agree that such use will
be subject to Client's instruction, direction or prior written approval as to style, form, context
and general content. Client will not unreasonably delay or withhold it's approval.

7. Additional Disclosures

a. Mercer is not responsible for the adequacy or effectiveness of any insurance program or
policy implemented by another broker, or any acts or omissions occurring prior to Mercer's
engagement. Mercer does not act on behalf of any insurer or other service provider, is not 
bound to utilize any particular insurer or service provider, and does not have the authority to
make binding commitments on behalf of any insurer or service provider. In addition, Mercer
does not guarantee or make any representation or warranty that coverage or service can be 
placed on terms acceptable to Client. Mercer is not responsible for the solvency or ability to
pay claims of any insurance carrier or for the solvency or ability of any service provider to 
provide service. Insurance carriers or service providers with which Client's other risk or 
insurance coverage or other business is placed will be deemed acceptable to Client, in the
absence of contrary instructions from Client.

b. Mercer and its Affiliates serve a wide array of clients, including clients who compete with
or whose interests may be adverse to one another. In addition, Mercer interacts with 
insurance carriers and other service providers through numerous business and contractual
relationships, including serving as a broker for its clients and receiving commissions from 
carriers, providing consulting or administration services to carriers, and auditing carriers'
claims data. Mercer is committed to serving each of its clients in an objective manner and 
maintaining the confidentiality of each of its client's information. Notwithstanding anything to 
the contrary in the engagement letter, when providing Services to Client pursuant to this
SOW, Mercer may involve its Affiliates, from time to time, to assist in the performance of such 
Services.

c. Client expressly acknowledge that, with respect to the provision of the Services, Mercer is 
not, nor are any of Mercer's Affiliates or subcontractors, an "administrator" within the meaning 
under applicable law, including the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as 
amended ("ERISA"), nor, with respect to the provision of the Services, is Mercer or any of
Mercer's Affiliates or subcontractors a "fiduciary" within the meaning under applicable law or
ERISA, unless provided otherwise herein or required by applicable law. 



Page 5 
May 8, 2023 

d. Title V of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and related state laws and regulations establish limitations
on the use and distribution of non-public information collected by financial institutions from their
customers and consumers. Mercer's insurance-related work qualifies Mercer as a financial institution
under this Act. Mercer's Privacy Policy Notice and additional information regarding other compliance
policies at Mercer, including its conflicts of interest policy is available at the following web address
https://www.mercer.us/about-mercer/transparency.html. At this web address Client will also find
information regarding Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc. and its subsidiaries' equity interests in 
certain insurers and contractual arrangements with certain insurers and wholesale brokers.

e. Mercer is unable to provide insurance broking, risk consulting, claims or other services or
provide any benefit to the extent that the provision of such services or benefit would violate
applicable law or expose Mercer or its Affiliates to any sanction, prohibition or restriction under
UN Security Council Resolutions or under other trade or economic sanctions, laws or
regulations.

[Remainder of this page left blank intentionally] 





































District Teacher              
(per day)

Paraprofessional 
(per hour)

Secretary            
(per hour)

Bus Driver          
(per hour)

Atlantic $140.00 $13.50 $14.54 $15.00
Clarinda $150.00 $15.00 $15.00 $23.84
Corning $120.00 $11.00 $11.00
East Mills $140.00 $11.05 $15.00 $16.50
Essex $150.00 $13.00 $20.00
Fremont Mills $135.00 $10.75 $11.00 $13.26
Glenwood $165.00 $11.66 $15.00
Griswold $130.00 $12.50 $12.52 $12.00
Harlan $135.00 $13.50
Shenandoah $160.00 $14.24 $14.75 $15.42
Sidney $140.00 $10.00 $13.40
Stanton $120.00 $10.25 $10.75 $13.51
Villisca $130.00 $10.00 $10.00

average $139.62 $12.03 $12.73 $15.79
Red Oak (22-23) $130.00 $10.00 $10.71 $15.00

Regional Substitute Pay Rates





K&K Parking Lot Painting DATE
15127 Lake Street 05/09/23
Omaha, Ne 68116  
402.689.4925  
major1@cox.net

ESTIMATE FOR:
Red Oak High School
Attn: Adam
2011 N 8th St
Red Oak, IA 51566
 
 

QTY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
1 $7,875.00 $7,875.00

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$7,875.00

$7,875.00

Kevin Neumann 402.689.4925 major1@cox.net

DESCRIPTION

 

Estimate

THANK YOU
SUBTOTAL

TAX 

TOTAL

For questions concerning this estimate, please contact

excluding the number stall markings
 
 
 

Restripe parking lot markings…Arrows, handicaps, and lines
 

Restripe parking lot and paint all parking lot markings

ESTIMATE NO.
23022

 
 

 PROJECT



K&K Parking Lot Painting DATE
15127 Lake Street 05/09/23
Omaha, Ne 68116  
402.689.4925  
major1@cox.net

ESTIMATE FOR:
Inman Elementary
Attn: Adam
900 Inman Dr
Red Oak, IA 51566
 
 

QTY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
1 $4,750.00 $4,750.00

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$4,750.00

$4,750.00

Kevin Neumann 402.689.4925 major1@cox.net

DESCRIPTION

 

Estimate

THANK YOU
SUBTOTAL

TAX 

TOTAL

For questions concerning this estimate, please contact

 
 
 
 

Restripe parking lot markings…Arrows, handicaps, and lines
 

Restripe parking lot and paint all parking lot markings

ESTIMATE NO.
23023

 
 

 PROJECT























 

Contact Information: 
Chad Bartlett, Director of Organizational Strategy, Improvement, and Equity 

 
cbartlett@ghaea.org  |  712-310-8014                                                                      

Green Hills AEA Therapeutic Classroom 

 
OVERVIEW & PURPOSE 
Opportunity to provide a deeper level of support to students with mental health needs. Rising 
Hope Academy will serve up to eight students in each therapeutic classroom. 
 
REQUIREMENTS 

● Students enrolled in 1st-5th grade, with exceptions made in rare circumstances 
● Student must have an active IEP and Behavior Intervention Plan 
● Referral Form must be completed to be considered as a candidate for this program 
● Referring district and parent(s)/guardian(s) must participate in the screening process 

OBJECTIVES 
Shared goals between the resident home district and Rising Hope Academy will be designed to 
help students: 

● Understand their mental health diagnosis 
● Gain coping skills to assist with social, emotional, and educational outcomes 
● Reduce the intensity and/or frequency of behaviors 
● Continue progressing on academic standards 
● Work towards a successful transition back into the least restrictive environment in a 

student’s home school 

Examples of interventions include but will not be limited to: 

● Conscious Discipline Approach 
● Research-based mindfulness 
● Social skills groups and instruction 
● Daily student self-assessment and feedback 
● Modifications and accommodations to Iowa Core as indicated in student's IEP 
● Access to the Master Social Worker (MSW) program for individual and/or group therapy 

while at RHA in addition to their outside therapy 
● Communication and progress will be shared weekly between Rising Hope Academy, the 

student’s home district, and guardians 
 
 
 

 

mailto:cbartlett@ghaea.org
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSfsf4G2eWY6A3HKQYCHjKiwnOn3o6cj1m1hyjUuh5_2V4A6Vw/viewform
https://www.ghaea.org/educators/sebh-resources/mental-health-social-worker/

	23 lifeadd.vlife.ltd.dent.ren - Red Oak Schools.pdf
	Cover
	RH
	Dental Experience
	Dental - Supp Staff
	Dental - Teachers
	Basic Life
	LTD
	VTL
	Age Band Changes
	Marketing
	Support Staff Grid
	Teacher Dental Grid
	Basic Life grid
	VTL Grid
	ltd grid

	Agenda May 17, 2023.pdf
	Red Oak Community School District
	604 S Broadway


	RHA Academy Information Sheet.pdf
	OVERVIEW & PURPOSE
	REQUIREMENTS
	OBJECTIVES




